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1. VISION STATEMENT

To be an Internationally Acclaimed Centre for
Excellence in Higher Education, Learning and

Research

-~

2. MISSION

To be a centre in the forefront of generation,
advancement and dissemination of knowledge,
while promoting learning, research and
training to produce competent human
resources possessing knowledge, skills and
attitudes to contribute towards sustainable

development




3. GOALS

Be a centre of excellence in higher learning.

Produce graduates in keeping with the development

needs of the country.

Enhance the development of the personality of staff

and students.

Achieve the status of an internationally acclaimed

regional institute of research and development.

Enhance continuing professional programme

inareas of national relevance.

Be a resources centre to enhance the quality of life

in the region.




4. FOREWORD BY THE VICE-CHANCELLOR

It is with much satisfaction and a sense of achievement that we, as the
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka look back at the Year 2015. This is primarily
due to the work-oriented culture that we have promoted within this institution which
in turn has yielded substantial gains within the period under review, in human and
material terms.

As this report shall amply portray, the Mission of the University in producing men
and women with ‘practical skills and positive attitudes has clearly been the focus of
its academic, administrative and the non-academic staff throughout the year 2014.
Challenges were many; resources few. But innovative approaches and positive
commitment have enabled us to be path - finders of modern tertiary education.

The report takes into account in particular the University’s ambitious projects on
infrastructure — new building facilities in the form of lecture-theatres and playground,
construction of new laboratories, also the availability and welfare of aptly qualified
and resourceful staff with great potential for the future.

Under the Infrastructure development of the university following building projects
have been completed during the year 2015

. Strom water drain for ICC hostel project
. Barbed Wire Fencing at Noneperial premises — Stage 11

. Upgrading the Field Station to a fully function Biodiversity Laboratory

A W N~

. Aluminum Partition Work of Faculty of Management (Department of Marketing
Management)

5. Aluminum Partition Work of Faculty of Management (Department of Accountancy

and Finance)

I take this opportunity to thank the Ministry of Higher Education, the University
Grants Commission, government and private sector bodies, most of all my staff, all of
whom have stood by the University during 2015 in countering our challenges. Their
unwavering support shall further enable us to be the pioneering change-agents in the
Sri Lankan sphere of intellectual enterprise in the years ahead.

Prof. Chandana P Udawatte
Vice-Chancellor



5. THE UNIVERSITY

5.1 INTRODUCTION

The Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka is situated on the left of the way to
Samanalawewa reservoir and is over 160 kilometers away from Colombo -
Badullahighway. The University comprises of five (05) Academic Faculties, namely,

e Faculty of Agricultural Sciences

e Faculty of Applied Sciences

e Faculty of Geomatics

e Faculty of Management Studies

e Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages

In addition to these five Faculties, there are twelve study centers. They are as
follows:

o Centre for Computer Studies

e Agri — Business Research and Development Centre (ABRDS)
e Career Guidance Unit

e External Degree Programmes and Extension Services Unit

o Staff Development Centre

e Centre for Postgraduate Studies

o Centre for Indigenous Community Studies

e Centre for Research and Knowledge Dissemination

e Sports Centre

e Sabaragamuwa University Industry-Community Interaction Cell
e Centre for Biodiversity and Environmental Studies

e University Museum

In the year 2015, five faculties offered thirty three BA/BSc Degree Programmes,
based on the Semester or the Course Units System of study, to a student
population of about 3611. The annual intake of the University is in the region of
about 1027 students. Apart from some of the Degree Programmes offered by the
Faculties of Applied Sciences and Social Sciences, which are of three-year duration,
the rest extend over to a four-year period. The medium of instruction of all Science
— based programmes is English. Wherever possible, the Lecturers strive to assist
undergraduates by presenting the relevant course materials in Sinhala or Tamil
medium as the case may be. The students reading for degrees at the
SabaragamuwaUniversity could also select optional courses even from another
Department within their own Faculty (inter — departmental courses), while following
the major and minor subjects.

Apart from all these Faculties, Study Centers and Units, the Unuiversity has an
Affliated Academy named Sri Lanka Military Academy (SLMA). This academy
situated at Diyatalawa prepares army cadets for the Degree of Bachelor of Military
Studies awarded by the University.



5.2 CHANCELLOR
Ven. Professor Kumburugamuwe Vajira Thero

5.3 OFFICERS OF THE UNIVERSITY
The Officers of the University, as stipulated in Section 33 of the Universities Act.
No. 16 of 1978, subsequently amended are as follows:

VICE-CHANCELLOR
Prof. Chandana P Udawatte, BSc (PDN), MPhil (PDN), PhD (PDN)
Professor in Chemistry

DEANS OF FACULTIES

DEAN, FACULTY OF AGRICULTURAL SCIENCES
Dr. M Esham, BSc Agriculture, MBA, PhD (upto August 2015)
Dr. H S R Rosairo, (from Septeber 2015)

DEAN, FACULTY OF APPLIED SCIENCES
Prof. RM U S K Rathnayake, BSc in Agri (RUH), MSc (PDN),
PhD (AIT — Thailand)

DEAN, FACULTY OF GEOMATICS
Dr. K R M U Bandara, BSc (SJP), MSc (Netherlands), PhD (AIT-
Thailand), HD in Surveying (ISMD) (upto February 2015)

Dr. H M I Prasanna (from March 2015)

DEAN, FACULTY OF MANAGEMENT STUDIES
Mr. R M W Rathnayake, BSc (KLN), MSc (SJP), PhD (SJP)

DEAN, FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCES AND LANGUAGES
Dr. W M Ariyarathne,PhD, University of Pune, India

REGISTRAR
Mr. M F Hibathul Careem, BSc (EUS), MSc (PDN) MBA (PIM-SJP), DMS (IND)
PGDM (OUSL), FIMS (UK), FCPM (SL.)

LIBRARIAN
Mrs. T N Neighsoorie, BA (KLN), PGDL (KLN),MSc (KLN), ASLLA-Sri Lanka

BURSAR (ACTING)
Mr. K A R S Jayakody, BCom(SJP), PGD (IGNOU), DA,APFA, MAAT.Final I
(ICSL)



5.4 THE COUNCIL

The Council, which is the Governing authority of the University, as stipulated in
section 44 of the Universities Act. No. 16 of 1978, as subsequently amended
comprised of the following members:

EX-OFFICE MEMBERS

Prof. Chandana P Udawatte Vice-Chancellor — Chairman

Dr. M Esham Dean, Faculty of Agricultural Sciences
(up to August 2015)

Dr. H S R Rosairo Dean, Faculty of Agricultural Sciences
(from September 2015)

Dr. R M U S K Rathnayake Dean, Faculty of Applied Sciences

Dr. KR M U Bandara Dean, Faculty of geomatics
(up to February 2015)

Dr. H M I Prasanna Dean, faculty of Geomatics
(from March 2015)

Mr. R M W Rathnayake Dean, Faculty of Management studies

Dr. Manoj ariyarathne Dean, Faculty of Social sciences &
Languages

SENATE REPRESENTATIVES

Prof. H M S Priyanath Faculty of Social Sciences and
Lanuages

(up to January 2015)

Dr. D A I Dayarathne Faculty of Management Sudies

(from February 2015)

Prof. A A Y Amarasinghe Faculty of Agricultural Sciences

MEMBERS APPOINTED BY THE UNIVERSITY GRANTS COMMISION

Me

Me

mbers who were appointed up to February 2015
Mr. M M Rafeek

Mr. U.N. Rodrigo

Dr. M D J Abeyagunawardena

Mr. Asoka G Athurugiriya

Mr. D HN W Kumara

Dr. (Mrs) Samarakoon

Mrs. M R Samaranayake

Mr. Ranasinghe Silva

Mr. T M S K Thilakarathne

CONonRWD =

bers who were appointed from April 2015

Rev. Karangoda Uyangoda Maithri Moorthi Maha Nayaka Thero
Mr. Chandra gankanda (up to august 2015)

Prof. M U Jayasekara

Prof. k B Palipane

Mr. Piyathissa Ranasinghe

Mr. H W Gunadasa

Dr. Ravindra Jayasekara

Mr. N S P M Ranjith

©ONoO U AN —E

SECRETARY TO THE COUNCIL

Mr

. M F Hibathul Careem, Registrar

The Council had 12 meetings during the year.



5.5 THE SENATE

The Senate, which is the academic Authority of the University of the University,
stipulated in Section 46 of the universities act No. 16 of 1978, as subsequently
amended comprised of the following members:

CHAIRMAN
Prof. Chandana P Udawatte

MEMBERS OF THE SENATE
Dr. M Esham

Dr. H S R Rosairo

Dr. RM U S K Rathnayake
Dr. KR M U Bandara

Dr. H M I Prasanna

Mr. R M W Rathnayake
Dr. Manoj Ariyarathne

Prof. I K. Perera

Prof. Mahinda S Rupasinghe
Prof. R P Mahaliyanaarachchi
Prof. Lal P Vidana arachchi
Prof. A A Y Amarasinghe

Prof. Anil Gunarathne

Mrs. T N Neighsoorie
Dr. (Mrs) D A M de Silva

Dr. H S R Rosairo

Dr. (Mrs.) ST C Amarasinghe
Dr. P K Dissanayake

Dr. M A J P Munasinghe

Dr. S amarakeerthi

Dr. J M C K Jayawardene
Dr. Jayalath ekanayake

Mr. M C N Jayasooriya

Vice-Chancellor

Dean, Faculty of Agricultural Sciences
(up to August 2015)

Dean, Faculty of Agricultural Sciences
(from September 2015)

Dean, Faculty of Applied Sciences
Dean, Faculty of Geomatics

(up to February 2015)

Dean, Faculty of Geomatics

(from March 2015)

Dean, Faculty of Management Studies
Dean, faculty of Social Sciences &
Languages

Senior professor, Department of
Physical Sciences

Senior Professor, Department of
Natural Resources (up to May 2015)
Senior Professor of Agribusiness

Management
Professor, Department of Export
Agriculture
Professor, Department of Export
Agriculture

Professor, Department of Livestock
Production

Librarian

Head, Department of Agribusiness
Management (up to May 2015)

head Department of Agribusiness
Management (from June to September
2015)

Head, department of Agribusiness
Management (from Octomber2015)
Head, Department of Export
Agriculture

Head, Department of Livestock
Production

Head Department of Computing &
Information System

Head, Department of natural resources
Head, Department of Physical Sciences
& Technology

Head, Department of Food Sciences &
Technology



Dr. Sandun J perera

Dr. H A C S Hapuarachchi

Ms. I A K S Illeperuma
Dr. T L Dammalage
Dr. H M I Prasanna

Dr. D R welikanna

Dr. Athula Gnanapala

Mrs. KL B G Dharmarathne
Ms. KD L R Kapuge

Mr. D G Dharmarathne

Dr. Aruna Shantha

Dr. K P L Nishantha

Mrs. R A D P Weerasekara
Mr. KR W K H Abeywickrama

Mrs. RW M P G I Weerakoon

FACULTY REPRESENTATIVES

Dr. M M P Sumith
Dr. PM A S Karunarathne
Dr. A W Wijeratne

Dr. R K Muthukumarana

Dr. W S M Senevirathne
Dr. E P N Udayakumara
Mrs. J A S Jayakody

Dr. G S N Perera

Head, Department of Sport Sciences &
Physical Education (up to august 2015

Head, Department of Sport Sciences &
Physical Education (up to
September2015)

Head, Department of CPRGS

(up to February 2015)

Head, Department of CPRSG

(from March 2015)

Head, Department of Surveying and
Geodesy (up to February 2015)

Head, Department of Surveying &
Geodesy

(from March 2015)

Head, Department of  Tourism
Management

Head, Department of Business
Management

Head, Department of Marketing
Management

Head, Department of Accountancy &
Finance

Head, Department of Economics &
Statistics

Head, Department of Social Sciences
Head, Department of Languages

Head, Department of English
Languages

Teaching (up to July 2015)

Head, Department of English Language
Teaching (from August 2015)

Senior Lecturer, Faculty of Agricultural
Sciences (up to March 2015)

Senior Lecturer, Faculty of Agricultural
Sciences (from April 2015)

Senior Lecturer, Faculty of Agricultural
Sciences (up to March 2015)

Senior Lecturer, Faculty of Agricultural
Sciences (from April 2015)

Faculty Representative, Faculty of
Applied Sciences

Faculty Representative, Faculty of
AppliedSciences

Senior Lecturer, Faculty of Geomatics
(up to June 2015)

Senior Lecturer, Faculty of Geomatics
(from July 2015)



Mr. T.D.A. Gomez

Dr. D A1 Dayarathne

Dr. KM M I Rathnayake

Dr. SJ M N G Samarakoon

Dr. S S A Senevirathne

INVITEES
Mr. RV S P K Ranathunga

SECRETARY TO THE SENATE
Mr. M F Hibathul Careem

Senior Lecturer, Faculty
Representative, Faculty of Geomatics
Senior Lecturer, Faculty
Representative, Faculty of Management
Studies

Senior Lecturer, Faculty
Representative, Faculty of Management
Studies

Senior Lecturer, Faculty
Representative, Faculty of Social
Sciences

Senior Lecturer, Faculty
Representative,Faculty of Social
Sciences & Languages

(from May 2015)

Director, Centre for Computer Studies

Registrar & Secretary to the Senate

The Senate had 12 meetings during the year.
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6. FACULTIES

6.1 FACULTY OF AGRICULTURAL SCIENCES

VISSION:

MISSON:

BRIEF HISTORY:

DEAN/HEADS:

FACULTY BOARD:

Chairman

Members

To be an internationally acclaimed center of
excellence in higher learning producing dynamic
leaders and nation builders to guide the destiny of
Sri Lanka

The mission of the Faculty of Agricultural
Sciences is to search for, and disseminate
knowledge in the sphere of agriculture. The
Faculty produces graduates in Agricultural
Sciences who are proficient in the
Sciences/disciplines and practical skill in
agriculture to contribute towards the manpower
requirements of the Nation. The Faculty will strive
to be the nucleus for socio-economic
enhancement of the communities in geographic
proximity to the Faculty.

The Faculty of Agricultural Sciences of
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka was
initially established at Rahangala in 1995 and
was shifted to the main premises at Belihuloya in
2001. From 2001, academic programs were
conducted with limited facilities at Belihuloya. In
2005, the faculty was able to win a competitive
World Bank grant of Rs.82.5 million to develop
infrastructure and other academic facilities. A
comprehensive curriculum revision was
undertaken and the degree programme was
renamed as Agricultural Sciences and
Management.

Dean
Dr. H.S.R. Rosairo

Heads

Dr. S.T.C. Amarasinghe - Departmentt of
Agribusiness Management

Dr. P.K. Dissanayake - Departmentt of Export
Agriculture

Dr. M.A.J.P. Munasinghe - Department of
Livestock Productions

Dr. H.S.R. Rosairo

Dr. (Mrs) S.T.C. Amarasinghe
Dr. P.K. Dissanayake

11



Secretary

Students Representatives

Dr. M.A.J.P. Munasinghe
Prof. R.P. Mahaliyanaarachchi
Prof. A.AY. Amarasinghe

Prof. Lal P. Vidanaarachchi

Prof. D.M.A. Gunarathne

Prof. (Mrs) D.A.M. De Siva

Prof. (Mrs) P.M.A.S. Karunaratne
Prof. M. Esham

Prof. P.I. Yapa

Dr. (Mrs.) S.H.P. Malkanthi

Dr. (Mrs) M.L.M.C. Dissanayake
Dr. T.S.P. Jayaweera

Dr. A.D. Ampitiyawatta

Dr. A.W. Wijerathne

Dr. C.N. Walpita

Dr. G.D.K. Kumara

Dr. M.M.P. Sumith

Dr. (Mrs) H.A.D. Ruwandeepika
Dr. (Mrs) P.K. Mutucumarana
Mrs. D.I.M. Amararathna

Mrs. R.M.A.S. Bandara

Dr. P.K.G.S.S. Bandara

Mr. J.B.D.A.P. Kumara

Mr. P. Sivashankar

Ms. W.M.A.U.K.M. Wijesekara
Mr. J.S. Senadeera

External Board Members
Mr. G. Weerakkodi

Mr. S. Gamage

Mr. K.P. Somachandra

Members on Invitation
Dr. W.W.K. Lalith

Mr. W.H.D. Pemawardana
Mr. R.D. Rajapaksha

Ms. H.M.D.Y. Herath

Mr. K.D.P. Sanaka
Mr. K.A.G.D.G.P. Kumara

PERMANENT STAFF/TEMPORARY STAFF:

Permanent Staff

Department of Agribusiness Management
Prof. R.P. Mahaliyanaarachchi, M.Sc. (Bulgaria), PhD (Peradeniya), Post Doc

(Reading), Senior Professor

Prof. (Mrs.) D.A.M. De Silva, B.Sc. Agric. (Ruhuna), MBA (Peradeniya), PhD
(Japan), Post Doc (UK), Professor

12



Prof. M. Esham, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), MBA (USJ), PhD (Japan), Post Doc.
(Japan) Post Doc (UK), Professor

Dr. (Mrs.) S.T.C. Amarasinghe, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), M.Phil, (Peradeniya),
PhD (China), Dip (Business Management), Senior Lecturer (Grade I)

Dr. H.S.R. Rosairo, B.Sc. Agric (Peradeniya), MBA (Colombo), PhD, (New
Zealand), Post Doc (UK), Senior Lecturer (Grade I)

Dr. (Mrs.) S.H.P. Malkanthi, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), M.Phil (Peradeniya), PhD
(Thailand), Senior Lecturer (Grade I)

Dr. A.W. Wijerathne, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), MSc (Peradeniya), PhD (China),
Senior Lecturer (Grade I)

Mr. P. Sivashankar, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), Lecturer (Probationary)
Mr. I. C. Hettarachchi, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Lecturer (Probationary)

Department of Export Agriculture

Prof. A.A.Y. Amarasinghe, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), M.Phill (Peradeniya), PhD
(China), Dip. (Biotechnology), Professor

Prof. L.P. Vidhana Arachchi, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), M.Sc. (Malayasia), PhD
(USJ), Post Doc. (Japan), Professor

Prof. (Mrs.) P.M.A.S. Karunaratne, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), M.Phil
(Peradeniya), PhD (UK), Post Doc. (UK), Professor

Prof. P.I. Yapa, B.Sc. Agric (Peradeniya), M.Sc Agric (Peradeniya), PhD (UK),
Professor

Dr. (Mrs.) M.L.M.C. Dissanayake, B.Sc. Agri. (Peradeniya), M.Phil (Peradeniya),
PhD (Japan), Senior Lecturer (Grade I)

Dr. A.D. Ampitiyawatta, B.Sc. Agric. (Ruhuna), M.Sc (Peradeniya), PhD
(China), Senior Lecturer (Grade I)

Dr. P. K. Dissanayaka, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), MSc (Peradeniya), PhD
(Japan) Post Doc (UK), Senior Lecturer (Grade II)

Dr. G.D.K. Kumara, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), M.Sc (Peradeniya), PhD (China),
Senior Lecturer (Grade II)

Mrs. D.I.M. Amararathna, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), M.Phil (Peradeniya), Senior
Lecturer (Grade II)

Mr. J.B.D.A.P. Kumara, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), M.Sc (JNU-India), Lecturer

Ms. W.M.A.K.U.M. Wijesekara, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), M.Sc. (Peradeniya),
Lecturer (Probationary)

Mrs. W.G.C. Wekumbura, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), M.Sc. (Peradeniya), Lecturer
(Probationary)

Department of Livestock Production

Prof. D.M.A. Gunaratne, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), M.Sc. (MUN, Canada), PhD
(HKU, Hong Kong), Professor

Dr. M.A.J.P. Munasinghe, M.Sc. (USSR), PhD. (USSR), Senior Lecturer (Grade
1)

Dr. T.S.P. Jayaweera, BVSc. (Peradeniya), M.Sc. (Belgium), M.Phil (Peradeniya),
PhD (Peradeniya), Senior Lecturer (Grade I)

Dr. C.N. Walpita, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), M.Sc. (Belguim), PhD (Belguim),
Senior Lecturer (Grade I)

Dr. (Mrs.) R.K. Mutucumarana, BVSc. (Peradeniya), M.Phil (Peradeniya), Senior
Lecturer (Grade II)

Dr. M.M.P. Sumith, BVSc. (Peradeniya), M.Sc. (Japan), PhD (Japan), Senior
Lecturer (Grade II)
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Dr. (Mrs.) H.A.D. Ruwandeepika, BVSc. (Peradeniya), M.Sc.(Belgium), PhD
(Belguim), Senior Lecturer (Grade II)

Mrs. R.M.A.S. Bandara, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), M.Phil (Peradeniya), Senior
Lecturer (Grade II)

Mr. D.D. Wicramanayake, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Lecturer (Probationary)(Study
Leave)

Ms. H.M.G.P. Herath, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Lecturer (Probationary)

Bio-system Technology Degree Programme
Dr. P.K.G.S.S. Bandara, B.Sc. Agric. (Peradeniya), M.Sc. (Japan), P.hD
(Japan),Senior Lecture

Faculty Library
Dr. W.W.K. Lalith, B.A. (Kelaniya), M.LSc. (Colombo) PhD (China), Senior
Assistant Librarian

English Unit

Mr. J.S. Senadheera, B.A. (USJP), MA (Kelaniya), National Diploma in Teaching
Englisj (NIE), Senior Instructor

Computer Unit

Mr. W.H.D. Pemawardhane, B.Sc. (Colombo) PGDiploma (Colombo), Instructor
(Grade ])

Ms. S.H. Kiriella, B.Sc. Statistics & Computer Science, (Kelaniya), Instructor
(Grade 1II)

Temporary Staff

Department of Agribusiness Management
Ms. B.C.H. Maduwanthi, B.Sc. Agric (SUSL), Lecturer (Temporary)
Ms. M.S. Elapatha, B.Sc. Agric (SUSL), Demonstrator

Department of Export Agriculture

Ms. D.M.K.P. Weerasinghe, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator
Mr. E.P.R.H.H.W. Nilmalgoda, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator
Ms. M.K.L.S. Amarasena, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator

Ms. B.M.A.V. Gunaratne, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator

Ms. W.G.I. Lakmini, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator

Ms. W.N. Sarojani, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator

Department of Livestock Production

Ms. G.E.S. Wimalasiri, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator
Mr. D.N.N. Madhushanka, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator
Ms. M.G.H. Alwis, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator

Mr. P.K.D. Randiline, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator

Ms. J.M.C.S. Jayasinghe, B.Sc. Agric. (SUSL), Demonstrator

14



DEGREE PROGRAMME OF THE FACULTY:

The Faculty of Agricultural Sciences offers a four year specialization degree,
B.Sc. Agricultural Sciences and Management and students can specialize in
four fields such as Agribusiness Management, Commercial Horticulture,
Plantation Agriculture and Livestock Production.

The Faculty is composed of three Departments of study such as Agribusiness
Management, Export Agriculture and Livestock Productions. The Department of
Export Agriculture offers two academic modules in Plantation Agriculture and
Horticulture. The Agribusiness Management is a unique department as the
undergraduate program in Agribusiness Management is the first of its kind in a
Sri Lankan university.

During the first four semesters (first 2 years), students need to follow core-
courses for their general study on Agriculture followed by specialization either
in plantation Agriculture or Horticulture or Livestock Production or
Agribusiness Management for two more semesters (in the 3t year). Students
must select their field of specialization at the end of the second year, according
to the results in previous years and their preferences. Farm Practice, Computer
Sciences and English courses are offered in the first three years and students
must reach a satisfactory grade for each course in each semester to complete
the degree. In addition, elective courses offered during the final year and
students must select four elective courses according to their preferences during
the first semester of their final year (in the fourth year). The final semester of
the final year is allocated for industrial training, which is a vital and specific
component of the degree program and must undertake a applied research in the
specialized field. The medium of instruction of the degree program is English.
The Faculty organizes programs as the practical components of the degree
programme in collaboration with farmers in the area to ensure that knowledge
and skills are exchanged between students and farmers. As a result the Faculty
of Agricultural Sciences has developed close links with the sourounding
communities. Furthermore, students are given an opportunity to visit various
industries to get exposure to operational aspects of the industry and research
organizations.

Department of Agribusiness Management

The department is geared to develop students’ analytical, business and
entrepreneurial skills to produce agro-entrepreneurs and agribusiness
managers for the present and future.

Department of Export Agriculture

Department of Export Agriculture is to produce graduates who possess
knowledge and skills in advanced agricultural technologies and are capable of
managing horticultural and plantation operations of any scale.

Department of Livestock Production

The department strives to produce future leaders and innovators who can bear
major responsibilities and perform the roles for the enhancement of the
livestock sector.

15



GOALS OF THE YEAR 2015:

In line with the University Goal 1 “to enhance the employability of graduates”
following were achieved.
1. Progress was made with the curriculum revision
2. A student exchange program was initiated involving the University of
Notigham Malaysia campus
3. Conducted the new degree programme “Bachelor of Business Administration
in Agribusiness Management” (External Degree Programme)
4. UGC approval was granted for the commencement of a new degree
programme “Bachelor of Science (Special) in Food Business Management”
5. MOUs were signed with foreign universities for facilitating research and
exchange of students and staff
6. A number of workshops/seminars involving experts from the industry were
conducted to enhance skills and attitudes of students
7. External expertise was involved in evaluating student performance at
industrial training and research presentations

In line with the University goal 2 “to enhance research capacity and its impact”
following were achieved
1. Academic staff published journal articles in refereed indexed journals
2. Members of academic staff are involved in a number of collaborative
research programs
3. Two UGC research grant awards were won by academic staff members of the
faculty
4. A postgraduate programme in Applied Animal Biotechnology for the approval
of the UGC

In line with the University goal 3 “to expand the service delivery assuring increased
opportunities and access” following actions were achieved
1. Curriculum development was initiated for a new degree program “Bachelor of
Science in Bio Systems Engineering
2. Initial curriculum development work was completed for postgraduate and
professional development progammes
3. Identified three new areas of specialization within the existing degree
programme in in Agricultural Sciences and Mangement

In line with the University goal 4 “to improve physical, infra and super structures
and human capital” following were achieved
1. Commenced a Master Plan for development for the faculty

In line with the University goal 6 “to enhance the sustainability, social
responsibility and harmony” following were achieved
1. A number of outreach programs to benefit the community was conducted by
the faculty
2. Conducted a on-farm training and advisory programme to benefit rural
farmers

ACHIEVEMENTS DURING 2015:

International

1. One academic member become the best presenter at the Kuala Lumpur
International Agriculture, Forestry & Plantation conference 2015"Agri Tourism
as a Risk Management Strategy in Rural Agriculture Sector" with special
reference to Development countries"
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National

1.

Two academic members received Precedential Award

Institutional

1. One academic staff member was promoted to Professor

2. One academic staff member became the Director of the Staff Development
Centre, SUSL

3. One academic staff member became the Director of the HETC Project

RESEARCH AND PUBLICATION:

Department of Agribusiness Management

Prof. Rohana P Mahaliyvanarachchi

Publications (International)

1.

Mahaliyanaarachchi, R.P. (2015), p.TOC- 193 Role of Agri Tourism as a
Moderated Rural Business, Tourism, Leisure and Global Change, volume 2.
Publications [Abstact] (International)

. RM S W Lakshini, R M S W., Mahaliyanaarachchi, R P., and Malkanthi S H P

(2015) Socio-economic Status of Inland Fishermen: Case of Anuradhapura
District I Sri Lanka. International Conference on Promoting Socio-economic Equity
in South Asia: Challenges and Prospectus (ICPSE), conducted by National
Science Foundation of Sri Lanka, 15-16 July, Kingsbury Hotel, Colombo, Sri
Lanka.

. Abeykoon, A° M T C., Mahaliyanaarachchi, R P., Malkanthi S H Pand

Pathmanathan, S (2015) Work Family conflict and Well-being of Women
Employees in Gampaha District in Sri Lanka. International Conference on
Promoting Socio-economic Equity in South Asia: Challenges and Prospectus
(ICPSE), conducted by National Science Foundation of Sri Lanka,15-16 July,
Kingsbury Hotel, Colombo, Sri Lanka.

Prof. D.A.M. De Silva

Publications (International)

1.

Munasinghe, J., De Silva, A., Weerasinghe, G., Gunaratne, A., Corke, H. (2015).
Food safety in Sri Lanka: Problems and Solutions, Quality Assurance and Safety
of Crops and Foods, volume 7:1, pp 37-44

. Janiithri, W.L.Y., De Silva, D.A.M. and G. Fernando. (2015). Impact of value

chain management on firm competitiveness, International Research Symposium
on Engineering Advancements-2015 (RSEA-2015)

. Bandara, B.E.S., De Silva, D.A.M. and G. Fernando. (2015). Role of standard

minute value in export processing: will it make difference to the firm economic
performance?, International = Research ~ Symposium on  Engineering
Advancements-2015 (RSEA-2015)

. AroshBandula, Champikadayaweera, Achini De Silva, Patrick Oreiley, Asha

Karunarathne and PushpaMalkanthi. (2015)- Resilience through underutilized
crops: Rural food and income security in Sri Lanka, International Conference
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka

. Bandara, B.E.S., De Silva D.AM., Fernando, G. (2015), Role of standard

minute value in export processing: will it make difference to the firm
economic performance?, SAITM-RSEA 2015.
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Dr. M. Esham

Publications (National)

1. Tolno, E., Kobayashi, H., Ichizen, M., Esham, M., Balde, B. S. (2015). Economic
Analysis of the Role of Farmer Organizations in Enhancing Smallholder Potato
Farmers’ Income in Middle Guinea. Journal of Agricultural Science, 7(3),
123-137.

Dr. H.S.R. Rosairo

Publications (International)

1. Rosairo, H.S.R. and Potts, D.J., 2015 (forthcoming), A Study on
Entrepreneurial Attitudes of Upcountry Vegetable Farmers in Sri Lanka,
Journal of Agribusiness in Developing and Emerging Economies, Vol 6(1).

Dr. (Mrs.) S.H.P. Malkanthi

Publications (National)

1. Ishana, A S F., Malkanthi, S H P., Sivashankar, P and Weeralal, J L K.(2015).
Willingness to Initiate Spice Tourism in the Kolonna DS Division of Ratnapura
District in Sri Lanka: Farmers’ Perspective. Sri Lanka Council for Agricultural
Research Policy (SLCARP) Journal,Vol .1 Issue July 2015, pp 34-44.

Publications (Abstact) (International)

1. RM S W Lakshini, R M S W., Mahaliyanaarachchi, R P., and Malkanthi S H P
(2015) Socio-economic Status of Inland Fishermen: Case of Anuradhapura
District I Sri Lanka. International Conference on Promoting Socio-economic Equity
in South Asia: Challenges and Prospectus (ICPSE),conducted by National Science
Foundation of Sri Lanka, 15-16 July, Kingsbury Hotel, Colombo, Sri Lanka.

2. Abeykoon, A M T C., Mahaliyanaarachchi, R P., Malkanthi S H Pand
Pathmanathan, S (2015) Work Family conflict and Well-being of Women
Employees in Gampaha District in Sri Lanka. International Conference on
Promoting Socio-economic Equity in South Asia: Challenges and Prospectus
(ICPSE), conducted by National Science Foundation of Sri Lanka,15-16 July,
Kingsbury Hotel, Colombo, Sri Lanka,

Dr. A.W. Wijerathne

Publications (International)

1. Evaluation of Expected payoff through container interchange between shipping
lines: a solution to container inventory imbalance in Sri Lanka L Edirisinghe,
AW Wijerathne, J Zhihong International Journal of Logistics System and
Management 21 (4), 503- 533

Mr. P. Sivashankar

Publications (International)

1. Abeykoon A.M.T.C, Mahaliyanaarachchi R.P. Malkanthi S.H.P.
and Pathmanathan S. (2015) ‘Work Family conflict and Wellbieng of Women
Employees in Gampaha District in Sri Lanka, Conference proceedings on the
International Conference on Promoting Socio-economic Equity in South
Asia:Challenges and Prospects 15-16 July, National Science Foundation,
Colombo, Sri Lanka

2. I.C. Hettiarachchi, D.A.M. De Silva and P. Sivashankar, (2015) ' Human
Resource Audit for The Sri Lankan Tourism and Hospitality Industry
" Tourism, Leisure And Global Change, Volume 2 (2015), P.TOC-88, Papers
From The 7th Tourism Outlook Conference/Tropical Tourism Outlook
Conference, 8-10 August 2014, Dambulla - Kandalama, Sri
Lanka <Http://Geog.Nau.Edu/Igust/Srilanka2014 /> (Copyright: CC-BY-NC-
ND)
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Publications (National)

1.

Dharmasiri G.D.H.P, Sivashankar P.,. Hettiarachchi I.C, Mahaliyanaarachchi,
R.P, (2015), "Analysis of Consumer Food Safety Knowledge and Practices in
Rathnapura", Proceedings of the 5th Research Symposium of Uva Wellassa
University, January 29th and 30th, 2015

. Liyanagamage T.M, Hettiarachchi I.C., Sivashankar P., Mahaliyanaarachchi

R.P, (2015), " Farmers Perception on Cultivating Herbal Plants as an
Agribusiness Venture: A study at Pambahinna Agrarian Services Division"
", Proceedings of the 5th Research Symposium of Uva Wellassa University,
January 29th and 30th, 2015

. Sivashankar. P (2015), “Foreign Direct Investment as a Catalyst for Economic

Growth in Sri Lanka", 4th Young Scientist Forum (YSF), National Science and
Technology Commission, 23rd January, 2015 Colombo Sri Lanka

. Dayasena YAPK, Hettiarachchi IC, Sivashankar P, (2015), " Factors Affecting

Preference For Genetically Modified Foods: A Pilot Study Among
Undergraduates", 4th Young Scientist Forum (YSF), National Science and
Technology Commission, 23rd January, 2015 Colombo Sri Lanka

. Dayasena YAPK, Sivashankar P, Hettiarachchi IC, (2015), "Influence of Socio

Economic Factors on Acceptance of Genetically Modified Foods", Proceedings
of the 5th Research Symposium of Uva Wellassa University, January 29th and
30th, 2015

Sivashankar.P, Weerehewa J, Pushpakumara G, Galagedara L.W. (2015),
"Factors  Affecting Farmer's  Willingness To Pay for Jatropha
Biodiesel", Proceedings of the 5th Research Symposium of Uva Wellassa
University, January 29th and 30th, 2015

Mr. I.C. Hettiarachchi

Publications (International)

1.

I.C. Hettiarachchi, D.A.M. De Silva and P. Sivashankar, (2015) ' Human
Resource Audit for The Sri Lankan Tourism and Hospitality Industry ' Tourism,
Leisure And Global Change, Volume 2 (2015), P.TOC-88, Papers From The 7th
Tourism Outlook Conference/Tropical Tourism Outlook Conference, 8-10
August 2014, Dambulla -Kandalama, Sri Lanka
<Http://Geog.Nau.Edu/Igust/Srilanka2014 /> (Copyright: CC-BY-NC-ND)

Publications (International)

1.

Dharmasiri G.D.H.P, Sivashankar P.,. Hettiarachchi I.C, Mahaliyanaarachchi,
R.P, (2015), "Analysis of Consumer Food Safety Knowledge and Practices in
Rathnapura", Proceedings of the 5th Research Symposium of Uva Wellassa
University, January 29th and 30th, 2015

. Liyanagamage T.M, Hettiarachchi I.C., Sivashankar P., Mahaliyanaarachchi

R.P, (2015), " Farmers Perception on Cultivating Herbal Plants as an
Agribusiness Venture: A study at Pambahinna Agrarian Services
Division"", Proceedings of the b5th Research Symposium of Uva Wellassa
University, January 29th and 30th, 2015

. Dayasena YAPK, Hettiarachchi IC, Sivashankar P, (2015), " Factors Affecting

Preference For Genetically Modified Foods: A Pilot Study Among
Undergraduates", 4th Young Scientist Forum (YSF), National Science and
Technology Commission, 23rd January, 2015 Colombo Sri Lanka

Dayasena YAPK, Sivashankar P, Hettiarachchi IC, (2015), "Influence of Socio
Economic Factors on Acceptance of Genetically Modified Foods", Proceedings
of the 5th Research Symposium of Uva Wellassa University, January 29th and
30th, 2015
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Ms. B C H Maduwanthi

Publications (International)

1. Bandara, B.E.S., Maduwanthi, B.C.H. , De Silva, D.A.M., and Warunasinghe,
W.A.A. 1, (2015), Impact of food labeling information on consumer purchasing
decision: with special reference to faculty of Agricultural Sciences, ICSUSL-
2015, pp71

Publications (National)

1. Maduwanthi, B.C.H and Mahaliyanaarachchi, R.P. (2015). Leadership
Behaviour and its Impact on Employee Job Performance: The Mediating Role of
Organizational Commitment, 6th Research Symposium, Uva Wellassa
University.

2. Maduwanthi, B.C.H., Mahaliyanaarachchi, R.P. and Fernando, G. (2015).
Effect Of Supervisor Leadership Behaviour on Organizational Commitment of
Operational Level Employees, Sth YSF Symposium, National Science and
Technology Commission.

Ms. M .S. Elapata

Publications (International)

1. Elapata M.S, Mahaliyanaarachchi , R.P, Sivashankar P Hettiarachchi IC,
Bandara B.E.S,(2015) "Role of Field Level Extension Officers at Divi Neguma
Rural Development Program:A Study in Rathnapura District” International
Research Sessions, iPURSE 2015 of Peradeniya University, November 6th, 2015

Department of Export Agriculture

Dr. (Mrs.) M.L.M.C. Dissanayake

Publications (International)

1. Dissanayake MLMC Shin-Ichi Ito and Yoshihiko Akakabe (2015). TLC
Bioautography Guided Detection and Biological Activity of Antifungal
Compounds from Medicinal Plant Acrous calamus Linn. Asian Journal of Plant
pathology 9 (1):16-26 2015. DOI:103923/aippaj.2015.16.26

2. Prasajith Kapila Dissanayake,MLM Chandrika Dissanayake and W M A UM
Wijesekara (2015). Effect of Hot Water Treatments on postharvest Life of Seeni
Kesel Banana (Musa spp.cv. Seeni Kesel-Pisang Awak, ABB).Journal of
Agriculture and Ecology Research International2(4): 209-218, 2015

Dr. P.K. Dissanayake

Publications (International)

1. Prasajith Kapila Dissanayake, M. L. M. Chandrika Dissanayake and W. M. A. U.
M. Wijesekara. (2015). Effect of Hot Water Treatments on Postharvest Life of
Seeni Kesel Banana (Musa spp.cv. Seeni Kesel-Pisang Awak, ABB), Journal of
Agriculture and Ecology Research International2(4): 209-218,; Article
no.JAERI.2015.021 DOI: 10.9734/JAERI/2015/14011

Department of Livestock Production

Dr. D.M.A. Gunaratne

Publications (International)

1. Pb and Cr Contaminations of Irrigation Water, Soils and Green Leafy Vegetables
Collected from Different Areas of Colombo District, Sri Lanka T.C Kananke, J.
Wansapala and A. Gunaratne Pak. J. Nutr., 14 (9): 593-602, 2015
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2. Adhesion, Cohesion, and Friction Estimated from Combining Cutting and
Peeling Test Results for Thin Noodle Sheets K Wu, A Gunaratne, Ls Collado, H
Corke PW Lucas Journal of food science 80 (2), E370-E37 (2015)

3. Food safety in Sri Lanka: problems and solutions J Munasinghe, Ade Silva, G
Weerasinghe, A Gunaratne, H Corke Quality Assurance and Safety of Crops &
Foods 7 (1), 37-44(2-15)

Dr. M.A.J.P. Munasinghe

Publications (International)

1. Food safety in Sri Lanka: problems and solutions J Munasinghe, Ade Silva, G
Weerasinghe, A Gunaratne, H Corke Quality Assurance and Safety of Crops &
Foods 7 (1), 37-44(2-15)

Dr. C.N. Walpita

Publications (International)

1. Chaminda Niroshan Walpita 2015. Captive breeding of freshwater fish species:
Promise for natural stock enhancement. First International conference on
Environmental Management and planning. 23rd-24th February. Colombo, Sri
Lanka.

Dr. M.M.P. Sumith

Publications (International)

1. Mohamed Ayoub!, Manjula Magamage3, Rebecca Vinton!, Robert A Cushman?,
Anthony K. McNeel2, Harvey C. Freetly?, Jennifer R Wood!, Andrea S Cupp
Vascular Endothelial Growth Factor A 165 (VEGFA165), Angiogenic Isoform,
promotes while VEGFA165b antagonizes VEGFA165 stimulated follicular
progression in bovine ovarian cortical pieces cultured from pre-pubertal heifers.
Biol Reprod June 02, 2015 (1 Supplement page 246) Abstract: 619, 48t Annual
Meeting of the Society for the Study of Reproduction (SSR), San Juan, Puerto
Rico, USA from 18-22 June 2015.

Dr. R.K. Mutucumarana

Publications (International)

1. Mutucumarana R.K., Ravindran V., Ravindran G., Cowieson A.J. (2015)
Measurement of true ileal phosphorus digestibility in maize and soybean meal
for broiler chickens: Comparison of two methodologies. Animal Feed Science
and Technology 206:76-86.

2. Mutucumarana R.K., Ravindran V., Ravindran G., Cowieson A.J. (2015)
Measurement of true ileal phosphorus digestibility in meat and bone meal for
broiler chickens. Poultry Science 94:1611-1618.

Dr. (Mrs) H.A.D. Ruwandeepika

Publications (International)

1. Bossier, P., De Schrijver, Defoirdt, T , Ruwandeepika, H.A.D, Natrah, F ,
Ekasari, J, Toi, H, Nhan, D, Tinh, N, Pande, G, Karunasagar I, Van Stappen, G.
(2016). Microbial community managment in Aquaculture. Procedia Food
Science 6:37 — 39

2. Ruwandeepika, H. A. D., Karunasagar, I., Bossier, P. and Defoirdt, T (2015)
Expression and Quorum Sensing Regulation of Type III Secretion System Genes
of Vibrio harveyiduring Infection of Gnotobiotic Brine Shrimp. PLOS ONE|
DOI:10.1371/journal.pone.0143935
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Faculty Library

Dr. W.W.K. Lalith

Publication (International)

1. Wickramanayake, L. (2016). Where to from here? Current status of school
libraries in Sri Lanka: a survey. New Library World, 117 (3/4), 214-228.

Publication (National)

1. Wickramanayake, L. (2015). User Education and its Present Status in
University Libraries in Sri Lanka: An Overview. Journal of the University
Librarians Association of Sri Lanka, 19 (1).

2. Wickramanayake, L. (2016). A GUIDE TO LIBRRAY AND INFORMATION
SKILLS. Godage, Colombo.
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6.2 FACULTY OF APPLIED SCIENCES

VISION

The Faculty has its own vision compatible to that of the University corporate plan
for nation building through its products. The vision of the Faculty is to extend its
facilities and services to develop as a premier centre for higher education and
advanced research in the field of technology, thus enabling students following the
degree programme to obtain a sound knowledge and acquire multi-disciplinary
skills.

MISSION

The mission of the Faculty is to search for and disseminate knowledge in the areas
of learning that will make a useful contribution to the development of critical
manpower requirements of the nation; contribute to education, science and
technology and socio economic upliftment of the communities of the nation.

THE HISTORY OF THE FACULTY OF APPLIED SCIENCES

The Faculty of Applied Sciences of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka was
initially started as the Buttala Affiliated University College (BAUC) on 21st June 1993.
The BAUC offered two diploma courses, one in Food Science and Technology and the
other in English Language. With the elevation of the Affiliated University Colleges to
fully fledged national Universities in early 1996, three Affiliated University Colleges;
Sabaragamuwa Affiliated University College, Uva Affiliated University College and
Buttala Affiliated University College were amalgamated to form the Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri Lanka and the BAUC became the Faculty of Applied Sciences of the
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.

With effect from March 2008, the faculty has been relocated in the main campus
premises at Belihuloya.

FACULTY MANAGEMENT

Dean Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake
B.Sc. (Sp.) Homns.in Agriculture
(Ruhuna), M.Sc. in Biotechnology
(Peradeniya), Ph.D. (AIT) Thailand

Head /Dept. of Natural Resources Dr. J.M.C.K. Jayawardane
B.Sc. (Sp.) Hons, in Zoology
(Sri Lanka)

M.Phil. (Peradeniya),
Ph.D. (Ballarat, Australia)

Head/Dept of Food Sciences & Technology Mr. M.C.N. Jayasooriya
B.Sc (Sp.) (Hons) In Agriculture
(SUSL),
M.Sc. (Food Science -Ruhuna)

Head/Dept. of Physical Science & Technology Dr. E.M.U.W. Jayalath B.
Ekanayake
B.Sc. (Hons)(Peradeniya)
M.Sc. (Peradeniya.)
PhD(Zurich, Switzerland)
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Head/ Dept. of Computing and
Information Systems

Dr. H.K. Senaka Amarakirthi

B.Sc. (Sp.) (Hons.) Computer Science
(Peradeniya), M.Sc. (TU/E-
Netherlands)

Ph.D. (Uni. Of Zurich, Switzerland)

Head /Dept. of Sport Sciences and Physical Mr. H.A.C.S. Hapuarachchi

Education

FACULTY BOARD

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Rathnayake
Ms. A.K.A.S. Amarasinghe

Members
Prof. I.K.Perera -

Prof. C.P. Udawatte -

Dr. H.K.S. Amarakeerthi

Mr. M.C.N. Jayasooriya -

Dr. J.M.C.K. Jayawardhane -
Dr. EM.U.W.J.B. Ekanayake-
Mr. H.A.C.S. Hapuarachchi -

Mr. S. Vasanthapriyan

Mr. R.K. Ahmadh Rifai

Mr. R.K.A.R. Kariapper -

Dr. S.K. Gunathilake -
Dr. E.P.N. Udayakumara -
Dr. M.S.J. Perera -
Dr. C.H. Baduraliya -

Dr. M.N. Wickramaratne

Dr. G.M.L.P. Aponsu -

Dr. E. P. Kudavidanage
Dr. L. V. Ranaweera -
Dr. M.D. Ranaweera -

B.Sc. (Hons)( Jayawardenepura)
M.Sc. (Peradeniya)
(From 01.09.2015 to date)

Dr. S.J. Perera

B.Sc. (Hons) Natural Resources
(SUSL),

Ph.D. (KwaXulu-Natal, South Africa)
(From 01.09.2014 to 31.08.2015)

Dean (Chairman)
Assistant Registrar (Secretary)

Professor of Physics / Dept. of Physical Sciences
and Technology

Professor of Chemistry / Dept. of Physical
Sciences and Technology

Head /Dept of Computing and Information
Systems

Head / Dept. of Food Science & Technology

Head /Dept. of Natural Resources

Head /Dept. of Physical Sciences and Technology
Head /Dept. of Sport Sciences and Physical
Education

Senior Lecturer /Dept. of Computing and
Information Systems

Senior Lecturer (Temporary)/Dept. of Computing
and Information Systems

Senior Lecturer /Dept. of Computing and
Information Systems

Senior Lecturer /Dept. of Natural Resources
Senior Lecturer/Dept. of Natural Resources
Senior Lecturer/Dept. of Natural Resources
Senior Lecturer/ Dept. of Physical Sciences and
Technology

Senior Lecturer/ Dept. of Physical Sciences and
Technology

Senior Lecturer/ Dept. of Physical Sciences and
Technology

Senior Lecturer/ Dept. of Natural Resources
Senior Lecturer/ Dept. of Natural Resources
Senior Lecturer/Dept. of Sport Sciences and
Physical Education
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Dr. W.S.M. Senevirathne -

Ms. R.S. Sabaragamuwa

Mr. A.L.C.J. Liyanage

Ms. K.M. Somawathi -

Mr. A\W.S. Chandana

Mr. S. Sriharan -
Ms. L.R.N.D. Weerarathna -
Ms. C.N. Hettiarachchi -

Mr. P.D.C. Silva -

External Members

Prof. P. Marasinghe -
Dr. A.L.T. Hewawasam -
Dr. A.M.A.N.B. Attanayake -

PERMANENT STAFF

Professor

Senior Lecturer/ Dept. of Food Science and
Technology

Senior Lecturer/ Dept. of Food Science and
Technology

Senior Lecturer/ Dept. of Food Science and
Technology

Senior Lecturer/ Dept. of Food Science and
Technology

Lecturer/Dept. of Sport Sciences and Physical
Education

Lecturer (Prob.) / Dept. of Food Science and
Technology

Lecturer (Prob.)/Dept. of Sport Sciences and
Physical Education

Instructor/ Dept. of Computing and Information
Systems

Instructor / English Language

External Faculty Board member
External Faculty Board member
External Faculty Board member

Prof. I.K. Perera

B.Sc. in Physics. CMB, PhD in Laser
Physics. University of Hull England

Prof. C.P. Udawatte

B.Sc. PDN, M.Phil in Chemistry. PDN, PhD
in Chemical Sciences PDN

Prof. R.M.U.S.K. Ratnhayake

B.Sc. (Sp) (Ruhuna), M.Sc. (Peradeniya), PhD
(AJT)

Senior Lecturer (Grade I)

Dr. J.M.C.K. Jayawardane

(Ballarat, Australia)

Dr. G.M.L.P. Aponsu

Ph.D. (SJP)

Dr. M.N. Wickramaratne

GI Chem (SL), PhD(USA)

Dr. S.K. Gunatilake

in Environmental Sciences (Pera), Ph.D.
Environmental Sciences (Saga, Japan)

Dr. M.D. Ranaweera

Ed.D. in H/PE (Australia)
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B.Sc. (Sp) (Hons) (SJP), MPhil (Peradeniya), Ph.D.

B.Sc.(sp) (Hons) (Colombo),M.Phil.(Colombo),

B.Sc. (Physical Sciences) Honors (Ruhuna), M.Sc.

BA. Hons (Peradeniya), M,Ed. In H/PE(Australia),




Senior Lecturer (Grade II)

Dr. E.P.N. Udayakumara

B.Sc. (Sp) (Hons) (Ruhuna), M.Sc. (SJP), Ph.D.
AIT,(Thailand)

Dr.

J.B. Ekanayake

B.Sc. (Hons) (Peradeniya), M.Sc. (Peradeniya),
Ph.D. (Zurich, Switzerland)

Dr.

C.H. Baduraliya

B.Sc. (Special) (Hons)(SJP), M.Sc. (Peradeniya),
Ph.D. (UK)

Dr.

E.P. Kudavidanage

B.Sc. (Sp) (Hons) (Colombo), M.Sc.
(Colombo), PhD (NUS, Singapore)

Dr.

H.K.S. Amarakeerthi

B.Sc. (SUSL), M.Sc. (Peradeniya), Ph.D. (Aizu-
Japan)

Dr.

L. V. Ranaweera

B.Sc. (Hons)(Geology)(Peradeniya), M.Phil.
(Geology) (Peradeniya), Ph.D. (Geochemistry)
(Okayama, Japan)

Dr.

W.S.M. Senevirathne

B.Sc. (OUSL), M.Sc. (South Korea), Ph.D. (South
Korea)

B.Sc. (Hons) (Applied Sciences - N.R.)(SUSL),
M.Sc. (Biodiversity & Integrated Environmental

Dr. M.S.J. Perera Management (Kelaniya), Ph.D.
(Biogeography)(KwaZulu-Natal, Durban, South
Africa)

Ms. R. Sabaragamuwa B.Sc. (Special), M.Phil. (Peradeniya)

. K.M. Somawathie

B.Sc. (Per), M.Sc. (Kelaniya)

. A.L.C.J. Liyanage

B.Sc. (Sp)(SUSL), M.Sc. (Sweden)

. M.C.N. Jayasooriya

B.Sc. (SUSL), M.Sc. (Ruhuna), Ph.D. (Reading-
China)

. R.K.A.R. Kariapper

B.Sc. (Hons)(SEUSL), M.Sc. (Peradeniya), M.Phil

. RM.K.T. Rathnayake *

B.Sc. M.Sc.(China), M.Sc. (SJP)

. S. Vasanthapriyan *

M.Sc. (Tue) (Netherland)

Lecturer Probationary

Dr. RG.U. Jayelal Postoctoral Fellow, Suncheon South Korea
Dr. BT.G.S. Kumara E.f;a.m)(Sp) (Hons), M.Sc. (Peradeniya), Ph.D.
Mr. H.A.C.S. Hapuarachchi B.Sc. (Sp)(Hons)(SJP), M.Sc. (Peradeniya)

Ms. J.W.A. Sajeewanie B.Sc. (Sp)(SUSL), M.Phil. (Reading)

Mr. S. Thuseethan B.Sc. (Hons)(Jaffna)

Mrs. C.U. Wimalasooriya

B.Sc. (Hons)(SUSL)

Mr. A. Galappaththi

B.Sc. (Hons)(Peradeniya)

Mrs. L.D. Lekamge

B.Sc. (Sp) (Hons)(SUSL), M.Phil. (SUSL), Ph.D.
(Per)

Ms

. T.P. Liyanage

B.Ed.(NIE), M,Ed.(Colombo)

Mr. S.Jeganendiran

B.Sc. (Hons) UK
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Ms. T.S.H. Perera

B.Sc. (Sp)(Hons)(SUSL)

Mr. S. Malavipathirana

B.Sc. (Sp)(Hons)(Peradeniya), M.Phil.

Mr. S. Othlawa *

B.P.Ed.(Cuba)

Mr. S. Sriharan

B.A. (Hons)(Jaffna), M.A. (India)

Ms. H.M.N. Sarangika *

B.Sc. (Sp)(Hons)(Ruhuna)

Mr. M.G.A.N. Perera *

B.Sc. (Hons)(Colombo), M.Sc. (Colombo)

Ms. H.A.M.B. Weththasinghe *

B.Sc. (Sp)(Hons)(SUSL)

Ms. H. S. M. Soysa*

B.Sc. (Sp)(Hons)(SUSL)

Mr. A.W.S. Chandana *

B.Sc. (Sp)(Kelaniya), B.A.(Buddhist & Pali), M.A.
(Kelaniya), M.Phil (Kelaniya)

Mrs. L.R.N.D. Weerarathna *

B.Sc. (Hons)(Peradeniya)

Mr. S. Joniton *

B.P.E.S. (India), M.P.Ed. (India), M.Phil. (India)

Mr. J. Luxman *

B.P.E. (India), M.P.E. (India)

Mrs. A.A.L. Madushani *

B.A. (Sp)(Kelaniya)

Ms. S. Lekamge *

B.Sc. (Hons)(Peradeniya), M.Sc. (Japan)

Ms. U.A. P. Ishanka *

B.Sc. (SP)(SUSL)

Ms. P. N. Jayasena *

B.Sc. (Sp)(Hons)(SLIIT)

Mrs. M. S. Karunarathne *

B.Sc. (Hons)(Peradeniya)

Mr. R.L. Dangalla *

M.Sc. (China)

Ms. T.C. Kananke *

B.Sc. (Wayamba), M.Sc. (Per)

** On sabbatical leave
* On study leave

Instructor

Mr. P.D.C.Silva (English)

BA in English (Kelaniya), BA in English & English
Language teaching (OUSL), PG. Dip. English
(Colombo), MA (Kelaniya)

Ms. C.N. Hettiarachchi (Computer
Technology)

B.Sc. (Special) (SUSL)

Mr. H.A.S.A. Appuhamy (Physical
Education)

B.Sc. (Special) (Hons) (SUSL)

TEMPORARY STAFF

Mr. N.G.D. Anuradha

Ms. Nilmini Daladawaththa
Mr. L.M.M. De Silva

Ms. R.P.T. Bhagya

Ms. D.M.S.D. Divakara

Mr. M.M.M. Mufassirin

Ms. N.R.A.M. Ruwangika
Ms. W.A.W.S. Rupasinghe
Mr. P.P. Weerakkody

Ms. D.A. Jayakody
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DEGREE PROGRAMMES

The Faculty comprises five departments, Department of Natural Resources,
Department of Physical Sciences and Technology, Department of Food Science and
Technology, Department of Computing and Information Systems and the
Department of Sport Sciences and Physical Education.

The Faculty offers B.Sc. (special) degree programmes in Food Science and
Technology, Environmental Sciences & Natural Resource Management, Chemical
Technology, Computer Science & Technology, Applied Physics, Computing and
Information Systems, Sports Science and Management and Physical Education for
the students who gain direct entry to the faculty on the basis of their performance
at the GCE (A/L) Examination. The degree programs are designed to be four year
degree programs with an exit point at three years for the students who graduate
with a general degree in B.Sc. in Physical Sciences and Technology and
Environmental Sciences and Management. The rest of the degree programs are
strictly four year degree programs.

The selection of the students for the B.Sc. degree programmes in Computing and
Information Systems, Sports Sciences and Management and Physical Education
was performed on the basis of the G.C.E. (A/L) results as well as the performance
at a selection aptitude test. The students who wish to get enrolled for the degree
programmes in Sports Sciences and Management and Physical Education were also
required to face an examination for physical fitness in addition to the selection test.
However the selection procedure has been changed by the UGC through a circular
and there will not be any further aptitude tests for the recruitment of
undergraduates for the Faculty.

All degree programs offered through the faculty are designed to cater to the current
job trends and demands both nationally and internationally. They are conducted
exclusively in English. These degree programmes are designed as interdisciplinary
by incorporating subjects as Computer Science, Economics, Management, etc. that
has facilitated our students to perform well once graduating serving a wider field
than being specific and narrowed to than specialized field.

Apart from the academic activities the Faculty also contributes to the development
of the community and the nation through extension and knowledge Dissemination
programmes. The staff and the students participate in such activities annually.

Department of Computing and Information Systems

The Department of Computing and Information Systems which offers a B.Sc.
Special Degree in Computing and Information Systems was established in O1st
March 2011, though the Degree programme was initiated back in 2008. The
curriculum is specifically designed to produce skilled graduates both in Computing
and Information Technology. At present the department has three well established
laboratories and the student capacity of the department is 273.

The demand for the above degree programme has greatly increased thorough out
the years and annual intake has reached the maximum capacity of 80 students per
batch. The Department has close collaborations with private computer industries to
obtain technical support in conducting lectures and practical as well as to provide
opportunities for the undergraduates to carry out their mini projects and final year
projects. This also has increased the opportunity for the undergraduates to secure
job opportunities immediately after graduation. The staff of the Department
consists of one senior lecturer and five probationary lecturers.
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Department of Food Science and Technology

TheDepartment of Food Science and Technology was established in 2003 though
the B.Sc. special degree in Food Science and Technology was offered under the
Department of Natural Resources since the inception of the Faculty in 1996. The
range of the study areas include Food Science Technology core, General Sciences,
Statistics, Computer Science & Technology, Marketing, Economics and courses in
career development. The degree program is designed for the students who wish to
pursue professional careers in the field of Food Science and Technology. The degree
program has been designed so that the graduates could cater to the growing
demand for Food Scientists & Technologists both in government and private sector.
The degree also paves an excellent path for postgraduate studies in related
disciplines of Food Science and Technology. At present the Department comprises
of one professor, four senior lecturer, one lecturer, two probationary lecturers and
two temporary lecturers. There are several eminent senior academics and
industrialists who contribute as visiting Professionals by conducting lectures and
practical in their specialized fields. The Department has four well equipped
laboratories namely; Food Analysis Laboratory, Food Microbiology Laboratory, Food
Processing Laboratory and Meat Processing Laboratory.

Department of Natural Resources

The Department of Natural Resources of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka
was established in 1996 offering a B.Sc. General degree in Natural Resources. The
degree program offered by this Department is designed to cater to the current job
market in the fields of Environmental Protection, Natural Resource Management
and Conservation, Biodiversity Conservation and Management, Environmental
Advocacy and Ecology both in Sri Lanka and throughout the world.

In 2006 the Degree Programme which was initially offered as B.Sc. in Natural
Resources a three year general degree program was upgraded and restructured to
offer a Degree programme as Environmental Science and Natural Resources
Management which has improved the job opportunities for the graduates.
Currently the degree program is oriented in three major streams viz. Environmental
Sciences, Conservation Biology and Earth Sciences with awarding two degree
programs as B.Sc. (Special) in Environmental Science and Natural Resources
Management — 4 years and B.Sc. (General) in Environmental Science and Natural
Resources Management — 3 years. The degree also paves an excellent path for
postgraduate studies. The staff of the department consists of one senior professor,
four senior lecturers, two probationary lecturers and one temporary lecturer. At
present two probationary lecturers are reading their Ph.D. studies overseas and the
Senior Professor at present is contributing his services to the University as the Vice
Chancellor of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. Many resource persons
in specialized fields are invited in conducting lecture and practical courses for
undergraduates.

Department of Physical Sciences & Technology

The Department of Physical Sciences & Technology conducts degree courses in
three major disciplines; namely, Chemical Technology, Applied Physics and
Computer Science & Technology. Mathematics, Statistics, and Management
Studies, Accounts are conducted as supporting tools for the programme. The staff
of the department consists of one senior professor in Physics, one Professor in

29



Chemistry, two senior lecturers, nine probationary lecturers and two temporary
lecturers. The Department offers four degree programmes namely: B.Sc. (Applied
Sciences) Special Degree in Chemical Technology (Duration: 4 years), B.Sc.
(Applied Sciences) Special Degree in Computer Science & Technology (Duration: 4
years), B.Sc. (Applied Sciences) Special Degree in Applied Physics (Duration: 4
years) and B.Sc. (Applied Sciences) Degree in Physical Sciences (Duration: 3 years).
All theoretical course units conducted by the department are heavily supported by
a practical component which provides the preliminary experience to perform
confidently. And also the Mini projects conducted throughout the third and the
fourth academic years stimulate the students' creative and innovative thinking. The
Final year project (research or industrial training) for one entire semester exposes
the undergraduates to the working environment and provides hand on experience
in industry before the graduation. The environment in the campus and the
teaching programmes were all designed in a manner to establish this goal and also
to produce specialists in their respective fields. Additionally, it is also creditable
that the Department offers the only Degree in Applied Physics in the entire
University System in the country

Department of Sport Sciences and Physical Education

Two degree programmes namely B.Sc. Special Degree in Sport Sciences &
Management and B.Sc. Special Degree in Physical Education have been awarded
since 2008 through the Faculty of Applied Sciences. The Department of Sport
Sciences and Physical Education was established in O1st March 2011. The courses
of Sport Sciences & Management degree programme is specially designed to
produce graduates with basic scientific sport skills and management skills required
for today’s teaching sports at primary, secondary and tertiary education levels and
at other industries and organizations. The degree programme in Physical Education
is specially designed to produce graduates who are competent the scientific basis of
physical education activities and practices. The duration of the degree programmes
are four years and at present there is a great demand for the degree programme
which is significantly shown by the increasing number of student intake each year
and at present the intake has reached the maximum capacity. The both degree
programmes are well supported by practical activities and projects that has
enabled to produce skilled and competent graduates within four years. The
department also has many collaborations with sports organizations facilitating the
students to participate in many national and international gaming competitions
and couching programmes. The staff comprises of one senior lecturer, four
temporary lecturers. The service of eminent sport specialist are also obtained to
conduct both practical and theory courses for the students.

ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE FACULTY

International

Department of Natural Resources

Dr. E.P. Kudavidanage

» Appointed as the Country Coordinator for the Association of Tropical
Biodiversity Conservation
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Dr. M.S.J. Perera

» Rapporteur, Session on Food, Environment and Public Health, “Challenges
beyond Food Security”, Fifth International Conference of the Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri Lanka. 19th& 20th November 2015, Colombo.

> Member of the Scientific Committee, Fifth International Conference of the
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.

Department of Sport Sciences and Physical Education

Mr. A.W.S. Chandana

» Qualified International Gymnastic Judge (FIG, Cat iv 2009)
» International Gymnastic Coach (Level 2)

Mr. S. Sriharan

» International level I Coaching in Hockey
» International level I Coaching in Table Tennis

Ms. A.A.L. Madhushani

» Awarded Olympic Solidarity Scholarship, International Olympic Committee,
February 2015

» International Olympic Postgraduates session (Represented Sri Lanka)

» International Olympic Academy, Olympia, Greece. September 2015

Mrs. L.R.N.D. Weerarathna

» Chinese Government Scholarship Awardees for master studies in 2015
Mr. S. Jeganenthiran

» Selected as Game Marker (Volunteer) for Rio-2016 Olympics

» Sri lankan Team Manager for Sabah International Athletics Championship

held in Malaysia — 2015

» Produced on athlete to South Asian Games held in India - 2016

» 04th Athletes participated at World University Games Trained held in Korea
Mr. P.P. Weerakkody

» International Table Tennis Coaching level I (Confirmation)
» International Table Tennis Federation

National

Department of Natural Resources

Dr. M.S.J. Perera
» Rapporteur, National Symposium on Biogeography and Biodiversity

Conservation in Sri Lanka in a Changing Climate. 12th& 13t November
2015. National Science Foundation. Colombo
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Dr.L.V. Ranaweera

» Member of the Teaching panel, Board of Study of Earth Sciences, Post
Graduate Institute of Science, University of Peradeniya

Department of Sport Sciences & Physical Education

Mr. S. Sriharan

» National Level I Coaching in Hockey
» National Level I Coaching in Basketball
» National Level I Coaching in Swimming

Ms. A.A.L. Madhushani

» Member of web committee and research assistance of National Olympic
Committee in Sri Lanka.

Mr. S. Jeganenthiran

» Elected as Vice President of Athletic Association of Sri Lanka

» Nominated as Director of Coaching of Sri Lanka and Field Coaches’
Association

» Talent Identification and Selection panel member nominated by Sports
Ministry

Mr. P.P. Weerakkody
» Government Service National table Tennis Champion 2015 (Age 25 - 30)

Institutional

Department of Natural Resources

Dr. E.P.N. Udayakumara

» Chairman-Higher Degree Committee, Faculty of Applied Sciences,
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.

» Chairman-Board of Study of Physical and Natural Science, Faculty of
Graduate Studies (FGS), Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.

» Coordinator-Activity (I)-QIG, Grant, Faculty of Graduate Studies,
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.

» Coordinator-Second  Stage, Faculty of Applied Sciences,
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.

» Committee Member-Research Grants Committee, Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri Lanka.

» Committee Member-Centre for Indigenous Community Studies.
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Dr. M.S.J. Perera

> Head of the Department, Department of Sports Sciences and Physical
Education, Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka (until August 2015).

» Coordinator — Centre for Biodiversity & Environmental Studies (The Green
Park), Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.

» Coordinator, Centre for Research and Knowledge Dissemination (CRKD),
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.

Dr. L.V. Ranaweera

» Co-coordinator, International Conference of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri
Lanka (ICSUSL) 2015

Personal

Department of Natural Resources

Dr. E.P.N. Udayakumara

» Invited talk on “Soil Degradation and Soil Management in
Samanalawewa Catchment Sri Lanka”. United Nations Environment
Programme (UNEP), 2015.

Dr. M.S.J. Perera
> Invited talk on “The Biogeography and Conservation in Sri Lanka”.
Palaeobiodiversity Fellowship of Sri Lanka, Postgraduate Institute of

Archaeology, University of Kelaniya. 19th December 2015.

Department of Sport Sciences and Physical Education

Ms. A.A.L. Madhushani
» Granted NCAS Grant 2015/2017 for Master Degree

Mrs. L.R.N.D. Weerarathna

» Chinese Government Scholarship Awardees for master studies in year 2015
Mrs. H.A.C.S. Hapuarachchi

» M.Sc. Completed in September 2015

RESEARCH AND PUBLICATION

International

Department of Computing and Information Systems

Mr. R.K.A.R. Kariapper

1. R.K.A.R. Kariapper, Prasad M Jayaweera “Dynamic Essential Modeling of
Organization (DEMO) Towards the Legal Domain (February 25,2015)”
Available at SSRN: http://ssrn.com/abstract=2607921 or
http://dx.doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.2607921
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Mr. S. Vasanthapriyan

1.

2.

Social media as a new trend in Sri Lankan digital journalism: A surveillance
S Thuseethan, S Vasanthapriyan - Asian Social Science, 2015

A Survey on Knowledge Management in Software EngineeringS
Vasanthapriyan, J Tian, J Xiang - Software Quality, Reliability and
Security-Companion

. Prediction of Human Flow in Disaster Situations: A Multi-agent Based

Modelling and SimulationS Vasanthapriyan, S Thuseethan - 2015 2nd
International Symposium on Dependable, 2015

. Meta-model for Collaboration Modeling in Legal SectorS Vasanthapriyan,

RPT Bhagya, P Jayaweera - International Journal of multidisciplinary
Studies, 2015

. Multi-Layer Framed Offline Signature Recognition Algorithm WU

Wickramaarachchi, 8 Vasanthapriyan - Journal of Image and Graphics,
2015

Spider-web topology: A novel topology for parallel and distributed computing
S Thuseethan, S Vasanthapriyan - and Communication Technology
(ICoICT), 2015 3rd, 2015

Social Media as a New Trend in Sri Lankan Digital Journalism: A Study S
Thuseethan, § Vasanthapriyan - [UP Journal of Information Technology,
2015

. Multi-agent based ocean-transport and traffic controlling system: A

simulation S Thuseethan, S Vasanthapriyan - Information Technology:
Towards New Smart World , 2015

. Sentimental Analysis Based on Sinhala Language Social Media UpdatesS

Vasanthapriyan - 2015

Dr. B.T.G. Samantha Kumara

Publications
Journal

1.

T. H. A. S. Siriweera, Incheon Paik, B. T. G. S. Kumara and C. K. Koswatta,
"Architecture for Intelligent Big Data Analysis based on Automatic Service
Composition", International Journal of Big Data (IJBD), Vol. 2, No. 2, pp. 1-
14, 2015.

. K. R. C. Koswatte, I. Paik, W. Park and B. T. G. S. Kumara, “Innovative

Product Design using Metaontology with Semantic TRIZ”, International
Journal of Information Retrieval Research (IJIRR), Vol. 5, No. 2, pp. 43-65,
2015.

. B. T. G. S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, Hiroki Ohashi, Yuichi Yaguchi and

Wuhui Chen, “Context-Aware Web Service Clustering and Visualization,”
International Journal of Web Services Research (JWSR), (accepted).

B. T. G. S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, K. R. C. Koswatte and Wuhui Chen,
“Improving Web Service Clustering through Post Filtering to Bootstrap the
Service Discovery,” International Journal of Services Computing (IJSC), Vol.
2, No. 3, pp. 1 - 13, 2014.

. B. T. G. S. Kumara, I. Paik, W. Chen and K. Ryu, “Web Service Clustering

using a Hybrid Term-Similarity Measure with Ontology Learning,”

International Journal of Web Services Research (JWSR), Vol. 11, No. 2, pp.
24 - 45, 2014.
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https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=3705399926801227632&btnI=1&hl=en
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=3705399926801227632&btnI=1&hl=en
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=10352189670916852373&btnI=1&hl=en
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=7821715293935523603&btnI=1&hl=en
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=12133604267478033241&btnI=1&hl=en
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=10062159908890124707&btnI=1&hl=en
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=1188118425661974823&btnI=1&hl=en
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=1188118425661974823&btnI=1&hl=en
https://scholar.google.com/scholar?oi=bibs&cluster=5843904432154790945&btnI=1&hl=en

6. B. T. G. S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, Wuhui Chen, "Extract Features from
WSDL Documents to Cluster Web Services with Ontology Learning", JCIT:
Journal of Convergence Information Technology, Vol. 8, No. 5, pp. 920 - 929,
2013.

7. B. T. G. S Kumara and AAI Perera, “Automated System For Nurse
Scheduling Using Graph Coloring,” Indian Journal of Computer Science and
Engineering, Vol. 2, pp. 476-485, 2011.

Book Chapter

1. I. Paik, W. Chen, B. T. G. S. Kumara, T. Tanaka, Z. Li, and Y. Yaguchi,
“Linked data-based service publication for service clustering,” In Advanced
in Computer Science and its Applications, Springer Berlin Heidelberg, pp
1429-1435, 2014.

Conferences

1. B. T. G. S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, T. H. A. S. Siriweeraand K. R. C.
Koswatte, “Cluster-Based Web Service Recommendation,” IEEE International
Conference on Service Computing, San Francisco, U.S.A, June-July, 2016.

2. T. H. A. S. Siriweera, Incheon Paik, Jia Zhang, and B. T. G. S. Kumara, “Big
Data Analytic Service Discovery using Social Service Network with Domain
Ontology and Workflow Awareness,” IEEE International Conference on Web
Services, San Francisco, U.S.A, June-July, 2016.

3. R. A. H. M. Rupasingha, Incheon Paik and B. T. G. S. Kumara, "Calculating
Web Service Similarity using Ontology Learning with Machine Learning,"
2015 IEEE International Conference on Computational Intelligence and
Computing Research(ICCIC), India, December 2015.

4. T. H. A. S. Siriweera, Incheon Paik, B. T. G. S. Kumara, Onotology-Based
Service Discovery for Intelligent Big Data Analytics, IEEE International
Conference on Awareness Science and Technology (iCAST 2015),
Qinhuangdao, China, Sep. 2015.

5. T. H. A. S. Siriweera,Incheon Paik, B. T. G. S. Kumara, and K. R. C.
Koswatte, “Intelligent Big Data Analysis Architecture based on Automatic
Service Composition,” IEEE Services Visionary Track on Big Data, USA,
June 27-July 2, 2015.

6. B. T. G. S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, Jia Zhang, T. H. A. S. Siriweera, K. R. C.
Koswatte, “Ontology-Based Workflow Generation for Intelligent Big Data
Analytics,” . IEEE International Conference on Web Services (ICWS2015),
USA, June 27-July 2, 2015.

7. Wuhui Chen, B. T.G.S. Kumara, Incheon Paik and Zhenni Li, “A Topology-
aware Optimal Data Allocation Algorithm for Big Data Infrastructure,” IEEE
BigDataService 2015, USA, March 30 — April 2, 2015.

8. K. R.C. Koswatte, I. Paik, B. T. G. S. Kumara, T.H.A.S. Siriweera, “Meta-
Ontology for Innovative Product Design with Semantic TRIZ,” IEEE 2015
International Conference on Electrical and information Technologies
(ICEIT2015), Morocco, March 25-27, 2015.
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9. B. T. G. S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, K. R. C. Koswatte and Wuhui Chen,
"Ontology Learning with Complex Data Type for Web Service Clustering,"
IEEE Symposium on Computational Intelligence and Data Mining, USA, Dec
9-12, 2014.

10.B. T. G. S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, K. R. C. Koswatte and Wuhui Chen,
"Recommendation for Web Services with Domain Specific Context
Awareness," IEEE Symposium on Computational Intelligence and Data
Mining, USA, Dec 9-12, 2014.

11.K.R.C. Koswatte, Incheon Paik and B.T.G.S. Kumara, "Meta-Framework for
Semantic TRIZ," IEEE Symposium on Independent Computing, USA, Dec 9-
12, 2014.

12.B.T.G.S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, Hiroki Ohashi, Wuhui Chen, K. R. C
Koswatte, “Context Aware Post-Filtering for Web Service Clustering,” in Proc.
IEEE International Conference on Service Computing(SCC), USA, June 27-
July 2, 2014.

13.B.T.G.S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, Yuichi Yaguchi, Hiroki Ohashi, Wuhui
Chen, “Context Aware Filtering and Visualization of Web Service Clusters,”
in Proc. IEEE International Conference on Web Services(ICWS2014), USA,
June 27-July 2, 2014.

14.B.T.G.S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, Yuichi Yaguchi, Hiroki Ohashi, “Web
Service Filtering and Visualization with Context Aware Similarity to
Bootstrap Clustering,”in Proc. 5t IEEE International Conference on
Awareness Science and Technology (iCAST), Japan, Nov2-4, 2013.

15.Hiroki Ohashi, Incheon Paik, B.T.G.S. Kumara, “Calculating Word Similarity
for Context Aware Web Service Clustering,” in Proc. 5th [EEE International
Conference on Awareness Science and Technology (iCAST), Japan, Nov2-4,
2013.

16.B.T.G.S. Kumara, Incheon Paik,Wuhui Chen, “ Web Service Clustering with
Hybrid of Ontology Learning and Information Retrieval Based Term
Similarity,” in Proc. IEEE International Conference on Web Services(ICWS),
USA, June 27-July 2, 2013.

17.B.T.G.S. Kumara, Incheon Paik , Yuichi Yaguchi, Wuhui Chen, “ Clustering
and Spherical Visualization of Web Services,” in Proc. IEEE International
Conference on Service Computing(SCC), USA, June 27-July 2, 2013.

18.W. Chen, I. Paik, T. Tanaka, B.T.G.S. Kumara, “Awareness of Social
Influence for Service Recommendation,”in Proc. IEEE International
Conference on Service Computing(SCC), USA, June 27-July 2, 2013.

19.Wuhui Chen, Incheon Paik, B.T.G.S Kumara, Takazumi Tanaka and Junbo
Wang, “Awareness of Social Influence on Linked Social Service, IEEE
International Conference on Cybernetics,” Switzerland , june 12-15, 2013.

20.B. T.G. S. Kumara, Incheon Paik, G. Lee, “Ontology Learning Method for
Web Services Clustering,” in Proc 7t International Conference on Computer
Sciences and Convergence Information Technology (ICCIT2012), Seoul
,South Korea, Dec 3-5, 2012.
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Mr. S. Thuseethan

IEEE Sponsored Conferences

1. Thuseethan, S. & Vasanthapriyan, S. (Presented in DCIT-2015, IEEE),
Prediction of Human Flow in Disaster Situations: A Multi-Agent Based
Modeling and Simulation

2. Thuseethan, S., & Vasanthapriyan, S. (2015, May). Spider-webtopology:
Anoveltopology for parallel and distributed computing. In Information and
Communication Technology (ICoICT), 2015 3 International Conference on
(pp-34-38). IEEE.

3. Thuseethan, S. , & Vasanthapriyan, S. (2015, February). Multi-agent based
ocean-transport and traffic controlling system: Asimulation. In Information
Technology: Towards New Smart World (NSITNSW), 2015 5% National
Symposium on (pp.1-5). IEEE.

Journal Articles (Indexedin Scopus)

1.

Thuseethan, S. , & Vasanthapriyan, S. (2015). Social media as a new trend in
Sri Lankan digital journalism: Asurveillance. Asian Social Science,11(10),p86.

Other Conferences

1.

Thuseethan, S. , & Kuhanesan, S. (2014). Theoretical and Laboratical
Supportive Learning Toolkit for Refraction of Light in Different Mediums. In
Wayamba  International Conference, @ Wayamba  University of  Sri
Lanka.Wayamba University of Sri Lanka.

. Thuseethan, S., & Vasanthapriyan, S. (2014). Influence of Human Computer

Interaction in Learning Management System. In Proceedings of the
International Symposium on ICT for Environmental Sustainability (p.67).
University of Keleniya.

. Thuseethan, S., & Ketheesan, T. (2013). A Novel Topology for Parallel

Computing. SL-SWCS 2013.

Journals (Peer Reviewed)

1. Thuseethan, S., & Vasanthapriyan, S. (2015). Mobile Social Media for Sri
Lankan Public and Private Higher Educational Institutions. Developing
Country Studies, 5 (2), 42-48.

2. Wickramasooriya, P.M.T.A., & Thuseethan, S. (2015). Understanding Radio
Frequency Identification Technology: Usage and Integration with Mobile
Devices. Available at SSRN2615527.

3. Thuseethan, S. (2014). Department Management System for Departments
Of Sri Lankan Universities International Journal Of Scientific & Technology
Research, 3(6),173-175..

4. Thuseethan, S., & Kuhanesan, S. (2014). Effective Use of Human Computer
Interactionin Digital Academic Supportive Devices. International Journal of
Science and Research, 3(6),388-392.

5. Thuseethan, S., & Kuhanesan, S. (2014). Eigenface Based Recognition of
Emotion Variant Faces. Computer Engineering and Intelligent Systems,
5(7),31-37.

6. Thuseethan, S., & Kuhanesan,S.(2014). Influence of Facebook in Academic
Performance of Sri Lankan University Students. Global Journal of Computer
Science and Technology,14(4).
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7. Thuseethan, S., & Vasanthapriyan, S. (2015). Social Media as a New Trend
in Sri Lankan Digital Journalism: A Study. IUP Journal of Information
Technology, 11(1).

8. Thuseethan, S., & Kuhanesan, S. (2014). Positive and Negative Impacts of
Facebook on University Students: Sri Lankan Perspective. IUP Journal of
Information Technology,10(3),7.

Department of Food Science and Technology

» Chatudina J. Liyanage, Dalukdeniya C.K , Imran M.U.M and
Pirasanna J. (2015) Food Safety related risk factors of street food
vending : a case study from Sri Lanka ,6%h International
Conference on Food Factors, Seoul ,Korea

» Risna H.F, Chathudina J. Liyanage, Pallpane K.B and Kariawasam
C. (2015) Prototype development and commerclalization of instant
rice products: a feasibility study, 6t International conference on
Food Factors, Seoul, Korea

Sajiwanie J.W.A and Rathnayaka R.M.U.S.K (2016)
» Investigation of Nutritional Value of selected Sri Lanka Traditional
Root and Tubers. Sch. Acad. J. Biosci, PP 656-660, DOI:10.2127/
sajb.2016.4.8.10

Department of Natural Resources

Dr. E.P.N. Udayakumara

> Publication-
Impacts of Agricultural Practices on Water Quality in Uma Oya
Catchment Area in Sri Lanka-W Gunawardhana, J Jayawardhana, EPN
Udayakumara-international Conference of Sabaragamuwa University of
Sri Lanka 2015 (ICSUSL 2015)-Procedia Food Science (Vol. 6, 2016, pp
339-343).

> Manuscript Reviewer-Anthropocene-Elsevier Publishing Company

» Manuscript Reviewer-Natural Hazard- Springer Journals

Dr. J.M.C.K. Jayawardana
» J.M.C.K Jayawardana (2015). A novel littoral habitat from a riparian
invader: Implications on stream secondary production and riparian
management. The Victorian Naturalist 132 (4) 96-107

Dr. S.K. Gunathilake

International index journal impact factor 1.76

» Ruvini Rubasinghe, S.K. Gunatilake, and Rohana Chandrajith
(2015). Geochemical characteristics of groundwater in different
climatic zones in Sri Lanka, Environmental Earth Sciences,
ISSN:1866-6299, v74(4), pp3067-3076, DOI 10.1007/s12665-015-
4339-1.

» S.K. Gunatilake (2015). Methods of removing heavy metals from
industrial wastewater. Journal in multidisciplinary engineering
science studies, ISSN:2912-1309, V1(1),pp12-18.
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Dr. M.S.J. Perera

» Proches, S., Ramdhani, S., Perera, S.J., Ali, J.R. and Gairola, S. 2015.
Global hotspots in the present-day distribution of ancient animal and plant
lineages. Scientific Reports, 5, 15457. http://doi.org/10.1038/srep15457.
Priyadarshana, T.S. and Perera, S.J. 2015. Adenomus kelaartii (kelaart’s
dwarf  toad). Predation. In Natural History Notes: Anura-
Frogs.Herpetological Review46: 611.

Dr. R.G.U. Jayalal

» Jayalal, U., Oh, S.0., Park, J.S., Sung, J.H., Kim, S.H. & Hur, J.S. (2015).
Evaluation of air quality using lichens in three different types of forest in
Korea. Forest Science & Technology. Ppl1-8 DOI:
10.1080/21580103.2014.1003983.

» Yang, Y., Park, S.Y., Nguyen, T.T., Yu, Y. H.,, Nguyen, T.V., Sun, E.G.,
Jayalal, U., Jeong, M.H., Pereira, I, Moon, C., Ha, H.H., Kim, K.K., Hur,
J.S., and Kim, H (2015). Lichen Secondary Metabolite, Physciosporin,
Inhibits Lung Cancer Cell Motility. PLoOSONE10(9):e0137889.d0i:10.1371/
journal.pone.0137889

Department of Physical Sciences and Technology

Dr. G. M. L. P. Aponsu

1. L. M. M. De Silva, G. M. L P. Aponsu, V. P. S. Perera, 1. K. Perera, and
A. C. P. K. Siriwardhana “Suppression of recombination channels of
dye-sensitized photo electro-chemical solar cells made from SnO; films
by incorporation of ZrO: ultra thin barrier” submitted to the
‘International Journal of Thin Solid Films’

Mr. R.M K.T. Rathnayaka
Refereed index journals Publications

1. RM Kapila Tharanga Rathnayaka, DMKN Seneviratna, Wei Jianguo,
“Grey system based novel approach for stock market forecasting”,
Grey Systems: Theory and Application, 5(2), 178-193, 2015, Emerald
Group Publishing Limited.

2. Hasitha Indika Arumawadu, RM Kapila Tharanga Rathnayaka, SK
[llangarathne, “K-Means Clustering For Segment Web Search Results”,
International Journal of Engineering Works, 2(8), 79-83, 2015,
kwpublisher.com.

3. Hasitha Indika Arumawadu, RM Kapila Tharanga Rathnayaka, SK
[Nlangarathne, “Mining Profitability of Telecommunication Customers
Using K-Means Clustering”, Journal of Data Analysis and Information
Processing, 3(3), 63, 2015.
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Published as full ConferencePublications

1. RM. Kapila Tharanga Rathnayaka, D.M.K.N Seneviratne, Wei
Jianguoand Hasitha Indika Arumawadu, “A Hybrid Statistical
Approach for Stock Market Forecasting Based on Artificial Neural
Network and ARIMA Time Series Models”, The 2nd International
Conference on Behavioral, Economic and Socio-Cultural Computing
(BESC2015-1EEE), Nanjing, China, 2015.
http:/ /besc2015.njue.edu.cn

Published as an abstract Publications
1. R.M Kapila Tharanga Rathnayaka and Wei Jianguo, “A Vector Error
Correction Modelling Approach Towards Exchange Rate Volatility in
CSE”, International Research Conference on Systems Engineering and
Management Science 2015 (IRC-SEMS2015), Wuhan University,
Wuhan, China., 2015.

Awards
1. Presidential Award for Outstanding Contributions, Wuhan University
of Technology, Wuhan, China.
2. Chinese Scholarship Award for Outstanding student of the year,
Wuhan University of Technology, Wuhan, China.

Department of Sport Sciences and Physical Education

Mr. Sriharan
» Pre Competition anxiety level among junior Rugby Football Team players Sri
Lankan Perspective
» Impact of Physical Activity and Academic Performance on Grade Five
Students

National

Department of Food Science and Technology

Ms. K.M. Somawathie.
» A comparative study on antioxidant and DNA protective activity of
different skin coloured brinjal (Italics). Procedia Food
Science (2016) pp.117-122

Department of Natural Resources

Dr. E.P. Kudavidanage
» Population Ecology of the montane leopard at the Horton Plains National
Park, collaborative study with the National University of Singapore and
the Department of Wildlife Conservation Sri Lanka
» An assessment of the status of the wildlife protected areas of Sri Lanka
(2015-2017). Collaborative study with the Department of Wildlife
Conservation Sri Lanka
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Abstract and poster publication (International)

Conservation Asia 2016 — Singapore

» Bridging the gap: converting data into wildlife crime control
migratory measures
Nanayakkara, SI, Kudavidanage, EP, Amarasinghe, R. & Marasinghe, R

» Reading between the (data) lines: what stands in the path of
wildlife crime control?
Kudavidanage, EP, Nanayakkara, SI, Amarasinghe, R. & Marasinghe, R

» Genetic and phenotypic divergence in Zosterops white eyes along
a dry elevation gradient in Sri Lanka
Fathima Zohara Rafi, E. P. Kudavidanage, Sampath Senevirathne

Journal article
» Keeragalaarachchi K.A.G.P., R.M. Dharmadasa- ,Wijesekara R.G.S., Enoka P
Kudavidanage (2016).Natural Antidiabetic Potential of Salacia chinensis L.
(Celastraceae) Based on Morphological, Phytochemical, Physico-chemical
and Bioactivity: A Promising Alternative for Salacia reticulate. World Journal
of Agricultural Research Vol. 4, No. 2, 2016

Dr. M.S.J. Perera
» Perera, S.J., Ramdhani, S., Proches, S., and Ratnayake-Perera, D. 2015.
New biogeographic insights for partitioning of Sri Lanka: a preliminary
attempt of a numerical regionalization. National Symposium on
Biogeography and Biodiversity Conservation in Sri Lanka in a
Changing Climate. 12t& 13t November 2015. National Science
Foundation. Colombo. p. 10.

Dr. L.V. Ranaweera
» Member, Panel of Reviewers; Proceedings of the 30t Annual Technical
sessions, Geological Society of Sri Lanka

Dr. R.G.U. Jayalal

» Weerakoon, G., Jayalal, U., Wijesundara, D.S.A., Karunaratne, V. &Lucking,
R. (2015). Six new Graphidaceae (lichenized Ascomycota: Ostropales) from
Horton Plains National Park, Sri Lanka. NowaHedwigia, 101.

DOI: 10.1127 /nova_hedwigia/2015/0241

Department of Physical Sciences and Technology

Dr. G. M. L. P. Aponsu
» N. F. Ajward, N. R. A. M. Ruwangika, G. M. L. P. Aponsu, D. L. N.
Jayathilaka, J. C. N. Rajendra and V.P.S. Perera ‘Properties of Composite
Films Made of Tin (IV) Oxide and Silica Analyzed With Electrochemical
Techniques’ submitted to Technical Sessions IPSL(Institute of Physics Sri
Lanka Journal)

Department of Sport Sciences and Physical Education

Ms. A.A.L. Madhushani
» Identify the reasons for the misuse of ergogenic aid in national level athletes

in Sri Lanka, Symposium on Combating alcohol & Other Drugs in National
Development, Faculty of Medicine, University of Colombo, 26 March 2015
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Mr. S. Jeganenthiran

» Identifying the cricket coaches’ awareness level on prevention cricket injuries
in Jaffna District

Mrs. T.S.H. Perera

» Rare Earth Doped Apatite Nanomaterials for Biological Application,Journal
of Nanometerials, Volome 2015, Article ID 705390, 6 pages

» Quantitative Detevtion Method of hydroxyapatite nanoparticles based on
Eu3+ Fluorescent Labeling In - vivo and In vitro, ACS Applied Material
Interfaces, 205, 7 23815-23823

» A Study on the relationship between competitive state anexiety and shooting
accuracy of school level Netball shooters in Gampaha District,Sri Lanka The
IUP Journal of Skills, vol, IX, No.1,2015

» Preparation of nanostructured HAP via an ultra sound induced albumin
gelation process, The 9th International Conference on high performance
ceramics, Nov 4-7 2015, Guilin CP. R. China

» Application of Calcium Phosphate nanoparticles as drug carriers, The 9th
International Conference on high performance ceramics, No 4-7 2015, Guilin
CP. R. China

Personal

Department of Physical Sciences and Technology

Dr. G. M. L. P. Aponsu

1. Served as reviewer of the publication by M. Raja, N. Muthukumarasamy, D.
Velauthapillai, R. Balasundrapraphu, T. S. Senthil and S. Agilan (2015)
Enhanced photovoltaic performance of quantum dot-sensitized solar cell
fabricated using Al-doped ZnO nanorod electrode “Spectrochimica Acta Part A:
Molecular and Biomolecular Spectroscopy”

2. NRC Merit Award for Scientific Paper published in year 2013

. Served as a Faculty Coordinator/ Faculty of Applied Sciences related to

Technology Stream Degree Programme

w

Department of Sport Sciences and Physical Education

Mr. A.W.S. Chandana
» Research in the field of Sports Biomechanics in China

Ms. A.A.L. Madushani
» Factors Affecting Sport Participation of Undergraduates, ISBN:978 — 3- 659 —
80056 — 6 Lambert academic publishing. Saarbrucken, Germany. November
2015

Mr. P.P. Weerakkody
» Effects of work place commitment on the quality of service of housekeeping

employees in Star Class Hotels with special reference in Hikkaduwa
(Unpublished)
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6.3 FACULTY OF GEOMATICS

VISSION: To be the Centre of Excellence for teaching, training, research
and application of Geomatic Sciences for the sustainable
development of Sri Lanka

MISSION: To produce graduates in Surveying Sciences competent in
Geodesy, Hydrography and Geographic Information Sciences,
and dedicated to the management of land and ocean resources
for national development.

Members of the Faculty Board

(1) Dr.H.M. Indika Prasanna, Senior Lecture Grade I (Dean/Faculty of
Geomatics)
BSc (Hons.) Surveying Sciences, SUSL MPhil (Geodesy), SJP, PhD (Geodesy),
The Polytechnic University, Hong Kong

(2) Dr. Duminda R. Welikanna, Senior Lecture Grade II (Head/Department
of Surveying and (Geodesy)
BSc (Hons.) Surveying Sciences, SUSL MSc (Geo-Informatics), ITC — The
Netherlands, PhD (Microwave remote Sensing), Kyoto, Japan

(3) Dr. Thilantha L Dammalage, Senior Lecture Grade II (Head/Department
of Remote Sensing & Geographic Information Systems)
BSc (Hons.) Surveying Sciences, SUSL, MSc (Remote Sensing & GIS), AT,
Thailand, PhD (Remote Sensing & GIS), AIT, Thailand

(4) Dr. K.R. Mahinda U. Bandara, Senior Lecturer Grade I, Department of
Remote Sensing & GIS
BSc (Hons) Mathamatics & Statistics, SJP, HD (Hons) Surveying, ISMD, MSc
(Integrated Map & Geo-information), ITC — The Netherlands, PhD (Remote
sensing & GIS), AIT, Thailand

(5) Mrs. J.A. Swarna Jayakody, Senior Lecturer Grade I, Department of
Remote Sensing & GIS
BSc (Hons) Surveying Science, ISMD, M.Phil. (Remote Sensing), MRT FSI (SL)

(6) Ms. I.A. Kalani S. Illeperuma, Senior Lecturer Grade I, Department of
Remote Sensing & GIS
BSc (Hons) Surveying Sciences, ISMD, MSc (Remote Sensing & GIS), AT,
Thailand

(7) Mr. T. Darshaka A. Gomesz, senior Lecturer Grade II, Department of
Surveying and Geodesy
BSc (Special) Mathematics, USJP, M.Phil (Mathematics), PDN

(8) Dr.M.D. Eranda K. Gunarathilaka, Senior Lecturer Grade II, Department
Surveying and Geodesy
BSc (Hons.) Surveying Sciences, SUSL, MSc (Hydrography), UTM, Malaysia,
PhD (Hydrography), UTM, Malaysia

(9) Mr. R.M.K. G. Saman P.B. Koswatte, Senior Lecturer Grade II,
Department of Remote Sensing & GIS
BSc (Hons.) Surveying Sciences, SUSL, M.phil. (Earth Sciences), PDN

(10)Mrs. Sunethra D. Wickramasinghe, Senior Lecturer Grade 1II,
Department of Remote Sensing & GIS
BSc (Hons.) Surveying Sciences, ISMD, M.Phil, PDN
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(11)Mr. P.G.R.N. Indika Pussella, Senior Lecturer Grade II,
Department of Remote Sensing & GIS
BSc (Hons.) Surveing Sciences, SUSL, M.Phil (Earth Sciences), PDN
(12) Dr. Homindra Divithure, Senior Lecturer Grade II, Department
and Geodesy
BSc (Hons.) Surveying Sciences, SUSL, MSc (Geo-information Management),
ITC - The Netherlands, PhD (Cadastre & Land Management), The
Polytechnic University, Hong Kong
(13)Dr. Ranmalee Bandara, Senior Lecturer Grade II, Department of
Surveying and Geodesy
BSc (Hons.) Surveying  Scieces, SUSL MSc (Environment  Soil
Sciences),PDN, @ PhD  (Engineering -  Water), @ Monash  University,
Australia
(14)Dr. G. Sanka N. Perera, Senior Lecturer Grade II, Department of
Remote Sensing & GIS
BSc Surveying Sciences, SUSL, MSc (Geo - informatics), ITC-The
Netherlands PhD
(Photogrammetry & Remote Sensing), TUD, Germany
(15)Dr.H.A. Nalani, Senior Lecturer Grade II, Department of Remote
Sensing & GIS
BSc (Hons)Surveying Sciences, SUSL, MSc (Photogrammetry & Geo-
informatics), Germany PhD
(Photogrammetry), TUD,Germany
(16)Mr. P.G.Vipula Abeyratne, Lecturer, Department of Surveying and
Geodesy
BSc (Hons.)Surveying Sciences, ISMD, MSc (Photogrammetry & Geo-
informatics), HfT, Germany, MSc(SL)
(17)Dr. N.M.P. Milinda Piyasena, Lecturer, Department of Surveying
and Geodesy
BSc (Hons.) Surveying Sciences,SUSL, MSC (Land Management & Land
Tenure), TUM, Germany, BUW, Germany
(18)Mrs. A.R.R. Nishamanee Ranasinghe, Lecturer, Department of
Surveying and Geodesy
(Hons.) Surveying Sciences, SUSL, MSc (Geo-informatics), ITC - The
Netherlands
(19)Mrs. D Samanthi Munasinghe, Lecturer, Department of Surveying
and geodesy
PhD (Hons.) Surveying Sciences, SUSL, MSc (Town & Country Planning),
MRT
(20)Mrs. K.M. Surangi Bandara, Lecturer (Probationary), Department
of Remote Sensing & GIS
BSc Applied Physics (Special), SUSL
(21)Mr.K.K.D. Waruna S. Kannangara, Lecturer (Probationary),
Department of Surveying and Geodesy
BSc (Hons.) Surveying Sciences, SUSL
(22)Mr. M. Dilshan C. De S. Jayatilake, Instructor in Computer
Technology, department of Remote Sensing & GIS
BSc (Statistics & Computing), KLN
(23)Mr. Charith A. Karandana, Instructor in Surveying Sciences,
Department of Remote Sensing & GIS
BSc (Hons.) Surveying Sciences, SUSL
(24) Prof. D.A. Tantrigoda, External Member
(25) Dr. Jagath Munasinghe, External Member
(26) Mr. I.J. Gunawardhana, External Member
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NAME
THE
LECTURER

OF

ACHIEVEMENTS
(International,
National,
Institutional,
personal)

RESEARCH AND PUBLICATION (2015)
(International, National, Institutional,
personal)

Mrs. AKRN
Ranasinghe

1) Detection of Meeriyabadda
Landslide from high resolution
optical satellite data 36th ACRS
conference, October 2015 Manila
Philippines.

2) Identification of urban expansion
through GIS landsat data 36th
ACRS conference, October 2015,
Manila, Philippines.

Mrs. DS

Munasinghe

1) “Land Valuation Systems using GIS
cose study in Matara UC Area”
Bhumi, Planning Research

2) Identification of Urban Expansion
through GIS to Landsat data, 36t
ACRS conference October 2015,
Manila. Philippines.

3) Role of Spatial Science in Blooming
the Blue Economy, 2nd National
Symposium on Marine
Environment, Marine Environment
Protection Authority.

4) Integration of GIS and AHP for
suitable site selection of Domestric
wastewater treatment plant A case
study of Akkaraipaththu MC , 20t
International Forestry and
Environment Symposium
University of Sri
Jayawardhanapura, 16th and 17th
October, Sri Lanka

Dr. Duminda
R Welikanna

Invited Guest

Lecture

A lecturer on the current trends in Optical
and Microwave Remote sensing Super
Resolution Mapping, Disaster Resilience
Countries (DRC) program, Dpt of Civil and
Earth Resources Engineering Kyoto
University, Kyoto Japan

Mrs. J.A.S.
Jayakody
Senior
Lecturer Gr.I

Research paper - 8t International
Research, KDU, Sri Lanka.

Hemantha K.L.P.Jayakody J.A.S.
Siriwardena A.C.P.K.
“Development Software
Automatically plots various

profiles using Road Survey Data”

which
types of

Mr. A.C.P.K.
Siriwardhana
Instructor in
Computer
Technology
Gr.lI

Research paper - 8t International
Research, KDU, Sri Lanka.
Hemantha K.L.P.

Jayakody J.A.S.

Siriwardena A.C.P.K.
“Development/ Software
Automatically plots various
profiles using Road Survey Data”

which
types of
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6.4 FACULTY OF MANAGEMENT STUDIES

VISSION:

To be an internationally acclaimed centre of excellence in higher learning producing
dynamic leaders and nation builders to guide the destiny of Sri Lanka.

MISSON:

The Mission of the Faculty of Management Studies is “to provide a quality tertiary
education in management, encourage and cultivate the students’ creative personal
development with an innovative and practical approach to management; to
complement its blend of undergraduate and graduate programmes with skills and
competencies to satisfy the real world demands, to enrich the community with a
greater sense of diversity, to foster the ideals of teaching, learning, research and
extension services towards the contemporary development needs of the country”.

BRIEF HISTORY:

The Faculty of Business Studies commenced its programmes of study offering a
three-year degree under the Department of Accountancy & Finance & the
Department of Business Management in September 1996. After the completion of
the Foundation Year and two specialization years, a degree in Bachelor of Science
could be obtained in Financial Management, Business Management, Marketing
Management and Tourism Management. Six batches of graduate students
obtained their B.Sc Special Degrees in Financial Management, Business
Management, Marketing Management and Tourism Management and passed out in
the years 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002.

Faculty of Business Studies was renamed as Faculty of Management Studies with
the approval of the University Grants Commission (UGC) in 2003. The duration of
the Degree programmes, B.Sc. Business Studies conducted by the Faculty of
Business Studies was also changed from three years to four years with the
approval of the UGC in 2003.

DEAN/HEADS:

Dean
Dr. Wasantha Rathnayake

Heads

Dr.W.K.A.C. Gnanapala - Department of Tourism Management
Mr.D.G. Dharmarathne - Department of Accountancy & Finance
Ms.K.L.B.G. Dharmarathne - Department of Business Management
Ms.K.D.L.R. Kapuge - Department of Marketing Management
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FACULTY BOARD:

Chairman

Members

Secretary

External Board

Members

Dr. Wasantha Rathnayake

Dr. W.K.A.C. Gnanapala
Ms. K.L.B.G. Dharmarathne
Mr. D.G. Dharmarathne
Ms. K.D.L.R. Kapuge

Dr. Iraj Ratnayake

Dr. D.A.L. Dayarathne
Dr. W.M.P.S.B. Wahala
Mr. D. Jasinghe

Ms .L.D. Kalyani

Mr. R.A.G. Bandara

Ms. L.M.C.S. Menike

Mr. A.M.J. Attanayake
Mr. P.J. Jayatilake

Mr. M.S.M. Aslam

Mr. K.R.H.L. Gunasekara
Mr. P.K.S. Munasinghe
Ms W.V. De Silva

Ms. L.A.C. Sajeewani

Mr R.S.S.W. Arachchi
Mr. H.P.R. Priyankara
Mr. H.M.C.G. Bandara
Mr. R.A.C. Ushantha
Mr. T.U.I. Peiri

Ms. N.P.G.S.I Naotunna
Ms.U.C Edirisinghe
Ms.M.D.N.M.U Mahawatta
Mr. C. N. R Wijesundara
Ms. T.N. Neighsoorie

Mr.W.M.C.K.B. Wanigasekara

Mr. H. G Piyasiri

Ms. M.L.W.O.M. Karunaratne

Mr. Palitha Gurusinghe

Professor.Gunapala Amarasing

Dr. Jagath Alwis

PERMANENT STAFF/TEMPORARY STAFF:

PERMANENT STAFF:

Department of Accountancy & Finance
Mr. DG Dharmarathne, B.Sc (Financial Management) (SUSL) MBA (PDN),
Head, Senior Lecturer Grade I
Dr. DAI Dayaratne, B.Sc (Financial Management) (SUSL) MSc (SJP) PhD
(CMB), Senior Lecturer Grade I

Ms. LMCS Menike, B.Sc (Bus Admin) (SJP), MCom (KLN), Senior Lecturer

Grade I
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Mr. RAG Bandara, B.Sc (Est Mgt) (SJP), M1SSc (Econ) (KLN), Senior Lecturer
Grade II

Ms. UC Edirisinghe, B.BA (Accountancy) (CMB), Senior Lecturer

Mr. HR Sampath, B.Sc (Financial Management) (SUSL), Lecturer
(Probationary)

Mr. TUI Peiris, BSc (Financial Management) (SUSL), Lecturer (Probationary)
Mr.D.G.L.Rasika, B.Sc Insurance & Valuation (special) (WUSL), PG Dip
Business Management (WUSL), Lecturer (Probationary)
Mr.K.D.U.D.Fernando ,B.Sc Insurance & Valuation (special) (WUSL),
Lecturer (Probationary)

Mr.A.A.M.D.Amarasinghe, B.Sc Financial Management (SUSL), Lecturer
(Probationary)

Mr.H.G.Piyasiri, BA (English) (SJP), MA in Linguistics (KLN), National
Diploma in Teaching English (NIE), Instructor in English- Grade I

Department of Business Management

Ms. KLBG Dharmarathne, B.BA (Bus Admin) (RUH) M.Sc (SJP), Head, Senior
Lecturer Grade II

Mr. PJ Jayathilake, MSc (Econ) Bulgaria, M.Sc (Mgt) (SJP), Senior Lecturer
Grade I

Ms. LD Kalyani , B.Sc (Financial Management) (SUSL) M.Sc (SJP) HNDA
(Technical College), Senior Lecturer Grade I

Mr. AMJ Attanayake , BCom (Sp) (KLN) MSc (SJP), Senior Lecturer Grade II
Mr. HPR Priyankara, B.Sc (Bus Admin) (HRM) (SJP) MBA (HRM) (CMB),
Senior Lecturer Grade II

Ms. NPGSI Naotunna, B.Sc (Bus Admin) (SJP),Senior Lecturer II

Ms. JKSC Perera, B.Sc (Business Management) (SUSL),MBA (HRM) (CMB),
Lecturer (Probationary)

Ms. A.C. Jayathilaka, B.Sc (Business Management) (SUSL), Lecturer
(Probationary)

Mr.I.LA. Ekanayake, BSc (Business Management) (SUSL), Lecturer
(Probationary)

Department of Marketing Management

e Ms. K.D.L.R. Kapuge, BBA (Accountancy) (CMB), MBA (Banking and
Finance) (SJP), Head, Senior Lecturer Grade II

e Mr. D. Jasingha, B.Sc (Bus Admin) (SJP), MSc (SJP), , Senior Lecturer
Grade I

e Ms. W. Vilasini De Silva, B.Sc (Marketing Management) (SJP) MBA (KLN),
Senior Lecturer Grade II

e Ms. L.A.C. Sajeewani, B.Sc (Marketing Management) (SUSL) MBA (KLN),
Senior Lecturer Grade II

e Mr. HM.C.G. Bandara, B.Sc (Marketing Management) (SUSL),MBA
(Colombo) Senior Lecturer Grade II

e Mr. R.A.C Ushantha, B.Sc (Marketing Management) (SUSL), MA
(Marketing) (UK), Senior Lecturer II

e Ms. M.D.N.M.U. Mahawattha, BA (Sp) English Language and Literature
(SJP), MA in Linguistics (KLN), M.Phil in Linguistics (KLN), Lecturer

e Ms. Thilini .C. Gamage, BSc (Sp) Management & Information Technology
(KLN), Lecturer (Probationary)

e Mr. S. Achchuthan, B.Com (Sp) Marketing (Jaffna) Lecturer
(Probationary)
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Department of Tourism Management

e Dr. Wasantha Rathnayake,B.Sc (Sp) Botany (KLN), M.Sc (SJP),PhD (SJP) PG
Dip Wildlife Management (India), Diploma in Mass Media (Sri Lanka Media
Foundation), Dean, Senior Lecturer Grade II

e Dr. Athula C. Gnanapala, B.Sc (Tourism Management) (SUSL), M.Sc (SJP),
PhD (Xiamen-P R China), Head, Senior Lecturer Grade I

e Dr. Iraj Ratnayake, B.Sc (Tourism Management) (SUSL), M.Sc (SJP), PhD
(Utara-Malaysia), Senior Lecturer Grade I

e Dr. M.S.M. Aslam, B.Sc (Tourism Management) (SUSL), M.Sc (SJP), PhD
(Putra-Malaysia), Senior Lecturer Grade I

e Mr. K.R.H.L. Gunasekara, B.Sc (Financial Management) (SUSL), M.Sc
(Decision Science) (Utara- Malaysia), Senior Lecturer Grade II

e Mr. P.K.S. Munasinghe, BSc (Tourism Management) (SUSL), MBA (PIM-SJP),
Senior Lecturer Grade II

e Mr. R.S.S.W. Arachchi, BSc (Tourism Management) (SUSL), MBA in
Marketing (CMB), Senior Lecturer Grade II

e Dr. W.M.P.S.B. Wahala, BSc (Forestry and Environment Mgt) (SJP), M.Sc
(SJP), PhD (SJP), Lecturer

e Mr.C.N.R. Wijesundra, B.Sc. Tourism Management (SUSL), Lecturer
(Probationary),M.Sc ( CMB)

e Ms.H.JM.Y.S. Menike, B.A. (Hons) in Germen Lagunage (KLN), Lecturer
(Probationary)

e Ms. Manori Pathmalatha, BSc EcoBusiness Management (SUSL), Lecturer
(Probationary), M.Sc(CMB)

PRACTICAL TRAINING UNIT
e Coordinator - Mr.A.A.M.D. Amarasinghe, Lecturer (Probationary)
COMPUTER CENTRE/ FACULTY OF MANAGEMENT STUDIES

Coordinator - Mr. WMCKB Wanigasekara
(Instructor in Computer Technology Grade II)

M.Sc IN AYURVEDIC HOSPITAL MANAGEMENT DEGRE PROGRAMME UNIT

Coordinator — Dr. WKAC Gnanapala (Senior Lecturer Grade I)

TEMPORARY STAFF:

Department of Tourism Management

Ms.J.A.R.C. Sandaruwani, B.Sc EcoBusiness Management (SUSL),
Tutor (Temporary)

Computer Centre - Faculty of Management Studies
Ms.N.P. Samarasinghe, B.Sc Business Management (SUSL),
Demonstrator (Temporary)

Ms.A.N.K. Jayaweera, B.Sc Business Management (SUSL),
Demonstrator (Temporary)
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Department of Accountancy and Finance Management

Ms.W.A.G.C.N Wijethunga, B.Sc Financial Management (SUSL),Tutor (Temporary)

Department of Business Management

Ms. A.W. Thiranagama, B.Sc Business Management (SUSL), Lecturer(Temporary)

DEGREE PROGRAMME OF THE FACULTY

The Faculty of Management Studies comprises four departments; Department of
Accountancy & Finance, Department of Business Management, Department of
Marketing Management and Department of Tourism Management. The Faculty offers
BSc (Special) Degree Programmes in Financial Management, Banking & Insurance,
Business Management, Marketing Management, EcoBusiness Management, Tourism
Management and Hospitality Management under each department respectively for the
students who gain direct entry to the Faculty on the basis of their performance at the
GCE (Advanced Level) Examination.

Presently the student allocation for each degree programme is done through the
Faculty according to the students' preference and z-score at the beginning of the
degree programme.

Specialization programmes starts in the first year itself with the new curriculum
but there are common subjects that are taught together. The programmes run for
four years with eight semesters. Students should fulfill the four months Industrial
Training and Project Report or Dissertation in the Fourth Year Second Semester for
which six credits have been allocated. The total number of credits is 120 for each
degree programme.

The faculty of management Studies consists of four departments. Currently seven
Special Degree Programmes are being offered by these four departments. The
details of the degree programs are illustrated as follows.

Department Degree Programme(s)

Dept.of Business Management B.Sc. Business Management ( Special)

Dept.of Marketing Management B.Sc. Marketing Management ( Special)

Dept.of Accountancy & Finance B.Sc. Financial Management ( Special)
B.Sc. Banking & Insurance ( Special)

Dept.of Tourism Management B.Sc. Tourism Management ( Special)
B.Sc. EcoBusiness Management ( Special)
B.Sc. Hospitality Management ( Special)

GOALS OF THE YEAR 2015
i. Goals and Achievement 2015

Goals Status

Providing WIFI facility for Students (WIFI Zone at the Faculty | Completed
Premises )

Faculty Building Phase- II Concept Paper Preparation Completed
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Achievement- 2015
» Completed the whole process of Master of Business Administration (MBA)

proposal

= International

II.

III.

Iv.

VL

VII.

Dr. Wasantha Rathnayake, Senior Lecturer Grade II

Served as Reviewer and reviewed Research Articles of following Journal of
Science Citation Index/expanded and Social Science Citation
Index/expanded and Peer Reviewed
o -Journal of Tourism Management Perspectives (ELSEVIER)
2015/2016

A member of Editorial Board of Journal of Marine Science Research and
Technology, Clyto Access Inc.(APAC Operations) from 2015 up to now.

A member of Editorial Board of double blind peer reviewed International
Scientific Journal of Department of Wildlife Conservation, Sri Lanka
(WILDLANKA) since 2015 up to date.

Obtained the Best Paper Runner Up Award at the Tropical Tourism Outlook
Conference held in Lombok, Indonesia, 29-31 July 2015.

Dr. Athula C.Gnanapala, Senior Lecturer Grade I

A member of the editorial board of the 5th International Conference of the
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka "Challenges Beyond Food Security"
2015

A reviewer of the Journal, Current Issues in Tourism publish by the Taylor &
Francis

A reviewer and the editorial member of the American Journal of Marketing
Research publish by Public Science Framework

A Member of the Scientific Committee of the 8th Tourism Outlook
Conference "Balancing Development and Sustainability in Tourism
Destinations", Jointly organized by the Mantaram University, Northern
Arizona University, University of Technology Mara, James cook University
held in Lombok, Indonesia on July 29-31, 2015.

A reviewer of the 12th International Conference on Business Management
(ICBM) 2015, Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce, University of
Sri Jayewardenepura, held on 7th & 8th December, 2015.

A reviewer of the 5th Research Symposium of the Uva Wellassa University of
Sri Lanka held at January 28 & 29, 2014: The theme is "Value Addition for
Sustainable Development".

A member of the panel of reviewers of the International Conference on
Contemporary Management (ICCM) - 2015 '"Driving Productivity through
Knowledge and Innovation" organized by the Faculty of Management Studies
& Commerce, University of Jaffna held on June 11 & 12, 2015.

51



II.

Dr. Iraj Ratnayake, Senior Lecturer Grade I
[.  Awarded -Best Paper Presentation at 8th Tropical Tourism Outlook
Conference 2015, Lumbok, Indonesia, July 29 — 31, 20135.

II. Director — Centre for Graduate Studies, Sabaragamuwa University of
Sri Lanka

Dr. M.S.M. Aslam Senior Lecturer Grade I
Member of Scientific Committee, 8th Tropical Tourism Outlook Conference,

Session Chair, Technical Session — Tourism and Hospitality Managment,
12th International Conference on Business Management (ICBM) 2015, 7t
and 8th December 2015, Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce,

University of Sri Jayewardenepura

National

Dr. Wasantha Rathnayake, Senior Lecturer Grade II

[.Served as Environmental Economist in proposed “Ruwanpura Expressway”

L

II.

III.

Iv.

VI

VIL

VIII.

IX.

Dr. Athula C.Gnanapala, Senior Lecturer Grade I

Resource person for the workshop "Commemorating of International
Mountain Day 2015" organized by the Biodiversity Secretariat, Ministry of
Mahaweli Development and Environment on December 10 & 11, 2015 at
Kitulgala.

A resource person for the development of National Climate Change
Adaptation Plan for Sri Lanka - Ecosystems & Biodiversity and Tourism &
Recreational Section by the Ministry of Mahaweli Development and
Environment.

A resource person for the development of Manual for Review of
Undergraduate Study Programmes of Sri Lankan Universities and Higher
Education Institutions by the HETC Project, Ministry of Higher Education,
University of Grant Commission, 2015.

Visiting Lecturer, TCRM Tourism Planning, Dept. of Archaeology, University
of Kelaniya.

Visiting Lecturer, Trincomalee Campus, Eastern University.

A resource person for IHRA, University of Colombo for conducting lectures,
supervision of postgraduate students, evaluation of project reports and
thesis etc.

A resource person for the preparation for the curricular for the Bio-system
Technology (BT) degree program, Wayamba University of Sri Lanka.

A resource person for the Curriculum Revision of the Faculty of Management
Studies, Uva Wellassa University 2015.

A resource person to develop the curricular of Bachelor of Business
Administration of External Degree programme - Faculty of Management
Studies.
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X. A resource person to develop the curricular of Bachelor of Arts of External
Degree programme - Faculty of Social Sciences & Languages.

XI. A member of the expert panel to evaluate the proposed degree on Tourism &
Hospitality Management proposed by Australian College of Business and
Technology invited by the Quality Assurance and Accreditation Council,
Division of the University Grants Commission.

XII. A member of the external review committee for the Bachelor of Business
Administration (Tourism And Hospitality Management) Special Degree
Program Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce University of Jaffna

= Institutional
» Dr. Wasantha Rathnayake, Senior Lecturer Grade II
[.  Dean, Faculty of Management Studies

II.  Supervision of M.Sc. Thesis

* Dr. Athula C. Gnanapala, Senior Lecturer Grade I
I.  Supervision of M.Sc. Thesis

II. Head, Dept. of Tourism Management

III.  Programme Coordinator, M.Sc. in Ayurvedic Hospital Management
degree Programme

IV.  Faculty Coordinator, Internal Quality Assurance Unit

V.  Student Counselor

VI. Chairman of the Technical Evaluation Committee to prepare the
Tender documents and evaluate the bids to select a Cleaning Service
for the Sabaragamuwa University.

VII. Chairman of the Special Committee appointed to investigate the
disciplinary violations / actions of the students of the University in
2014.

VIII. Chairman of the Technical Evaluation Committee (TEC) of the
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka.
IX. Coordinator, Psychological

X.  Counselor, Sitharana, Counseling Center, Sabaragamuwa University of
Sri Lanka.

* Dr. Iraj Ratnayake-Senior Lecturer Grade I

I. Director Centre for Graduate Studies, Sabaragamuwa University of
Sri Lanka
II.  Proctor ,Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka

= Mr. D. Jasinghe
[.  Visiting Lecturer — Centre for Open and Distance Learning

* Dr. M.S.M. Aslam Senior Lecturer Grade I
I. Chairman, Board of Postgraduate Studies, Faculty of Management
Studies
II. Director, Centre for Knowledge and Development
III.  Chief Consultant for Ampara and Batticalo -Tourism Plant
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Dr. D.I.A. Dayaratne, Senior Lecturer Grade I
I. Director, Centre for Open and Distance Learning

Mr. Namal Wijesundara
II.  Co-ordinator of Diploma in Tourism & Hospitality Management

Mr.A.A.M.D.Amarasinghe, Lecturer (Probationary)
I.  Co-ordinator, Practical Training Unit

Personal

L.

L

Mr. R.A.C. Ushantha-Senior Lecturer Lecturer(II)
Obtained the Post of Senior Lecturer(II)

Mr. C N R Wijesundara -Lecturer (Probationary)

I. Completed the Master in Tourism Economics & Hospitality
Management

Ms. Manori Pathmalatha - Lecturer (Probationary)

Completed the Master in Manufacturing Management

4. Research & Publications

International

Dr. Wasantha Rathnayake, Senior Lecturer Grade II

L.

II.

II1.

Iv.

Rathnayake, R. M. W. (2015). Estimation of the welfare benefit of boating at
Maduganga \Ramsar wetland in Sri Lanka. Tourism Economics. 21(4), 917-
926.

Rathnayake, R. M. W. (2015). How does ‘crowding’ affect visitor satisfaction
at the Horton Plains National Park in Sri Lanka?. Tourism Management
Perspectives, 16, 129-138.

R. M. W. Rathnayake (2015). Visitor entrance fees can pay for marine turtle
conservation at the Rekawa sanctuary in Sri Lanka. Policy Brief 89-15, June
2015. South Asian Network for the Development and Environmental
Economics, Kathmandu, Nepal.

Rathnayake, R. M. W.& Gunawardena, U. A. D. P. (2015).Estimation of
Welfare Benefits for Recreational Planning: A case study in Kawdulla
National Park in Sri Lanka. In M. Aslam, J. M. Cooper, N. Othman & A. A.
Lew (Eds.), Tourism in the Global South (pp 2-27). UK: Cambridge Scholars
Publishing.

R. M. W. Rathnayake (2015). Estimating Demand for Turtle Conservation at

Rekawa Sanctuary in Sri Lanka.Working Paper No. 92-15.South Asian
Network for the Development and Environmental Economics, Kathmandu,
Nepal.
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Dr. Athula .C. Gnanapala-Senior Lecturer Grade I

L

II.

III.

Iv.

VL.

VII.

VIII.

IX.

XI.

XII.

Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. (2015). Travel Motives, Perception & Satisfaction.
Germany: Scholars Press.

Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. (2015). Strategic Planning and Management in
Developing Countries: Issues and Challenges. In H. M. Bandara (Ed.), Policy
Issues and Development, Nugegoda: A Stamford Lake Publications.
Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. (2015). Tourism in Developing Countries: Literacy
Evidences. Journal of World Development Studies, 1(2), 1-18.

Sathiyaseelan, T. & Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. (2015). Service Quality and
Patients’ Satisfaction on Ayurvedic Health Services. American Journal of
Marketing Research, 1(3), 158-166.

Fernando, K.D.U.D. & Gnanapala, W.K. (2015). Issues and Challenges faced
by the State Universities in Sri Lanka: Free or Responsible Education?
Conference Proceeding of the International Conference on Creating a
Sustainable Lens for Higher Education: The New Urgency, Sambhram
School of Management, Bangalore, India. 45 - 56.

Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. (2015). Tourists Perception and Satisfaction:
Implications for Destination Management. American Journal of Marketing
Research, 1(1), 7-19.

Buultjens, J., Ratnayake, I. &Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. (2015). From Tsunami to
Recovery: The Resilience of the Sri Lankan Tourism Industry. In B.W.
Ritchie and K. Campiranon (Ed.), Tourism Crisis and Disaster Management in
the Asia-Pacific. Oxfordshire: CBAI.

Buultjens, J., Ratnayake, I. &Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. (2015). Post-Conflict

Tourism Development in Sri Lanka: Implications for Building Resilience.

Current Issues in Tourism. 1-18.

Buultjens, J., Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. & Ratnayake, I. (2015). Sri Lanka and
Tourism: The Need for a Green Economy Approach. In M. V. Reddy&K.
Wilkes (Ed.), Tourism in the Green Economy, London Routledge.

Pathirana, D.P.U.T. & Gnanapala, W.K. A.C. (2015). Tourist Harassment at
Cultural Sites in Sri Lanka. Tourism, Leisure and Global Change, volume 2,
42 - 56.

Nayomi, G. & Gnanapala, W.K. A.C. (2015). Socio-Economic Impacts on
Local Community through Tourism Development with Special Reference to
Heritance Kandalama. Tourism, Leisure and Global Change, volume 2, 57 -
73.

Sarvananthan, T. & Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. (2015). Relationship between Job
Satisfaction and the Quality of Service: A Study on Ayurvedic Medical
Officers in Jaffna District. Proceeding, International Conference on
Contemporary Management (ICCM - 2015. 725 - 738.
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Dr. Iraj Ratnayake- Senior Lecturer Grade I

L

II.

II1.

IV.

Dr.
I.

II.

Dr.

L.

IL.

II1.

Ratnayake, I. and Hapugoda, M. Land and Tourism in Post war Sri lanka :A
Critique on the Political Negligence in Tourism.. Paper presented at 8th
Tropical Tourism Outlook Conference 2015, Lumbok, Indonesia, July 29 —
31, 2015.

Buultjens, J., Ratnayake, I. &Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. (2015). From Tsunami to
Recovery: The Resilience of the Sri Lankan Tourism Industry. In B.W.
Ritchie and K. Campiranon (Ed.), Tourism Crisis and Disaster Management in
the Asia-Pacific. Oxfordshire: CBAI.

Buultjens, J., Ratnayake, I. &Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. (2015). Post-Conflict
Tourism Development in Sri Lanka: Implications for Building Resilience.
Current Issues in Tourism. 1-18.

Buultjens, J., Gnanapala, W.K.A.C. & Ratnayake, I. (2015). Sri Lanka and
Tourism: The Need for a Green Economy Approach. In M. V. Reddy&K.
Wilkes (Ed.), Tourism in the Green Economy, London Routledge.

M.S.M. Aslam- Senior Lecturer Grade I

Aslam, M.S.M.Implications of Policies and Procedures in Sustainable
Rural Tourism Development: a Case Study of Sri Lanka, 8th Tropical
Tourism Outlook Conference 2015, Lumbok, Indonesia, July 29 - 31,
2015.

Aslam, M.S.M .Advancement of Rural Micro Entrepreneurs in Emerging
Tourism Development, 8th Tropical Tourism Outlook Conference 2015,
Lumbok, Indonesia, July 29 - 31, 2015.

D.A.I. Dayaratne- Senior Lecturer Grade I

Wijethunga AWGCN & Dayaratne DAI (2015). Time Varying Estimate of
Beta (Systematic Risk): Evidence from Colombo Stock Exchange
International Journal of Accounting & Business Finance, Vol 1(1),64-74
(Index referred )

Dayaratne DAI &Wijethunga AWGCN (2015). Relationship between Stock
Market Development and Economic Growth: War and Post War Evidence
from Colombo Stock Exchange. Colombo Journal of Multi- Disciplinary
Research, Vol 2 (2),74-87 , (Index referred )

Dayaratne DAI &Wijethunga AWGCN (2015).Impact of Psychology on
Behavioural Intention in Investing in Capital Markets: A Survey from

Colombo Stock Exchange. International Journal of Accounting & Business
Finance, Vol 1(2), 37-45. (Index referred)

IV. Dayaratne DAI & Wijethunga AWGCN (2015). The dynamic relationship

between Initial Public Offerings (IPOs) and macroeconomic variables:
Evidence from emerging stock market of Sri Lanka. International Journal
of Liberal Arts and Social Science, Vol 3(9), 76-83. (Index referred)
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II.

II.

L

II.

III.

Iv.

Ms LMCS Menike -Senior Lecturer Grade I

Behavioral factors influence on Investment Performance: A survey of
Individual Investors at Colombo Stock Exchange. Conference Proceedings of
10th Annual London Business Research Conference, Imperial College,
London, UK

L. M. C. S. Menike, P. M. Dunusinghe, A. Ranasinghe. Macroeconomic and
Firm Specific Determinants of Stock Returns: A Comparative Analysis of
Stock Markets in Sri Lanka and in the United Kingdom. Journal of Finance
and Accounting. Vol. 3, No. 4, 2015, pp. 86-96. doi:
10.11648/j.jfa.20150304.14

Mr R.S.S.W. Arachchi -Senior Lecturer Grade II
Arachchi, R.S.S.W. (2015). A comparison of Eco-Tourism Practices of Sri
Lankan Hoteliers’ with reference to the international standards. The
Journal of Tourism, Leisure and Global Change, Volume 2 -2015.
Arachchi, R.S.S.W. (2015). Comparison of Eco-Tourism Practices in Sri
Lankan Eco Resorts from Customer and Supplier Viewpoint. The
International Journal of Liberal arts and Social Science, Volume 3 (6),

2015.

Arachchi, R.S.S.W. (2015). Eco tourism Practices of Sri Lanka: A supplier
perspective analysis. The International Journal of Tourism and Hospitality,

Volume 3-2015.

Arachchi, R.S.S.W. (2015). Eco-Tourism Practices in Sri Lankan Eco
Resorts: An Analysis of Satisfaction and Behavioral Intention of Eco-
Tourists. The International Journal of Business and Social Science,

Volume 6 (10), 2015

Ms. U.C. Edirisinghe -Senior Lecturer Grade II

Edirisinghe, U. C., & Nimal, P. D. (2015). Stock Price Reaction to
Announcements of Right Issues and Debenture Issues: Evidence from
Colombo Stock Exchange. International Journal of Business and Social
Research, 5(02), 67-76.

Edirisinghe, U. C., & Keerthipala, Y. S. (2015). Factors Affecting for
Magnitude of Stock Price Reaction for Security Issue Announcements:
Evidence from Colombo Stock Exchange. International Journal of Finance
and Accounting, 4(5), 304-310.

57



III.  Edirisinghe, U.C. & Ariyawansha, M. V. T. M. (2015) Factors Associated with
People’s Reliance towards Informal Financing Methods in Rural Community
of Sri Lanka.Global Journal of Management and Business Research, 15(11).

= Ms. W. Vilasini De Silva- Senior Lecturer Grade II

I. De Silva.W.V. A Pilot exploration of consumer attitudes in Sri Lanka: an
emerging market. 14th Wuhan International Conference on E-Commerce.
July, 2015.

= Ms.H.J.M.Y.S. Menike -Lecturer (Probationary)

I.  Menike, H.J.M.Y. & Pathmalatha, K.M. (2015). Developing the Foreign
Language Competencies of Tourism Industry Oriented Undergraduates in Sri
Lankan Universities. Tourism, Leisure and Global Change, volume 2.

= Mr. H.R. Sampath -Lecturer (Probationary)

[.  Student Centered Curriculum: A higher education case study in Sri Lankan
university system. Conference Proceeding of International Conference on
creating a sustainable lens for higher education: The new urgency School of
Management, Bangalore, India. July 290-30, 2015.

II.  Significance of Past Beta Estimation to Predict Future Beta. Rasika D.G.L. &
Sampath .H.R. Conference Proceeding of 4th International Conference on
Emerging Trends in Multidisciplinary Research and Practice (SEUARS 2015).
December 22nd, Faculty of Arts, South Eastern University of Sri Lanka.

III. Impact of Credit Risk on Financial Performance of Sri Lankan Commercial
Banks. Rasika.D.G.L. & Sampath.H.R. Conference Proceeding of 4th
International Conference on Emerging Trends in Multidisciplinary Research
and Practice (SEUARS 2015). December 22nd. Faculty of Arts, South Eastern
University of Sri Lanka.

= Mr.C.N.R.Wijesundara-Lecturer (Probationary)

[.  Wijesundara,C.N.R.(2015).Difficulties and challenges associated with the
development of Home stay Tourism in Sri Lanka, 8th Tropical Tourism
Outlook Conference 2015, Lumbok, Indonesia, July 29 — 31, 2015.

II. Wijesundara,C.N.R.(2015).Community participation in tourism decision
making process of Sri Lanka,3rdInternational Research Symposium.
pPp.575-583.

= Mr.D.G.L.Rasika -Lecturer (Probationary)

I.  Rasika, D.G.L. (2015).Student Centred Curriculum;A.higher education
case study in Sri Lankan university system. International Conference on
Creating a Sustainable Lens for Higher Education.
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II.

II.

II1.

II.

II1.

Mr.K. D. U. D. Fernando- Lecturer (Probationary)

Fernando, K.D.U.D., & Athula Gnanapala. (2015). Issues and Challenges
faced by States Universities in Sri Lanka: Free or Responsible Education,
Conference Proceeding of International Conference on Creating a
Sustainable Lens for Higher Education: The New Urgency, Sambhram School
of Management, India, pp 45-56.

Ariyada, J.N.S.S., & Fernando, K.D.U.D. (2015). What Factors Improve the
Buying Decision of Bancassurance Products in Sri Lanka Insurance
Industry? International Research Symposium, Rajarata University of Sri
Lanka, pp 513-52.

Mr. A.A.M.D. Amarasinghe- Lecturer (Probationary)

Amarasinghe, AAMD (2015), Dynamic relationship between Interest Rate
and Stock prices; Empirical Evidence from Colombo Stock Exchange,
International Journal of Business and Social Science (USA), Vol 06 (04),
April 2015.

Amarasinghe, AAMD & Piyasiri HG (2015), An Analysis of Errors in Passive
Sentence Structures by University Students with special reference to
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka, International Conference on
“Creating a Sustainable Lens for Higher Education: The New Urgency”, July
29-30.

Amarsinghe AAMD (2015), Casual relationship between Macroeconomic
variables and Banking sector Stock Returns; Empirical Evidence from
Colombo Stock Exchange, International Conference on best practices in
Management in SAARC countries, December 17-18, Bangalore, India

Ms. Manori Pathmalatha - Lecturer (Probationary)

Manori, P. Kovilage. Athula C. Gnanapala. (2015). Intention of Foreign
Tourists to Stay in Eco-certified Accommodation: with Special Reference to
Sri Lanka. Paper presented at 8th Tropical Tourism Outlook Conference in
Lombok, Indonesia and published in the Journal of Tourism, Leisure and
Global Chang.

Manori, P. Kovilage. Ranasinghe, J. (2015). Factors Affect Occupational
Stress: With Special Reference to a Leading Apparel Manufacturer in Sri
Lanka. Paper presented at 4th International Conference on Emerging Trends
in Multidisciplinary Research and Practice, organized by South Eastern
University of Sri Lanka.

Manori, P. Kovilage. Vanderputt, S.K.M. (2015). Impact of Psychological
Contract on Organizational Commitment: With Special Reference to New
Universe Corporate Clothing (pvt) Ltd, Sri Lanka. Paper presented at 4th
International Conference on Emerging Trends in Multidisciplinary Research
and Practice, organized by South Eastern University of Sri Lanka.
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Iv.

II.

III.

Iv.

L.

II.

II1.

Manori, P. Kovilage. Dias, H.S.L., (2015). Factors Affecting Sewing Machine
Operators’ Turnover Intention: With Special Reference to a Leading Apparel
Manufacturing Company in Sri Lanka. Paper presented at 4th International
Conference on Emerging Trends in Multidisciplinary Research and Practice,
organized by South Eastern University of Sri Lanka.

Mr. H G Piyasiri - Senior Instructor (I)

. Amarasinghe, AAMD & Piyasiri HG (2015), An Analysis of Errors in Passive

Sentence Structures by University Students with special reference to
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka, International Conference on
“Creating a Sustainable Lens for Higher Education: The New Urgency”, July
29-30.

Ms. A W G C N Wijethunga- Temporary Tutor

Wijethunga AWGCN & Dayaratne DAI (2015). Time Varying Estimate of Beta
(Systematic Risk): Evidence from Colombo Stock Exchange .International
Journal of Accounting & Business Finance, Vol 1(1),64-74 (Index referred )
Dayaratne DAI &Wijethunga AWGCN (2015). Relationship between Stock
Market Development and Economic Growth: War and Post War Evidence
from Colombo Stock Exchange. Colombo Journal of Multi- Disciplinary
Research, Vol 2 (2),74-87 , (Index referred )

Dayaratne DAI &Wijethunga AWGCN (2015).Impact of Psychology on
Behavioural Intention in Investing in Capital Markets: A Survey from
Colombo Stock Exchange. International Journal of Accounting & Business
Finance, Vol 1(2), 37-45. (Index referred )

Dayaratne DAI & Wijethunga AWGCN (2015). The dynamic relationship
between Initial Public Offerings (IPOs) and macroeconomic variables:
Evidence from emerging stock market of Sri Lanka. International Journal of
Liberal Arts and Social Science, Vol 3(9), 76-83. (Index referred)

National

Dr.Wasantha Rathnayake, Senior Lecturer Grade II

Rathnayake, R. M. W. & Ranasinghe, K. L. K. R. (2015). Assessing the
Pricing Policy at Elephant Transit Home in Sri Lanka: A Travel Cost Method
Approach, WILDLANKA, 3(3):169-183.

Rathnayake, R. M. W. (2015).Legislative Issues in Ecotourism Development
in National Parks in Sri Lanka. WILDLANKA, 3 (2), 83-94.

Rathnayake, R. M. W. (2015). Recreational Planning: Estimation of Visitor
Satisfaction at Kawdulla National Park in Sri Lanka, WILDLANKA, 3 (1), 38-
48.
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II.

III.

Dr. M.S.M. Aslam Senior Lecturer Grade I

L.

Aslam, M.S.M .Role of Governmental and Non-Governmental
Organization in Rural Tourism Development, Evidence from Sri Lanka, in
Policy Issues and Development, Ed. H.M. Bandara, pp. 174 — 190,
Stamford Lake Publication: Colombo

Mr.D.G.Dharmarathna -Senior Lecturer Grade II

Dharmaratne, D.G. (2015).Stock Price Reaction to Stock Splits
Announcements and Information efficiency in Sri Lankan Share Market.
Proceedings of Annual Research Symposium of National Centre for
Advanced Studies in Humanities & Social Sciences Sri Lanka,74.

Dr.T.C. Gamage - Lecturer (Probationary)

T.C Gamage and F.J Ahsan, “Internet, Market Orientation and Customer
Perceived Value: An Integration and Empirical Examination”, Proceedings of
S5th Annual Research Session, Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka, Sri
Lanka, December 17th, 2015.

T.C Gamage and F.J Ahsan, “Internet-mediated Market Orientation towards
Customer Perceived Value: Empirical Evidence from Hotel Industry in Sri
Lanka”, Proceedings of Research Forum, Staff Development Center,
University of Kelaniya, Sri Lanka, January 12t, 2015.

T.C Gamage and F.J Ahsan, “Internet-mediated Market Orientation and
Customer Perceived Value: Role of Information-based Value Creation”,
Proceedings of Annual Research Sessions, Faculty of Graduate Studies,
University of Colombo, Sri Lanka, October 25th, 2015
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6.5 FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCES AND LANGUAGES

VISION:

MISSION:

BRIEF HISTORY:

DEAN/HEADS:

The Vision of the Faculty is “To be a Centre of Academic and
Intellectual Excellence for Arts Students so as to Equip Them
to Contribute Productively to the Nation in its Path to
Prosperity”

The Mission of the Faculty is “To Produce Arts Graduates
Equipped with Essential Knowledge, Specialized as well as
General, plus Intellectual Discipline, Analytical Skills and
Imagination that will Enable Them to Contribute Creatively in
Any Sphere of Employment”

The Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages had its
beginning at the same time, when the University commissioned
her study programs in 1996. The Faculty initially possessed
two Departments of studies i.e. the Department of Languages
and the Department of Social Sciences. The third Department
of the Faculty, The Department of English Languages Teaching
was initiated in 2004 while the fourth, The Department of
Economics and Statistics commenced in 2009. The Faculty
began its academic operations in November 1996 with the
intake of students from the former affiliated University Collage,
who were permitted, with their Diplomas in English, to study
for a degree after two years. The Faculty started register
students with Advanced Level qualification only from the year
1998.

The Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages prepares
students for professional careers, by providing them with a
broad understanding of the humanistic tradition in
combination with a sound knowledge of subjects in several
disciplines. Our degree programs emphasize the ability to apply
this knowledge to problems and tasks in the contemporary
world of work. We strive to develop the capacity of students in
independent and critical thought, logical analysis, effective
communication, and informed participation in teamwork.
Therefore, the Bachelor of Arts program integrates classroom
work and students' independent reading and writing with
hands on research and project work.

Dean
Dr. W. Manoj Ariyaratne

Heads:

Dr. A. Aruna Shantha Dept. of Economics and
Statistics

Ms. RW.M.P.G.I.LK. Werakoon  Dept. of English Language
Teaching

Dr. K.P.L. Nishantha Patabendi Department of Geography &
Environmental Management

Dr. R.A.D.P. Weerasekara Dept. of Languages

Dr. A. Sarath Ananda Dept. of Social Sciences
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Faculty Board:

The Faculty Board of the Faculty of Social Sciences & Languages consists fifty

members.

Chairman - Dr. W. Manoj Ariyaratne

Members -Associate Professors
Prof. M. Sunil Shantha

Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath

Prof. K. Nageswaran

Senior Lecturers

Dr. (Ms.) S.J.M.N.G. Samarkoon
Dr. (Ms.) K.V.D. E. Menike

Mr. J.K.C. Dissanayake

Mr. H. Ranjith

Dr. K.P.L. Nishantha Patabandi

Mrs. R.J.M. Uduporuwa

Dr. A. Sarath Ananda

Dr. Hiniduma Sunil Senevi

Mrs. G.K.C.S. De Silva
Mrs. R.M.L. Rathnayake
Rev. Ayagama Wijitha
Dr. S.Y. Sirithar

Dr. N.S.D. Paranavitana

[BA Hons (USJP), MA (USJP), PhD
(Pune)]

[BA Hons (USJP), MA in Economics
(USJP)]

[BA Hons (USJP), MA in Economics
(USJP)]

[BA Hons (Jaffna), MA (Jaffna), PhD
(Peradeniya)]

[MSc (Kharkov), PhD (Kiev)]

[BA Hons (USJP), MA in Geography
(USJP), PhD (USJP)]
[BA Hons (Colombo), MPhil

(Kelaniya)]
[BA Hons (Peradeniya), MPhil
(Peradeniya)]
[BA Hons (Colombo), MA in
Geography (Colombo), PhD
(Kelaniya)]

[BA Hons (USJP), Postgraduate
Diploma (MRT), MPhil (Kelaniya)]
[BA Hons (Peradeniya), MPhil
(Wuhan), PhD (NUS)]

[BA Hons (USJP), MPhil (Kelaniya),
PhD (Peradeniya)]

[BA Hons (Colombo), MPhil
(Colombo)]

[BA Hons (Kelaniya), MPhil in
Applied Statistics(Peradeniya)]

[BA Hons (Komazawa), MA
(Komazawa)]

[BA Hons (Peradeniya), MPhil
(Peradeniya), PhD (Peradeniya)]

[BA Hons (Sydney), MA (Sydney),
MA (Siegen), PhD (Bonn)]
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Dr.

Dr.

R.A.D.P. Weerasekara

A. Aruna Shantha

Mrs. D. Sundararajan

Mrs. R.P.S. Hemalatha

Mr.

S.K. Handaragama

Mrs. D.J. Jagoda

Dr.

W.N.N.K. Perera

. W.M.J. Welgama

. R.G.S. Rathnayake

. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando
. N.S Jayathunga

. A.M.I1. Gunarathna

. HA.M.A. Hapugoda
. K.R.W.K.H. Abeywickrama

. B.A.P.M.L. Pathirana
. G.C.L. Pathirana

. G.R.S.R.C. Samaraweera

Mrs. B.M.L.R.K. Basnayake

Mrs. RW.M.P.G.I.LK. Weerakoon

[BA Hons (Kelaniya), MA (JNU),
Hindi Language & Literature, Higher
Diploma (Agra), Sangeeth Visharad
(Bhathakande India), PhD (SUSL)]
[BA Hons (Kelaniya), P.G. Diploma in
Economics (Peradeniya), MSc in
Economics (Peradeniya), MSSc in
Economics (Kelaniya), PhD (UUM-
Malaysia)]

[BA Hons (Peradeniya), MPhil
(Peradeniya)]

[BA Hons (Colombo), MA (Colombo)]

[BA Hons (Colombo), MA (Colomb
[BA Hons (USJP), MPhil in Applied
Statistics (Peradeniya)]

[BSc Hons (Colombo), MSc Applied
Statistics (Limburgs, Belgium), MSc
Biostatistics (Hasselt, Belgium), PhD
(Calgary, Canad

[BA Hons (Peradeniya), MA (USJ)]

[BA Hons (Kelaniya),Higher
Diploma (Agra), MPhil in Hindi
(Kelaniya)]
[BSc Hons (USJP) MPhil
(Peradeniya)]
[BA Hons (Kelaniya), MSSc
(Kelaniya)]
[BA  Hons (Colombo), = MEcon
(Colombo]]

[BA Hons (SUSL), MA (SUSL)]

[BA Hons (SUSL), MA in TESL, PGIE
(OUSL)]

[BA Hons (Kelaniya), MA (Kelaniya),
MPhil (Kelaniya)]

[BA Hons (Peradeniya), MA (The
University of Tokyo)]

[BA  Hons (Colombo), @ MEcon
(Colombo)PhD (Colombo)]

[BA Hons (SUSL) MA in Linguistics
(Kelaniya)MPhil in English
Literature, Keele University,UK]

[BA Hons (SUSL), MA in Linguistics
(Kelaniya)]

64



Lecturers
Mr. B. Nagoda Withana

Mrs. K.S.N. Prasangani

Lecturers (Probationary)
Mrs. E.M.T.K. Senevirthna

Mr. D.A.N.S.Y. Dassanayake

Instructor

Mr. K.S. Sivayesunesa
External Members

Dr. S.U. Deraniyagala

Dr. Ariyawansa Ranaweera

Mr. M.S. Weerasooriya

On Invitation

Mr. R.M.N.B. Rathnayake

Ms. Ayaka Komatsu
Mrs. M.A.D.De.S. Weerakkody

Mr. P.K.C.M. Wijewickrama

Secretary to the Board
Mrs. A.A.S. Priyadarshanee

Student Representatives
Mr. M.P. Kumara
Mr. M.A.S. Thushira

[BA Hons (Kelaniya), Higher Diploma
in LAP (K.H.S. Agra), MA (Sivaji)]

[BA Hons (SUSL), MA in Linguistics
(Kelaniya)]

[BA Hons (SUSL), MPhil
(Peradeniya)]]
[BA Hons (SUSL)]

[BA (Peradeniya), Special Trained
Teacher, MA in Linguistics
(Kelaniya)]

Former Director General, Dept of
Achaea:
Retired Government Officer

Secretary, Provincial Education

[BSc  Hons (Peradeniya) @ MSc
(Peradeniya), MPhil (Peradeniya)]
[Kanto Gakuin University (Japan)]
[BA Hons (SUSL) Postgraduate in
Japanese Studies (Colombo)]

[BSc Hons (Ruhuna) MLS in Library

& Information Science (Colombo)]

[BA Hons (Peradeniya) MPhil in

Economics (Peradeniya)]
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ACADEMIC/ACADEMIC SUPPORTIVE STAFF OF THE FACULTY

DEAN

Dr. Manoj Ariyaratne
BA Hons (USJP), MA (USJP), PhD (Pune)

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMICS AND STATISTICS

HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT

Dr. A. Aruna Shantha (Senior Lecturer in Economics)
BA Hons (Kelaniya), MSc in Economics (Peradeniya), MSSc in Economics

(Kelaniya), P.G. Diploma in Economics (Peradeniya) PhD (UUM-Malaysia)
THE STAFF

Prof. M. Sunil Shantha (Associate Professor in Economics)

BA Hons (USJP), MA in Economics (USJP)

Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath (Associate Professor in Economics)
BA Hons (USJP), MA in Economics (USJP)

Dr. (Ms) S.J.M.N.G. Samarakoon (Senior Lecturer in Economics)
MSc (Kharkov), PhD (Kiev)

Mrs. R.M.L. Rathnayake(Senior Lecturer in Statistics)
BA Hons (Kelaniya), MPhil in Applied Statistics (Peradeniya)

Mrs. D.J. Jagoda (Senior Lecturer in Statistics)
BA Hons (USJP), MPhil in Applied Statistics (Peradeniya)

Dr. Withanage Niroshan N.K. Perera (Senior Lecturer in Statistics)
BSc Hons (Colombo), MSc Applied Statistics (Limburgs, Belgium), MSc Biostatistics
(Hasselt, Belgium), PhD (Calgary, Canada)

Mr. M.A.C.S.S. Fernando (Senior Lecturer in Statistics)
BSc Hons (USJP) MPhil (Peradeniya)

Mr. A.M.I. Gunarathna (Senior Lecturer in Economics)
BA Hons (Colombo), MEcon (Colombo)

Dr. G.R.S.R.C. Samaraweera (Senior Lecturer in Economics)
BA Hons (Colombo), MEcon (Colombo), PhD (Colombo)

Mrs. M.D.J.W. Wijesinghe (Lecturer (Probationary) in Economics)
BA Hons (SUSL), MEcon (Colombo)

Mrs. U.S. Thathsarani (Lecturer (Probationary) in Statistics)
BA Hons (SUSL)

Mrs. L.P. Himali (Lecturer (Probationary) in Statistics)
BA Hons (SUSL), MSc in Applied Statistics (Colombo)

Mr. W.A. Senathissa (Lecturer (Probationary) in Economics)
BA Hons (SUSL)
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CENTRE FOR COMPUTER STUDIES
COORDINATOR

Mr. H.M.M.A. Herath (Instructor in Computer Technology)

BSc (Colombo)

THE STAFF

Mr. R.M.N.B. Rathnayake (Senior Lecturer in Computer Technology)
BSc Hons (Peradeniya) MSc (Peradeniya), MPhil (Peradeniya)

Mr. S.P.K. Ranathunga (Senior Lecturer in Computer Technology)
BA Hons (USJP) MSc (Colombo), MPhil (Colombo)

Mr. W.R.Y.S. Samarasekara (Instructor in Computer Technology)
BSc (SUSL)

Mrs. A.C. Nanayakkara (Instructor in Computer Technology)
BSc (Colombo), MCS (Colombo)

DEPARTMENT OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE TEACHING
HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT

Mrs. RW.M.P.G.I.K. Weerakoon (Senior Lecturer in English)
BA Hons (SUSL), MA in Linguistics (Kelaniya)

THE STAFF

Mrs. B.M.L.R.K. Basnayake(Senior Lecturer in English)
BA Hons (SUSL) MA in Linguistics (Kelaniya)

MPhil in English Literature, Keele University, UK

Mrs. K.S.N. Prasangani(Lecturer in English)

BA Hons (SUSL), MA in Linguistics (Kelaniya)

Ms. U.D. Senaratne (Lecturer (Probationary) in English)
BA Hons (Peradeniya), PGD (Kelaniya)

Mr. K.S. Sivayesunesan (Senior Instructor in English)
BA (Peradeniya), Special Trained Teacher, MA in Linguistics (Kelaniya)

DEPARTMENT OF LANGUAGES
HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT
Dr. R.A.D. Priyanka Weerasekara (Senior Lecturer in Sinhala)

BA Hons (Kelaniya), MA (JNU, India), PhD (SUSL), Hindi Language & Literature
Higher Diploma (Agra), Sangeeth Visharad (Bhathakande, India)
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THE STAFF

Prof. K. Nageswaran (Associate Professor in Tamil)
BA Hons (Jaffna), MA (Jaffna), PhD (Peradeniya)

Mr. J.K.C. Dissanayake (Senior Lecturer in English)
BA Hons (Colombo), MPhil (Kelaniya)

Dr. Manoj Ariyaratne (Senior Lecturer in Sinhala)
BA Hons (USJP), MA (USJP), PhD (Pune)

Dr. Hao Weimin (Senior Lecturer in Chinese)
BA Hons, PhD (Kelaniya)

Dr. Hiniduma Sunil Senevi (Senior Lecturer in Sinhala)
BA Hons (USJP), MPhil (Kelaniya), PhD (Peradeniya)

Mrs. G.K.C.S. De Silva (Senior Lecturer in Sinhala)
BA Hons (Colombo), MPhil (Colombo)

Rev. Ayagama Wijitha (Senior Lecturer in Japanese)
BA Hons (Komazawa), MA (Komazawa)

Dr. S.Y. Sirithar (Senior Lecturer in Tamil)
BA Hons (Peradeniya), MPhil (Peradeniya), PhD (Peradeniya)

Dr. N.S.D. Paranavitana (Senior Lecturer in German)
BA Hons (Sydney), MA (Sydney), MA (Siegen), PhD (Bonn)

Mrs. D. Sundararajan (Senior Lecturer in Tamil)
BA Hons (Peradeniya), MPhil (Peradeniya)

Mr. R.G.S. Rathnayake (Senior Lecturer in Hindi)
BA Hons (Kelaniya), Higher Diploma (Agra), MPhil in Hindi (Kelaniya)

Mr. H.A.M.A. Hapugoda (Senior Lecturer in English)
BA Hons (SUSL), MA (SUSL)

Mr. K.R.W.K.H. Abeywickrama (Senior Lecturer in English)
BA Hons (SUSL), MA in TESL, PGIE (OUSL)

Mr. B.A.P.M.L. Pathirana (Senior Lecturer in German)
BA Hons (Kelaniya), MA (Kelaniya), MPhil (Kelaniya)

Mr. B. Nagoda Vithana (Lecturer in Hindi)
BA Hons (Kelaniya), Higher Diploma in LAP 400 (K.H.S. Agra), MA (Sivaji), MPhil
(Kelaniya)

Mr. D.A.N.S.Y. Dassanayake (Lecturer (Probationary) in Chinese)
BA Hons (SUSL), MA (Kelaniya)

Mrs. M.A.D.De. Silva Weerakkody (Lecturer (Probationary) in Japanese)
BA Hons (SUSL), Post Graduate Diploma in Japanese Studies (Colombo)

Ms. Ayaka Komatsu (Volunteer Lecturer in Japanese)
Kanto Gakuin University (Japan)
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DEPARTMENT OF GEOGRAPHY & ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT

Dr. K.P.L. Nishantha Patabandi (Senior Lecturer in Geography)
BA Hons (Colombo), MA in Geography (Colombo), PhD(Kelaniya)
THE STAFF

Dr. K.V.D. Edirisooriya Menike (Senior Lecturer in Geography)
BA Hons (USJP), MA in Geography (USJP), PhD (USJP)

Mrs. R.J.M. Uduporuwa (Senior Lecturer in Geography)
BA Hons (USJP), Postgraduate Diploma (MRT), MPhil (Kelaniya)

Mrs. E.IM.T.K. Senevirathna (Lecturer in Geography)
BA Hons (SUSL), MPhil (Peradeniya)

Mrs. H.M.P. Herath (Lecturer (Probationary) in Geography)
BA Hons (Peradeniya)

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SCIENCES

HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT

Dr. A. Sarath Ananda (Senior Lecturer in Sociology)

BA Hons (Peradeniya), MPhil (Wuhan), PhD (NUS)

THE STAFF

Mr. H. Ranjith (Senior Lecturer in Political Science)
BA Hons (Peradeniya), MPhil (Peradeniya), CTHE (Peradeniya)

Mrs. R.P. Shanthi Hemalatha Hettiarachchi (Senior Lecturer in Political Science)
BA Hons (Colombo), MA (Colombo), CTHE (Colombo), Diploma in Counselling
Psychology (IPS)

Mr. Saman K. Handaragama (Senior Lecturer in Sociology)
BA Hons (Colombo), MA (Colombo), CTHE (Colombo)

Mr. W.M.J. Welgama (Senior Lecturer in Sociology)
BA Hons (Peradeniya), MA (USJ)

Mrs. N.S. Jayathunga (Senior Lecturer in Sociology)
BA Hons (Kelaniya), MSSc (Kelaniya)

Mr. G.C.L. Pathirana (Senior Lecturer in Political Science)
BA Hons (Peradeniya), MA (The University of Tokyo)

Mrs. Gihani De Silva (Lecturer (Probationary) in Sociology)
BA Hons (Colombo), MPhil (Colombo)

Mr. R.C. Palliyaguruge (Lecturer (Probationary) in Political Science)
BA Hons (Peradeniya), CTHE (SUSL)

Mr. H.U.S. Pradeep (Lecturer (Probationary) in Political Science)
BA Hons (Peradeniya), MA (Bangladesh), MA (Peradeniya)
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DEPARTMENTS AND DEGREE PROGRAMMES

The Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages consists of five Departments that are
responsible for the award of Degrees, Department of Economics and Statistics,
Department of Geography & Environmental Management, Department of
Languages, Department of Social Sciences and Department of English Language
Teaching.

The Faculty offers the following degree programs:

1. Bachelor of Arts (Special) Degree (four years)
2. Bachelor of Arts General Degree (three years)

The Faculty conducts the BA General Degree program with the support of all the
Departments in the Faculty, while the BA (Special) Degrees in relevant subjects are
conducted as follows:

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMICS AND STATISTICS
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Economics
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Statistics
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Information and Communication Technology
(Offered in English Medium Only)

DEPARTMENT OF GEOGRAPHY & ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Geography

DEPARTMENT OF LANGUAGES
Bachelor of Arts (Special
Bachelor of Arts (Special
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in English
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in German
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Japanese
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Chinese
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Hindi
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Translation Studies

in Sinhala
in Tamil

— — — —

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SCIENCES
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Political Science
Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Sociology

DEPARTMENT OF ENGLISH LANGUAGE TEACHING (DELT)
The DELT offers Teaching English as a Second Language (ESL) as a major/minor
subject and English Language Courses throughout students’ university career.

GOALS

GOALS OF THE YEAR 2016

1. To update and improve curriculum to ensure that it is current, relevant and
meets global challenges

2. To strengthen research capacity and encourage further generation of
knowledge

3. To ensure that the University’s knowledge and expertise benefit the industry
and the community

4. To improve physical infrastructure and human capital
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S. To be prepared to provide human and intellectual capital required to meet
future challenges.

6. To produce quality graduates through programs of study which equip them
to obtain relevant employment

7. To develop supplementary skills of undergraduates to complement the hard
skills in their chosen discipline/s

GOALS ACHIEVED DURING THE YAER

Goal 01: To update and improve curriculum to ensure that it is current,
relevant and meets global challenges

1.

Goal

Study guides were prepared in par with the existing curriculum and
making necessary revisions to ensure it is current and relevant

. Closely collaborated with relevant stakeholders and got their feedback

on courses offered

. Accommodated the contribution of local and foreign experts

02: To strengthen research capacity and encourage further
generation of knowledge

. Academic staff was provided with sabbatical leave and vacation leave

and funds to facilitate their research.

. Enabled students and staff to participate in conferences and other

forums local and international

03: To ensure that the University’s knowledge and expertise
benefit the industry and the community

. A/L Seminars were conducted

Goal 04: To improve physical infrastructure and human capital

1.
2.

@

Goal

1.

Provided new equipments and materials.

Conducted workshops to train academic, administrative, academic
supportive and non academic staff to uplift their capacity through
Center for Staff Development

Strengthened the internal quality assurance unit.

Strengthened performance evaluation system (Teacher Evaluation
Report).

Trained academics on modern teaching methods and technical staff on
handling equipment and technical demonstrations.

Providing staff with study leave enabling them to do postgraduate
studies.

Organizing a workshop in order to enhance the competency of English
among academic staff.

05: To be prepared to provide human and intellectual capital
required to meet future challenges
First batch of students for Bachelor of Arts (Special) in Translation

Studies introduced receiving consultancy from the School of Translation
,Ottawa University, Canada was admitted
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Goal 06: To produce quality graduates through programs of study which
equip them to obtain relevant employment
1. Updated and modified relevant course units with the consideration of

feedback from the industry and other stakeholders.

Goal 07: To develop supplementary skills of undergraduates to
complement the hard skills in their chosen discipline
1. Embedded ICT applications into relevant course units

2. Included more IT components into the curricular.

3. Enhancing of latest software applications such as GIS, SPSSto the
relevant course units.

4. Organized programs and events to enhance the English language
skills of the students.

5. Teaching Sinhala and Tamil as third languages

ACHIEVEMENT OF THE FACULTY

International Achievements
1. Monbukagakusho Scholarship - 2015 awarded by the Japanese

Government's Ministry of Education, Culture, Science & Technology (MEXT)
won by the following students

Name Reg. No. University

Ms. B.M.M. Dilrukshi 11/SL/066 | Miyagi University of
Education, Japan

Ms. G.D.N. Pamuduni 11/SL/182 Nigata University, Japan

2. Scholarship for studying Hindi in India at Kendriya Hindi Sansthan, Agra
for the Academic Session 2015-2016.

Name Reg. No. University

Mr. G.H.L.H. Wijesooriya 12/SL/049 Kendriya Hindi
Sansthan, Agra

Institutional Achievements
1. The establishment of Department of Geography & Environmental Management

2. Three new course units (ESL313, ESL323, ESL326) has been introduced into
the section "Teaching English as a Second Language”.

Personal Achievements

Dr. R.A.D.P. Weerasekara

Successfully completed her PhD research study in the area of Indigenous
Studies,Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka

Dr. S.Y. Sirithar
Successfully completed her PhD research study in the area of Tamil, University of
Peredeniya
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Dr. G.R.S.R.C. Samaraweera
Successfully completed her PhD research study in the area of Labour Economics,
Department of Economics, University of Colombo

PUBLICATIONS

Department of Economics and Statistics

Dr. A. Aruna Shantha

Journal Publications

A. Aruna Shantha (2015) "Technical Efficiency of Small Scale Vegetable Growers in
Sri Lanka: A Comparison of Parametric and Non-parametric Approach" Australian
Journal of Basic & Applied Science, (AJBAS) Volume 01, Issue 36 (Indexing
Thomson Reuters)

Prof. H.M.S. Priyanath

Journal Publications

Priyanath, H.M.S. and Premaratne, S.P. (2015b) "Effect of Capital on Transaction
Cost: A Case Study of Small Enterprises in Sri Lanka", International Journal of
Arts and Commerce, Vol. 4 No. 4, pp.127-140

Priyanath, H.M.S. and Premaratne, S.P. (2015a) "Government SME Development
Programs in Sri Lanka: A Review in the Lens of Transaction Cost Economics",
Sabaragamuwa University Journal, Vol. 14 No. 01, pp.59-81

Abstract Publications

Priyanath, H.M.S. and Premaratne, S.P. (2015) "Association between Social Capital
on Transaction Cost: An Empirical Study of Small Enterprises in Sri Lanka",
Proceedings of the Annual Research Symposium, Faculty of Graduate Studies,
University of Colombo, pp.347-351

Priyanath, H.M.S. and Premaratne, S.P. (2015) "Effect of Information Accessed
Through Social Capital on Transaction Costs: A Case Study of Small Enterprices in
Sri Lanka", Proceedings of the Annual Research Symposium, National Centre for
Advanced Studies in Humanities and Social Sciences, pp.92-93

Dr. S.J.M.N.G. Samarakoon

Journal Publication

Samarakoon, S.J.M.N.G., Rasanayake, S. and Chandrasekara, D.T. (2015) "Youth
Aspiration, Social Mobility and Educational Target Achiement in Sri Lanka", Social
Affairs: A Journal for the Social Sciences, Vol. 01 No. 04, pp:1-14

Dr. N.N.K.P. Withanage

Journal Publications

Withanage, N. and de Leon, A.R. (2015) "Joint Estimation of Multiple Disease-
specific Sensitivities and Specificities via Crossed Random Effects Models for
Correlated Reader-based Diognostic Data: Application of Data Cloning", Statistics
in Medicine 34 (29), pp 3916-3928

Dr. G.R.S.R.C. Samaraweera

Abstract Publications

Samaraweera G.R.S.R.C and Ranasinghe, A (2015) "Seeking Extra Work;
Determinants of Moonlighting in Sri Lanka, Abstracts" Changing Socio Economic
Dynamics in Sri Lanka: Contexts, Culture and Imaginations, International Research
Conference, Faculty of Arts, University of Colombo
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Samaraweera G.R.S.R.C and Ranasinghe, A (2015) "Moonlighting Trends in the
Labour Market of Sri Lanka", 5" Annual Research Session, Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri Lanka

Chamali K.K.B and Samaraweera, G.R.S.R.C (2015) "The Demand for Preventive
health care during the Pregnancy (With Special reference to Galle District)", 2nd
Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of
Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Dias, S. and Samaraweera, Samaraweera, G.R.S.R.C (2015) "A Comparative Study
of Human Capital Investment of Teachers between Public and Private Schools (with
Special Reference to Kalutara District)", 2rd Annual Student Research Session on
Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages,
Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Gunawardhana A.P.D.V and Samaraweera, G.R.S.R.C (2015) "The Factors
Associated with the Demand for Cosmetics among Women (With Special Reference
to Ratnapura District)", 2rd Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and
Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of
Sri Lanka

Sudusinghe LD and Samaraweera, G.R.S.R.C, (2015) "Work-Family Spillover
among Married Female Nurses (A Comparative stud between Nurses of Public and
Private Hospitals in Western Province)", 2nd Annual Student Research Session on
Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages,
Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Wijenayake K.V.A.H.P and Samaraweera, G.R.S.R.C (2015) "Recreational Demand
for Watching Television in Sri Lanka (With Special Reference to Gampaha District)"
2nd Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of
Social Sciences and languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Fernando W.K.V. and Samaraweera, G.R.S.R.C (2015) "The Factors Associated
with Informal Credit Market (With Special Reference to Furniture Industry in
Moratuwa)" 2nrd Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages,
Faculty of Social Sciences and languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Mrs. M.D.J.W. Wijesinghe

Felicitation Volume/Journal Publication

Wijesinghe, M.D.J.W. and Siddhesena, K.A.P. (2015) "Socio Demographic and
Economic Determinants in Fertility Preferences Among Urban Employee Women in
Sri Lanka", Human Capital and Globalization: Development Challenges in Sri Lanka,
Prof Danny Atapattu Felicitation Volume, University of Ruhuna

Samaraweera, P.D.G.L. and Wijesinghe, M.D.J.W. (2015) "A Comparative Study of
Demand in Medical Care for Non-communicable Diseases: Western vs. Alternative",
International Journal of Multidisciplinary Studies"”, Vol. 02 Issue 01, Faculty of
Graduate Studies, University of Sri Jayawardenapura, Sri Lanka
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Mrs. U.S. Thathsarani

Journal Publication

Thathsarani, U.S. and Gunarathne, L.H.P. (2015) "Measuring the Cumulative
Adaptive Capacity for Climate Change in Sri Lanka", An International
Multidisciplinary Journal (ISSN: 2249-7137) Vol 05 Issue 10

Department of English Language Teaching

Mrs. K.S.N. Prasangani

Journal Publication

Prasangani K.S.N. & Nadarajan, S.(2015) "Sri Lankan Urban & Rural
Undergraduates' Motivation to Learn English", International Journal of Technical
Research and Applications

Prasangani K.S.N. (2015) "Global English: A Study of Factors Affect for English
Educations System: Learning Motivation in Sri Lankan Undergraduates ", Procedia:
Social & Behavioral Sciences 172, pp 794-800, doi:10.1016/j.sbspro.2015.01.434

Department of Geography & Environmental Management

Dr. K.P.L. Nishantha Patabendi

Abstract Publications

Nishantha, K.P.L. and Kumarawaththage, K.P.M. (2015) "Geographical Factors
which Influence of Coconut Water (with Special Reference of Three Climate Zine in
Sri Lanka)", 27d Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and
Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of
Sri Lanka

Nishantha, K.P.L. and Ediriweera E.A.N.S. (2015) "Geographical Factors which
Influence Activated Carbon from Coconut Shell: with Special Reference Dry Zone.
Wet Zone and Intermediate Zone, 2nrd Annual Student Research Session on Social
Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa
University of Sri Lanka

Nishantha, K.P.L. and Kumari T.P.G.R.P. (2015) "The Environmental and Social
Impacts in Mahaweli River Area due to Sand Mining(with Special Reference to
Mahiyanganaya Divisional Secretariat Division)", 27d Annual Student Research
Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and
Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Nishantha, K.P.L. and Nandasooriya W.M.Y.S. (2015) "The Effects of the Solid
Waste Management for Sustainable Development in Badulla City", 2nd Annual
Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social
Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Nishantha, K.P.L. and Priyadarshani K.K.U. (2015) ‘'Identification of
Anthropogenic Impacts to Environmental Degradation of Heen Ela Steam in
Elpitiya", 2nrd Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages,
Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka
Nishantha, K.P.L. and Nimani D.R.A. (2015) "Study of Biodiversity and Impacts of
Harmful Human Activities in Kurulukale Reserve", 2rd Annual Student Research
Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and
Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Nishantha, K.P.L. and Sepali K.D. (2015) "A Study of Adverse Effects of Human
Activities o the Sustainable Existence and the Use of Chandrika Wewa", 2rd Annual
Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social
Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka
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Dr. K.V.D. Edirisooriya Menike

Abstract Publications

Edirisooriya Menike, K.V.D., Uluwaduge, P and E.M.T.K. Seneviratne (2015)
"Human Crocadile Conflict in Sri Lanka with Special Reference to the Nilwala River
Area in Matara District", 5t International Symposium, South Eastern University of
Sri Lanka

Mrs. R.J.M Uduporiwa

Journal Publications

Uduporiwa, R.J.M. (2015) "Residential Segregation in South Asia Cities: An
Investigation of Residential Segregation based on Ethnicity of World Heritage City of
Kandy, Sri Lanka", International Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences
Uduporiwa, R.J.M. (2015) "Identification of Occupation Clustering in Kandy City,
Sri Lanka: An Investigation of Presidential Location Pattern by Occupation Status",
International Journal for Innovation Education and Research

Uduporiwa, R.J.M. (2015) "Grameeya - Nagarika Anthar Sabadatha Saha
Pradeshiya Sanwardenaya Pilibanda Nyayathmaka Pasubima", Sri Lanka Journal of
Social Sciences

Mrs. E.M.T.K. Seneviratne

Publication in Conference

Edirisooriya Menike, K.V.D.,Uluwaduge, P and E.M.T.K. Seneviratne (2015)
"Human Crocadile Conflict in Sri Lanka with Special Reference to the Nilwala River
Area in Matara District", 5t International Symposium, South Eastern University of
Sri Lanka

Abstract Publications

Jayathissa, J.D.I.M. and Senevirathna, E.M.T.K.(2015) "Generation of a 3D City
Model for Urban Plan of Alawwa Town Using GIS Technique", 2nd Annual Student
Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and
Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Kaviyarashan, K. and Senevirathna, E.M.T.K.(2015) "The Environmental and
Social Changes by Tourism Development in Jaffna Peninsula after Post War Period
(Special Reference in Jaffna Municipal Council Area)", 2nd Annual Student Research
Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and
Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Padmasiri, W.A.D. and Senevirathna, E.M.T.K.(2015) "A Geographical Analysis on
Demographic Diversity of Estate Population and Urban Population (Case Study in
Kelebokka GN Division and Aniwaththa East GN Division)", 2@ Annual Student
Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and
Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Perera, R.H.K. and Senevirathna, E.M.T.K.(2015) 'Identification a Suitable
Location for Establishing Proper Landfills as a Solid Waste Management in
Panadura Town", 20 Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and
Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of
Sri Lanka

Weerasinghe, M.K.K.G. and Senevirathna, E.M.T.K.(2015) "Identification Impacts
of Disasters to the Community in Imbulpe DS", 2rd Annual Student Research
Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and
Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Wijerathne, K.B.P.C.A.and Senevirathna, E.M.T.K.(2015) "Identification of the
Potentiality and Socio Economic Impacts of Tourism in Minneriya National

Park Using GIS Techniques", 27d Annual Student Research Session on Social
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Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa
University of Sri Lanka

Karunarathne, M.L.C.M. and Senevirathna, E.M.T.K.(2015) "An Analysis on the
Contribution of Bandarawela Town as a Service Center for the Regional
Development in Bandarawela DS Division", 2nd Annual Student Research Session on
Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages,
Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Kalhari, E.L.A.T. and Senevirathna, E.M.T.K.(2015) "Analyzis of Physical, Social &
Environmental Impact of Resettlements and Changing its Land Use Patterns: With
Special Reference to Siribopura and Keliyapura Resettlements of Hambantota DS
Division", 2nrd Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages,
Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Pushpani, S.H.H. and Senevirathna, E.M.T.K.(2015) "Land Use Changes & Socio-
Environmental Impacts Due to the Tsunami Disaster in Sri Lanka: With Special
Reference to Galle four Gravates", 2rd Annual Student Research Session on Social
Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa
University of Sri Lanka

Department of Languages
Dr. W.M. Ariyaratne

Book Chapter
0RO, Bemid (2015) 2015 OoSs B0 @I &Y RIIENO & ls ¢~ OO SERC
DRLGHED , cV&Ds oD, OIES LSS GRRIINEE, & @D DE) VFEE

Dr. R. A. D. P. Weerasekara

Abstract

Weerasekara, Priyanka (2015) "The Comparative Study on North Indian Folk
Drama & Sinhala Folk Drama", 8% Annual Research Conference, Royal Aesthetic
Society of Sri Lanka

Weerasekara, Priyanka (2015) "The Vedda Language: The Linguistic Study with
Special Reference to Dambana, Sri Lanka", ICLSL 2015, University of Kelaniya, Sri
Lanka

Prof. K. Nageswaran and Dr. S.Y. Sirithar

Abstract

Nageswaran, K. and Sirithar S.Y. (2015) "Eminent Tamil Scholars from the
University of Sri Lanka". Thanpatham, Proceedings of Annual Conference - 2013
(Ed) Perumal Saravanakumar ed. al, Department of Tamil, University of
Peradeniya, pp: 21-34

Dr. Hiniduma Sunil Senevi
Books

Senevi, Hiniduma Sunil(2015) "Sri Lankawe Susamadarsha Maruwa: Prasanna
Vithanage and Asoka Handagama", Sarasavi Publishers, Nugegoda
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Articles (Non Refereed)

Senevi, Hiniduma Sunil (2015) "Asoka Handagama Chithrapatawalin Heliwana
Drushtimaya Susamadarsha Maruwa", Handagama Soya Yama, (Ed) Uditha
Gayashan Gunasekara, Fast Publishing (PVT) Ltd, Colombo.

Senevi, Hiniduma Sunil (2015) "Oba Ma Pemkarana Geewala Drushtiwadi
Praweshaya", Kaviya Obaya, (Ed) Liyanege Pamitha R., Sarasavi Publishers,
Nugegoda.

Senevi, Hiniduma Sunil (2015) "Lo Soba Asurin Upan Kawu Soba Saha Lal
Hegoda", Lal Hegoda Ekathu Kala Lipi Saha Thoragath Kavi, (Ed) Lakshan
Maduranga Wickramaratne, Fast Publishing (PVT) Ltd, Colombo.

Articles on National News Papers

Senevi, Hiniduma Sunil"Soma", Sihala Translation of a Short Story by Maleeha
Rajon, Irudina, 2015.10.11

Senevi, Hiniduma Sunil'Thurulu Wanu Misa Adarayen Semen Weda An Magak",
Silimina, 2015.08.23

Senevi, Hiniduma Sunil’'Ada Sahithya WashpaWena Deyak Wela", Lanka,
2015.09.27

Senevi, Hiniduma Sunil'Thilakarathne Athe Thiyenne Shishtacharaya Aramba
Karanna Awashya Atheetha Pragdhanaya", Lanka, 2015.11.08

Senevi, Hiniduma Sunil'Pemyuwalak Menma deshapalanaya Saha Purawasiyanda
Onakara Thibe", Divaina, 2015.11.26

Script Writing

Senevi, Hiniduma Sunil (2015) "Script Writer of biographical Program on Shriyani
Amarasena", Alakamandawa, National Television Corporation Sri Lanka.

Mrs. D. Sundararajan
Book Chapter

Devakumari, P. (2015) "Professor K. Kanapathippillai in the Literary World",
Ahilam, Kandy

Devakumari, P. (2015) "Irappum Pirappum Lyalpanathu: Maanpuru Manithanai
Pugalniruvich Chelvathe Magathanathu", Arunasala Theepam, Meesalai

Mr. H.A.M.A. Hapugoda

Ongoing Research

Mahesh Hapugoda & Iraj Rathnayake (2015-2016). Travel in the hyper-real?
Revisiting the MacCannellian definition of touristic experience in the digitalized
era.(Funded by Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka).
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Papers and Abstracts

Hapugoda, Mahesh & Ratnayake, Iraj (2015).Land and Tourism in Postwar Sri
Lanka: A Critique on the Political Negligence in Tourism. In Balancing Development
and Sustainability in Tourism Destinations: Proceeding of the Tourism Outlook
Conference-2015 Springer. United Kingdom. Pp 219-231

Hapugoda, Mahesh (2015). Teacher as an Anonymous Moral Agent of Universal
Good: Discussion on the Role of Teacher in the Short Story ‘The Morning Clouds’ by
Yasunari Kawabata. In Sri Lanka Journal of Social Sciences.SLJSS 38 (2). Pp 79-
94.

Hapugoda, Mahesh (2015). Failures of Decolonization and the Return to the Past:
Reading V.S. Naipaul. In Sabaragamuwa University Journal.Vol. 14 (1). 2015 May.
Pp 59-85.

Hapugoda, Mahesh. (2015). Failures of Decolonization: Reading V.S. Naipaul. In the
Proceedings of the Annual International Conference of the Royal Asiatic Society,
Colombo.ISSN 1800-4067.

Hapugoda, Mahesh. (2015). Failures of decolonization and ‘return to the past’:
Reading V.S. Naipaul. In the Annual Research Symposium 2015 (Engineering Social
transformation through Research and Development.National center for Advanced
Studies (NCAS), Colombo.ISSN 978-955-4978-02-7.

Mahesh Hapugoda and Iraj Ratnayake (2015).Land and Tourism: Land and tourism
in postwar Sri Lanka: A critique on the political negligence in tourism. Proceedings in
the Tropical Tourism Conference 2015, Lombok, Indonesia.

Mr. B. Nagoda Vithana

Nagoda Vitana, Bresil (2015) "Study of Changes of Nouns and Pronouns,
Conjugated with case ending and Postpositions When Hindi is Learnt as a Foreign
Language" Academic Journal, Department of Languages, Cultural Studies &
Performing Arts, (ISSN 2357-2626) Volume 3, Issue 2015

Department of Social Sciences

Dr Saratha Ananda

Books

Ananda, A.S. (2015) Entrepreneurship and Sri Lankan Society, Nugegoda, Sarasavi
Publisher

Felicitation Volume

Ananda, A.S. (2015) Taking Distrust as Construct: The Buddhist Thought of
Alienation, Felicitation Volume to Ven Werahera Ariyawansa There,
Sudharmaramarama Pirivena, Godage Publisher

Mr. W.M.J. Welgama

Publication in Conference

Danawalavithana, Minuri and Welgama, Jayaprasad (2015) "Female Labour and
Export Processing Zones, A Sociological Analysis" Proceedings of International
Research Conference on Humanities and Social Sciences, Faculty of Humanities and
Social Sciences, University of Sri Jayawardenapura

Mrs. R.P.S.H. Hettiarachchi

Publication in Conference

Hettiarachchi, R.P.S.H. (2015) "Women in Local Politics: The Impact of Gender,
Patriarchy and Public Opinion on Women's Representation in Local Politics" Gender
& Education: Critical Issues, Policy & Practice International Conference May 2015 at
Indiana University, Bloomington, United States conducted by London Centre for
Social Studies (LCSS), Indiana University - USA, Michigan State University - USA
and Gediz University - Izmir
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Hettiarachchi, R.P.S.H. (2015) "Gender Mainstreaming in Post-conflict: An
Analysis of Post- conflict Reconstruction Process in Some Selected Countries" In
Conference Proceeding Gender and "The Law": Limits, Contestation and Beyond, (Ed)
Sibel and Eda Aycan Aras, London Centre for Social Studies (LCSS), London

Mrs. N.S. Jayathunga - Abstract Publications

Jayathunga N.and Yugathasan P. (2015) "Women Role and Family Balance in
Female Headed Households in Post-war Period in Sri Lanka: A Sociological Study:
Special References in Pachchilaipalli in Killinochchi District", 27d Annual Student
Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and
Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Jayathunga N.and Dassanayaka G.L.A.P. (2015) "Social Anthropological Study on
Myths and Beliefs Related to Gem and Mining Industry: With Special Reference in
Udathula Village, Belonging to the Divisional Secretariate of Pelmadulla, Rathapura
District", 2nd Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages,
Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka
Jayathunga N.and Sandakumari K.V.L.N. (2015) "A Sociological Study on the Socio
Economical Relationship of Local Enterprises Related to Tourism: With Special
References Narigama - Wellabada Tourism Area", 2rd Annual Student Research
Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and
Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Jayathunga N.and Aberathna H.G.C.W. (2015) "The Urban Dual Careers' Work
and Leisure, A Sociological Study", 2rd Annual Student Research Session on Social
Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa
University of Sri Lanka

Mr. G.C.L. Pathirana- Abstract Publications

Pathirana G.C.L.and Abesekara G.G.N.S. (2015) "A critical Analysis of the
Influence of Mega Development Projects for the Environmental Rights Violation in
Sri Lanka", 27d Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages,
Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka
Pathirana G.C.L.and Kanuja T. (2015) "Reconstruction Welfare Policy for the Rural
Development in Sri Lanka; With Special Reference of the Housing Plan Welfare
Policy in Kanakaraya Kulam South in Vovuniya District", 2rd Annual Student
Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and
Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Mr. H.U.S. Pradeep - Publication in Conference

Edirisooriya Menike, K.V.D., Uluwaduge, Pradeep and E.M.T.K. Seneviratne (2015)
"Human Crocadile Conflict in Sri Lanka with Special Reference to the Nilwala River
Area in Matara District”", 5t International Symposium, South Eastern University of
Sri Lanka

Abstract Publications

Uluwaduge, Pradeep and Amaraweera, E.D.G.K.S. (2015) "The Role of the
Religious Organizations in Post War Nation Building in Sri Lanka: Special
Reference to Bodu Bala Sena and All Ceylon Jamaitul Ulama Organization", 2nd
Annual Student Research Session on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of
Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka

Uluwaduge, Pradeep and Saumya S.A. (2015) "Critical Analysis of Election
Promises and Its Practical Context in Sri Lanka: With Special Reference to
Presidential Election in 2010", 2rd Annual Student Research Session on Social
Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages, Sabaragmuwa
University of Sri Lanka

Uluwaduge, Pradeep and Dananjani E.J.D.S. (2015) "Rights of liiegal Migrants
Who Migrated to the Australia from Sri Lanka: Study Based on Mirissa and
Devinuwara Divisional Secretariat Divisions", 2d Annual Student Research Session
on Social Sciences and Languages, Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages,
Sabaragmuwa University of Sri Lanka
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7. TEACHING RESOURCES

7.1 LIBRARY

Profile:

In the modern world the nature and format of information resources are changing
rapidly. There is a need to develop and foster new skills and competencies. The
SUSL Library moved for another progressive year and developed its’ resource
collection. The collections of total printed publications are 124,706.

The SUSL Library take the maximum effort to serve their users to disseminate
information. Therefore, the Library is a growing organism by enriching their
resource collection. .“A wealth of information creates a poverty of attention.”
wealth in the form of educational institutions of research and development. Geeta
Girish Gadhavi, Asst.Prof.DLIS, Gujarat University

Goals

The Libraries at SUSL targeted to perform the library to increase the number of
usage of E- journals and E- databases for enhance the quality of research and
motivate the user community for a research environment. In this year we received
four databases of E-journals from UGC through a consortia implemented by
SCOLIS. The data bases are as follows;

Oxford University Journals
Wiley Online Library
Emerald Insight

Sage Research Methods

The Library at Sabaragamuwa University subscribing the following list of online
databases/ Journals on its own;

Indian Journals.com

Journal of Surveying Engineering

Journal of Aerospace Engineering

Journal of Construction Engineering and Management

Journal of Environmental Engineering

Journal of Highway and Transportation Research and Development
Journal Urban Planning and Development

Survey Review

The Indian Forester

Journal of Marketing Research

End Note

INASP Open Access Resources(Received as Donation)

The library supposed to be introducing to disseminate their information and
resources through digitized library materials in future. The library focused to be
established an e- repository to reduce the barriers of retrieval of information
efficiently. The SUSL Libraries are seeking to widen the qualities of Library
collections and the human resources too.
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http://ascelibrary.org/journal/jcemd4
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http://www.marketingpower.com/AboutAMA/Pages/AMA%20Publications/AMA%20Journals/Journal%20of%20Marketing%20Research/JournalofMarketingResearch.aspx

Goals achieved during the year

Use of ICT \ in information services the SUSL Library collaborated with the concept
of \ 5R’s Right Information to Right Person at Right Time at Reasonable value in
Required format. Many of the Academics associated to innovative approaches
through the better Library Service Delivery.

Achievements
Information and knowledge become the principal generators of maximized wealth in
the form of research and development for our Academics at the SUSL.

National

The Academic staff of the Library contributed their services in to National level by
engaging with NILIS and Library Association of Sri Lanka, by teaching and
consultation works, conducting some seminars to make aware the vicinity,
conduct some lecture series for the Certificate of Diploma holders in Library
Science field.

Institutional

The SUSL Library got involved as an institutional member to the Consortium
selected by the UGC / SCOLIS to subscribe valuable e- resources / databases to
the users of the SUSL Library.

The Main Library at SUSL has been underwent for conservation & preservation of
the Library collection by the process of fumigation on 06t November 2015 to one

week time.

Personal
01)20th April 2015, Library Orientation held under the theme of ¢ Academic Life

and Library ¢ at the Faculty of Social Sciences Auditorium for 2013 batch of
newly arrival undergraduates by the Librarian.

02)The Librarian conducted a lecture series regarding “Retreive Information from
E- Resources at SUSL Library “for the 1st Year 1st Semester Students at
Faculty of Management Studies at 18th Aug. 2015.

03)The Library Staff guided for Library tour for the School children at Pinnawala
Tamil Maha Vidyalaya. Those who visited to received their Certificates awarded
for the Entrepreneurship day 2015 organized by the Faculty of management
Study on O1st Sep.2015.

04)The Librarian Mrs. T. N. Neighsoorei participated for the Workshop/ Training

organized for the Academic Staff of the SUSL, “Workshop on Strategic and
Management for Universities” on 07th Aug. 2015 at SDC Auditorium, SUSL.
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Participation of Workshops/ Trainings by
Non - Academic Staff 2015

Name

Designation

National

Trainings

Workshops /

Mr. Susil Hettiarachchi

Staff Assistant
(Library Service)

General Conduct
Procedure

28th July 2015

and Office

Mr. D K S Gamini

Staff Assistant
(Library Service)

General Conduct
Procedure

28th July 2015

and Office

Mrs. H M T U Kumari

Library Assistant Gr. I

General Conduct
Procedure

28th July 2015

and Office

Mr. KWSL Kevitiyagala

Library Assistant Gr. III

General Conduct
Procedure

28th July 2015

and Office

Mrs. KL D C Lekamge

Library Assistant Gr. II

General Conduct
Procedure
28th July 2015

and Office

Mr. R M D Jayanuwan

Library Assistant Gr. III

General Conduct
Procedure

28th July 2015

and Office

Ms. B D M Priyangani

Library Assistant
Gr. III

General Conduct
Procedure

28th July 2015

and Office

Ms. AJMRC Kumari

Labourer Gr. 11

General Conduct
Procedure

28th July 2015

and Office

Mr. R M Seelawathie

Labourer Gr. II

General Conduct
Procedure

28th July 2015

and Office
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Participants are

all

Resource person:

Organized a hands-on

Library Academics and | Mr. AlankarShukla, | training programme (one
Library Assistants Libsys Co LTD. day) for the library
India. professional and Para-
professional staff.
Modules covered:
Automation of Library
System;  Cataloguing  of
electronic resources,
Indexing, Configuration of
SDI services, spine slip
generation15/08/2015
Library Academics & | Coordinated by ; Enlighten the value &
Academic staff | Ms. Shanti Epari application of EBSCO’s
representatives International = Account | online databases"'Lunch and
Executive Learn" Conference on
EBSCO Information | EBSCO Academic Databases
Services India and Discovery Service
hosted by EBSCO
Information Services

onThursday, 2nd July 2015
at Galadari Hotel, Colombo.

2015 - Workshops / Trainings

Through the Staff Development Center the Library Academic staff members

participated as resource persons and conducted a workshop for Para —Professional

staffs’ regarding their skill Development for duties of the Library works.

e Ms. T.N. Neighsoorei, the Librarian, SUSL Conducted a Lecture series for the
Library Para Professional staff through SDC, regarding “Customer care in
Library Services” on 11th Nov. 2015

e Mr. PKCM Wijewickrama, the Senior Asst. Librarian, Conducted a Lecture

series for the Library Para Professional staff

through SDC, regarding

“Institutional Repositories and Greenstone” on 11t Nov. 2015.

e Dr.I.M.Nawarathna, the Senior Asst. Librarian, Conducted a Lecture series
for the Library Para Professional staff through SDC, regarding “How to
enhance the quality of the Library services “on 11th Nov. 2015.
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Usage statistics;
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Downloaded by year of Publications

520
500
480
460
440
420
400
380
360
340

320
<= 300
£ 280
2 260
% 240

£ 220

E =200
180
160
140
120
100

80
80
40
20

o -'IIIIII|I‘IIII‘|‘|

§388588E53888¢8888888883¢%

Jnl Usage - Agg - Volume Year

Usage of Databases

SRMO
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka jan-june
SAGE RMO 2;);5
2% °
Total Jan- "
June 2015
40%
OUP
Jan -
T&FJan - T&F June OUP 2014
June 2015 Wiley 2014 2014 2015 3%
0% 1% 0% 4% 0

87



7.2 CENTRE FOR COMPUTER STUDIES

Introduction

Centre for Computer Studies is the separate academic body for providing IT
services to the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. It provides main services;
such as Internet facility, e-mail facility, computer networking services, e-learning
facilities, hardware & software maintenance services and resource personals for
some of the faculties.

History

The history of Sabaragamuwa University Computer Centre goes back to the time of
inauguration of Affiliated University College (AUC) of Sabaragamuwa Province in
1991. It started at one of the residential building then own to Samanalawewa
Hydro Electrical Power Project and now D1-4 quarters of Sabaragamuwa University
of Sri Lanka. Initially, it equipped with 10 numbers of Tatung 286 computers
featured 1Mb RAM, 40MB Hard disks and an OKI 9-pin dot-matrix printer and at
the time of inauguration of AUC, late Hon. President RanasinghePremadasa
unveiled the plaque of the centre.

At that time AUC enrolled students for Diploma programmes and conducted three
diploma courses called Diploma in Accounting & Finance, Diploma in Tourism
Management and Diploma in English. The Core Course of Computing offered by
the computer centre was compulsory component to obtain the diploma for all
programmes.

After some times, with the donation of Rs. 15,000/= from the then Balangoda
District Judge who launched a program to donate funds for social works from the
fines collected from the drugs victims, initiated to start the construction of existing
computer centre building with the help of then staff, students and villagers by
“Shramadana Campaign” and finally completed using the government funds. It was
the first building constructed simultaneous with the old auditorium for the AUC in
addition to the buildings acquiring from the Samanalawewa Project.

Initially it was recruited one staff member to computer centre as an Instructor-in-
Computer-Technology for conducting the lectures and practical for the core course.
Meanwhile, two other instructors were recruited to the computer centre cadre to
extend the work it carried out and it was the only computer centre which had an
approved cadre in the AUC system.

After upgrading the AUC into full-fledged national university as Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri Lanka in 1996, computer centre started to rendering its services to
the different degree programs of different, especially for non-IT, faculties by means
of designing and preparing course materials for IT related courses and conducting
lectures and practical classes for it, helping to prepare and evaluate tender
documents for purchasing of computers and other related equipments for the
university, training of clerical staff of the university for effectively use of computers
for their day to day works as well as helping to academic staff for preparing their
postgraduate thesis and in preparing teaching materials etc.

When expansion of the university and its functions, computer centre was renamed

as Centre for Computer Studies and re-organized under a Director and started
offering assistance for conducting IT related courses for the degree programmes
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especially for Faculty of Management Studies and Faculty of Social Sciences &
Languages and constructed another building adjacent to the existing centre for
broadening it services. At the same time university Local Area Network was
planned and commissioned and got connected to the Internet via LEARN and
started providing and maintaining the Internet and network services to the entire
university community. Launching Sabaragamuwa University Web Site and
providing E-Learning environment are such land marking services offered.

Meanwhile, to strengthen the services provided by the Centre for Computer Studies
the cadre provisions has been increased and at present, below mentioned cadres
are allocated to it according to the 2012 approved cadre list of UGC.

Lecturer Approved | Existing
Senior Lecturer Gr.II U-AC 3(II) 2 3
Lecturer U-AC 3(II) | 2 1
Lecturer(Probationary) U-AC 3(IV) | 4 1
Computer Programmer
U-AS 1() 1 _
Instructor (Computer Technology)
Grade I U-AS 2(]) 2 )
Grade II U-AS 2(II) 3
Assistant Network Manager
Grade I U-AS 2(]) 2 2
Computer Applications Assistant
U-MN 1(III
Grade II A) 1 1
Technical Officer
U-MT 1(lII
Grade II 'Seg B' B) 1 1
Labourer
Grade II U-PL 1(III) | 2 1
Laboratory Attendant
Lower Grade U-PL 2(III) |1

According to the approved carder, following members were recruited and attached
to the Centre and assigned duties for carry out tasks for different faculties as well
as the entire university.

Academic Staff/Centre for Computer Studies

No | Name Designation Recruited Place
1 Mr. RVSPKRanathunga Senior Lecturer CCS
2 Mr. RM Nevil B Rathnayake Senior Lecturer CCS
3 Dr. HK SalindaPremadas Senior Lecturer CCS
4 Mr. NJ Malraj Silva Lecturer CCS
) Ms. RAHM Rupasingha Lecturer (Probationary) CCS
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Mr. NJ Malraj Silva and Mr. RVSPK Ranatunge have been promoted to the lecturer
cadre by freezing their previous cadre provisions and other three members were
directly recruited to the lecturer cadre.

During the 2014 Mr. Ranatungaacts as the Director of the Center for Computer
Studies and also he is conducting IT related lectures for both faculty of Social
Sciences & Languages and faculty of Management Studies.

Mr. Nevil Rathnayakeis conducting IT related lectures for the Faculty of Social
Sciences & Languageson request of the respective Dean, in addition to the work
done as a coordinator for the computer centre of the faculty of Social Sciences &
Languages.

Dr. Salinda Pemadasa and Mr. Malraj Silva are delivering IT related lectures for the
Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages on request of the Dean whileMs.
Rupasingha is delivering lectures and projects for Faculty of Applied Sciences.

Academic Supportive Staff/Centre for Computer Studies

No | Name Designation Recruited Place
1 Mr. WHD Pemawardana | Instructor in CT Grade I CCS/AGR
2 Mr. HMM AsankaHerath | Instructor in CT Grade II CCS/MGT
Mr. WMCKB
3 r Instructor in CT Grade II CCS/MGT
Wanigasekara

Assistant Network  Manager

4 Mr. ESA Gunasinghe Grade I CCS
5 Mr. KCS Ranasingha Assistant Network  Manager CCS
Grade II
6 Ms. A C Nanayakkara Instructor in CT Grade II CCS/SSL
7 Mr. WR Y S Instructor in CT Grade II CCS/SSL
Samarasekara

Among four of the permanent Instructors’ in Computer Technology, three of them
are assigned to the three faculties; Faculty of Agricultural Sciences, Faculty of
Social Sciences & Languages and Faculty of Management Studies to
conduct/instruct the IT related lectures/practical on request.

Mr. ChathurangaWanigasekarais acting as a coordinator of the computer center of
faculty of Management Studies and ismaintaining the faculty and university web
sites in addition to working as an instructor. Mr. Herath is on two-year no-pay
leave.

Mr. Pemawardena who is the Senior Instructor acted as an IT coordinator for the
Faculty of Agricultural Sciences. Coordinators, who have participated in respective
Faculty Boards, are coordinated with the Director of the Centre for Computer
Studies to allocate human resources and other IT related services needed for the
faculties. Three permanent cadre provisions have to be filled in future according to
the requirements generated.

Assistant Network Manager is responsible for maintaining and improving the
performance of the university LAN as well as implementing new network services
when required under the supervision of the Director.
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Non Academic Staff/Centre for Computer Studies

. Service offering
. . Recruited
No | Name Designation places & nature of
Place
duty
. Computer
Mr. P L f
1 g Sanjeewa Applications CCS SU.S /Software
Premalal . Maintenance
Assistant
5 Mr. H Janaka C | Technical CCS SUSL/Hardware
Senarath Officer Maintenance
3 | Mr D A Labor ccs ccs
Chthuranga

Computer Applications Assistant and the Technical Officer are assigned for the
solving of software and hardware problems of computers and accessories in faculty
computer centers in addition to the other places such as centers, sections and
offices of the entire university. Mr. Sanjeewa and Mr. Janaka are currently
involving to do such work as well as to report about the faultier of equipments to
the respective authorities to get decisions to repair them.

Present Status

Presently, on request of the different faculties, the academic services provided by
the centre are mainly limed to conducting the IT Degree programme and computer
minor programme of the Faculty of Social Sciences & Languages, some IT related
subjects and practical components of the different departments of Faculty of
Management Studies and to the degree program in Computing and Information
System of the Faculty of Applied Sciences. Other IT services such as Internet and
web service are provided for entire university community. Further, in the 2014 IP
phone systems was established by the university and all maintenance and
enhancements are done by the center staff.

At present most of the faculties have built their own complexes and they have their
own computer centers within them for conducting their IT related academic
programs. Therefore, no need of using the existing buildings of the Centre for
Computer Studies for conducting their programs further, instead they can be
utilized for widen the services offered by the Centre such as conducting training
programmes for non-academic and administrative staff as well as assisting the
academic staff to fulfilling their IT-related needs etc.

The Centre for Computer Studies supervises all computer related academic
activities of these five computer centers and maintains the campus-wide network
including all the servers required to provide network services such as web and
email services.

In year of 2013, infrastructure facilities and academic programs related with IT
have further improved due to allocations from the consolidated fund by the
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka. With this fund, the university managed to
increase the Internet bandwidth from 20Mbps to 100Mbps and increase the
number of computer facilities to all academic and administrative staff members at
their work places.
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Further, according to the annual plan University purchased more than 100 new
computers and center helps to purchase and implement such computers in the
university network.

Campus-Wide Network

Our campus-wide Local Area Network is run and maintained by the Centre for
Computer Studies. It is administrated by our Assistant Network Managers within
the server room. The server room consists of CISCO routers, proxy server, DNS
server, CISCO for subnet switch, web server, e-mail server, e-learning sever, virus
guard server (centralized server) etc. Performance of the network functions and the
E-learning system are increased by upgrading the three servers namely Proxy, DNS
and E-learning during the year 2014. Separating and partitioning of the server
room from the existing computer lab, physical security and the easiness of
maintenance of the servers are assured. Also by commissioning the alternative
power generating system using a 20KVA standby generator and 20KVA UPS
system, availability of network functions are guaranteed during the 24 hours a day
and 7 days a week.

The wide area network now extended up to newly located Faculty of Geomatics
building. All the five faculties are now inter-connected with fiber optic backbone. At
present our commodity Internet band with is 100Mbps and physical link is capable
of handling signals of 80Mbps bandwidth.

Goals of the Year 2015

e Implement efficient andenhanced e-mail system for entire university
community with Gmail

e Extend the free Microsoft product programme for students and staff
members

e Upgrade of internet connectivity

e Enhance the web site of the University

e Implement new Learning Management System with new Server

e Implement IP Phone System

e Implement a new enhanced Virus Guard for University Local Area Network

e Implement online problem reporting system and automate the requests of
maintenance of hardware, software and electronic equipments of the entire
university

e Proposed new IT Policy for the university.

e Make new proposal for providing Internet and Wi-Fi facility for students
hostels

e Conducting Technical Evaluation Committees

e Give consultancy facilities for other government institutions.

e Conducting training workshops for academic and non-academic staff

e Implement/expand network of faculties, centers and offices

e Recruit a Programmer for building and handling new university web site
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Goals Achieved during the year

e The university staff was requested to establish a new internet connection to
the B-Rooms of the academic residence. The center successfully provided the
new Internet connection with high speed internet facility for the staff
members.

e The center individually implemented Wi-fi facility for the faculty of Social
Sciences, Agricultural Sciences, Management Studies and Geomatics. If
these implantations may do by the external party university should spend
more cost and center helped to reduce the cost.

e The university proposed a new internet connection for the Staff Development
Center of the University. The center makes necessary arrangements and
provided a new internet connection to the building.

e The university purchased new IP phone system in last year and the
maintenance activities and further improvements of the IP phone system is
doing by the Center Staff.

e A new e-Learning Management System was successfully implemented and
installed with enhanced capabilities for the Centre for Open and Distance
Learning of the University.

e Take necessary actions to changing virus guard Serverto avoid the virus
problem in the university computer network.

e The legacy university internal e-mail system has been transferred to new
enhanced system with the affiliation of Google. Now all the university
community including academic, administrative, non academic and students
can obtain such official e-mail from sab.ac.lk domain.
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7.3 DEPARTMENT OF PHYSICAL EDUCATION

STAFF
Director - Mr. W.A. Lalith Rohana
Instructors - Mrs. B.K Samantha Princy Lalani
- Ms. W.M.U. Nayani Keerthirathna
- Mr. G.S.K. Bopitiya
Clerk - Ms. R.A. Bhagya Niranjali Prasangika Ranaweera
Grounds Man - Mr. E.B.H.P. Hewage
- Mr. N.A.J.S. Samarathunga
Laborers - Mr. I.R. Senavirathna

- Mr. W. Ariyadasa

ANNUAL PROGRAMME
The following activities were scheduled and held by the Department of Physical
Education.
e Inter University Championships - From16th May 2015 to 30th August 2015
e Inter University Karate Championship organized by Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri Lanka on 05t and 06t June 2015.
e Inter University Cricket Championship organized by Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri Lanka on 16t May 2015
e Organized friendly matches and participated invitational tournament for
Hockey, Badminton, Rugby Football, Baseball, Basketball, Football and

Volleyball
Achievements
Inter University level
Athletic (Men) - O1st place
Athletic (Women) - Olstplace
Athletic Over all - Champion
Football - Champion
Cricket - 02nd Runner up
Taekwondo (Overall) - O5th
Karate (Overall Men) - 02nd place
Karate (Overall Women) - O5th place

International Level

World University Games - 2015 Korea

Following Students participated for World University Games - 2015 which was in
Korea

Track & Field

01. Mr. NMCC Nawasinghe - 13/AS/PE/015
02. Mr. GV Udayange - 13/AS/SM/022
03. Mr. AMLU Athapaththu - 12/AS/SM/003
04. Mr. GRC Kularathna - 12/As/SM/029
05. Mr.WMSS Wijesundara -12/AS/SM/029
06. Mr. WCP Wijesinghe - 13/AS/SM/026
07. Ms. SL Vidanaduruge -11/AS/SM028
08. MS. RVK Hasani -11/AS/SM/018
09. Ms. RMSK Rathnayake - 13/AS/SM/047
Taekwondo

Mr. WPNT Lakmal - 12/AS/PE/008
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8. STUDY CENTRES

8.1 CAREER GUIDANCE UNIT
Profile

In the present world, the employment market has become highly competitive and
therefore, only the most competent, proficient and innovative candidates with
accurate attitudes secure more attractive employments and develop successful
careers. Skills developed and owned by them is the main factor for competitive
advantages over and above their academic qualifications. Skills demanded by many
jobs are in a different frame of reference compare to the skills owned by candidates.
One major comment of the stakeholders of Sri Lanka is that the graduates
produced by the Sri Lankan Universities rich in knowledge, but severely lacking in
practical skills. This unfortunate situation has greatly limited the career
opportunities for Sri Lankan graduates, especially in the private sector. This skills
gap is widening day by day as the trends in the economies transform from
agriculture to industries to knowledge based economies. As country has started a
development journey with an acceierated phase towards a Knowledge based society,
it is imperative to come up with a viable, sustainable solution to the problem of
bridging the skills gap. The objective of the career guidance unit of the
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka facilities the undergraduates of the
university to secure right and successful careers providing proper counseling,
developing required career success skills through introducing capacity building
programs and connecting young people with prospective employers.

Activities Conducted by CGU - 2015
“Career Guidance for the New Undergraduates”

Career Guidance Unit of the University successfully organized a programme on
“Career Guidance for New Undergraduates” with a collaboration of Students
Counseling Center on 21st 22nd and 23rd of April 2015 at the University. Mr.
AjithJayewardane, Senior Lecturer of Sri Lanka Foundation took part as the
resource person of the programme.

“Entrepreneurship Development Programme”

Career Guidance Unit of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka initiated an
entrepreneurship development programme named “UPADIDHARI VIYAPARIKA
UDANAYA - 2015” in collaboration with the National Enterprise Development
Authority (NEDA) on 4th& 5th July 2015.

The target group of this pilot programme was the final year undergraduates of the
Faculty of Agricultural Sciences who are interested to start their own business in
their career endeavors. The programme was held successfully at the Auditorium of
the faculty of Agricultural Sciences.

“Personality Development Programme”

Career Guidance Unit of Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka and Image
Consultants successfully organized a “Personality Development Programme” at
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Global Towers, Colombo from 8.30am to 5.30pm on 8th July 2015. The programme
was sponsored by CEAT KelaniTyres and facilitated by Image Consultants.

The programme focused on personal grooming and best hygiene practices,
Appropriate dress code, Social, business & dinning etiquettes and How to face an
interview successfully. Selected 37 undergraduates by representing Faculty of
Management Studies, Faculty of Agricultural Sciences and Faculty of Geomatices
were actively participated of the programme. Director of Image Consultants,
Mrs.NayanaKarunarathne and General Manager of Image Consultants, Ms. Irushi
Aluwihare were conducted the sessions.

The “Final Step” — Soft Skills Development Programme

The final step — soft skills development programme, presented by John Keells
Foundation in collaboration with the Career Guidance Unit of Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri Lanka was held on 14th, 15th& 16th July 2015 at the Auditorium of
the Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages at Sabaragamuwa University of Sri
Lanka. This soft skills development programme can be identified as a bridge, which
fills-up the gap between employer expectations and job expectations of Sri Lankan
University graduates. The major objective of these programme was to develop the
undergraduates’ soft skills level parallel to their University education. The
inaugural session was held on 14t July 2015 at 10 a.m. at the Auditorium of the
Faculty of Social Sciences and Languages of the University. The Vice Chancellor,
Prof. Chandana P. Udawatte was the chief guest of this inauguration and the most
significant feature was the enthusiastic participation of the students.

CV Writing & Interview Facing Skills Development Programme

This programme was organized on 12th November 2015 from 2.00pm to 6.00pm at
the Faculty of Geomatics. The main objective of this programme was to develop the
CV writing & Interview facing skills of the undergraduates of Faculty of
Geomaticsprior of their industrial placements. The programme was conducted by
Mr. Deepal Wijesekara, Career Advisor of the University.

Certificate Awarding Ceremony of Entrepreneurship Development Programme
This Entrepreneurship Development Programme was conducted by the Career
Guidance Unit of University in the collaboration with National Entrepreneurship
Development Authority (NEDA) Sri Lanka. The first programme was launched
based on the Faculty of Agricultural Sciences as a pilot project. The certificates
awarding of this programme was successfully held on 27t November 2015 at the
Faculty of Agricultural Sciences.

At the same day the interviews were also conducted for the selection of the
Entrepreneurship grants, which are offered by NEDA, Sri Lanka, in order to hands
the undergraduates to start their own businesses. The Interview was conducted
based on the business proposals submitted by the undergraduates of Agricultural
Sciences. The expected grant is Rs.150000.00 for each selected undergraduate.

In addition to that, routing activities of the Career Guidance Unit such as providing
career counseling service for undergraduate form the first year, advising students
on selection of specializations in their faculties, providing reading materials on
career guidance, directing students for useful trainings, workshops ect...are also
conducted.
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8.2

CENTRE FOR OPEN AND DISTANCE LEARNING

Profile:

Table is attached

Achievements:
Proposed the curriculum for Bachelor of Business Administration (external)

General Degree.

Restructured the Bachelor of Arts General (external) Degree.
Restructured the Certificate in Network Installation & Maintenance course.
Successfully conducted the Awarding Ceremony of the CODL on 21st

February 2015.

Income of the year 2015 was Rs. 29,885,177.12

CENTRE FOR OPEN AND DISTANCE LEARNING
PROGRAMME DETAILS 2015

No. | Programme Duration Registered
Students in
Year 2015
Degree Programmes
01 | Bachelor of Business Administration in | 3 years N/A
Agribusiness Management (external)
Degree
02 | Bachelor of Arts General (external) Degree | 3 years N/A
Diploma Programmes
03 | Diploma in English 1 year 547
04 | Diploma in Pre-School Teachers Training Two years 20
05 | Diploma in Business Management 1 year 117
06 | Diploma in Social Development and |1 year 19
Welfare
07 | Diploma in Software Engineering 1 year 64
Certificate Programmes
08 | Certificate in English 6 months 1320
09 | Certificate in Network Installation | 6 months 12
& Maintenance
10 | Certificate in Computer Applications 6 months 220
11 | Certificate in Web based Application |3 % months | 34
Development
12 | Certificate in Auto CAD 3 %2 months | 52
13 | Certificate in Java Programming 3 2 months | 42
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8.3 CENTRE FOR INDIGENOUS KNOWLEDGE AND COMMUNITY STUDIES
Profile

Centre for Indigenous Knowledge and Community Studies ( Indigenous Community
Studies) was established on 18th December 2006 at the Sabaragamuwa University
of Sri Lanka with the aim of providing facilities for those who are interested in post
graduate studies in Indigenous Community Studies. Accordingly, the centre has
introduced three courses of studies namely Post Graduate Diploma (PGD), Master
of Philosophy (MPhil) and Doctor of Philosophy (PhD). The candidates from any
discipline who wish to follow the above courses in the Centre for Indigenous
Knowledge and Community Studies are encouraged pursuethe indigenous studies
pertaining to Sri Lanka or any other country in the world. The center intends to
increase the student capacity yearly and motivate them to complete their research

degrees successfully without any delay.

Achievements in the Year

e Revising Syllabus of Postgraduate Diploma Programme -2015
e Revising Syllabus of Master of Philosophy -2015

e Revising guideline for Thesis/ Dissertation

e Evaluate one MPhil and two PhD theses.

e Viva voce examination for a Master of Philosophy candidate

e Progress Review Presentation of Mphil and PhD candidates
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8.4

STAFF DEVELOPMENT CENTRE

Workshops conducted during year 2015

DURATION NAME OF THE | NAME OF THE | CONDUCTED FOR WHOM
WORKSHOP RESOURCE
PERSON/S
Two days Activity based | Mr. Sanath Gamage Academic staff selected for
26&27.02.2015 | residential workshops induction training program
on soft skills and of teaching methodology and
teaching skills other Academic staff
members
Two days Health Education » Dr. N.G.S. | Academic & Non-academic
07808.04.2015 | Programme and Panditharathna | staff members
Health Camp ,
Regional Director of
Health Services
» MOH office at
Imbulpe,
Balangoda
» Dr. W.A.
Jayasooriya,
Regional Dental
Surgen of
RDHS office at
Rathnapura
»  University
Medical
Officers
10.00 am to | How to write a | Prof. Bruce Prideaux Academic Staff Members
11.30 am Publishable review
23.07.2015 paper to an indexed
journal
Half day General conduct and | Mr. M.F.H. Careem Administrative = and Non
28.07.2015 office procedures academic staff members
One day Strategic planning and | Prof. H. | Academic and
07.08.2015 management for | Abeygunawardena and | Administrative staff
universities Dr. B.M.K. Perera members
One day Updated Progress of | Prof. Narada | Academic and
16.09.2015 Quality Assurance | Warnasuriya Administrative Staff
Activities in Sri Members

Lankan Universities
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9. ENROLMENT, EXAMINATION RESULTS AND GRADUATION

Examination Results Semester |

Examination
No. Applied No. sat No. Passed No. Referred
Course of - Student
Study Examination Date of Exam Enrolment
2 @ @ 2
@ [ — @ [} — @ [} — @ [ —
= £ g = = g 3 = g 3 £ 3
© © © ©
s| 2| Rl = &| Rl =]| | r] = &R
257
Year | Semester | Sep /Oct 2015 (2013/2014) 49 155 | 204 49 155 | 204 48 153 | 201 1 2 3
209
. . Year Il Semester | |Sep /Oct 2015 38 166 | 204 | 38 164 | 202 21 145 | 166 17 19 36
Social Sciences P/ (2013/2014)
&Languages |\ riv's [ 249 17 | o7 9 9 2
ear emester | |Sep /Oct 2015 (2013/2014) 114 | 17 7 | 114 | 15 7 | 112 0 2
102
Year IV Semester | |Feb/Mar 2015 (2012/2013)* 25 83 108 25 80 105 25 77 102 0 3 3
78
Year | Semester | Sep /Dec 2015 (213/2014) 16 45 61 16 44 60 8 39 47 8 5 13
68
Year Il Semester | |Oct/Dec 2015 (2013/2014) 16 51 67 16 51 67 10 20 30 6 31 37
Agricultural 87
Sciences Year Il Semester | |Feb/Mar 2015 (2012/2013)* 34 59 93 31 59 90 23 53 76 8 6 14
71
Year IV Semester | |Mar/Apr 2015 (2012/2013) 28 44 72 28 44 72 28 44 72 0 0 0
65
Year IV Semester | |Oct/Dec 2015 (2013/2014) 19 48 67 19 48 67 19 48 67 0 0 0
353
Year | Semester | | Oct/Nov 2015 (2013/2014) 124 | 213 | 337 | 124 | 212 | 336 63 172 | 235 61 40 101
319
Year Il Semester | |Oct/Nov 2015 111 | 197 | 308 | 108 | 197 | 305 46 175 | 221 62 22 84
Management / (2013/2014)
Studies Year IV Semester | 300 143 | 182 | 325 | 143 | 182 | 325 | 111 | 171 | 282 32 11 43
Oct/Nov 2015 | (2013/2014)
333
Year IV Semester | 99 157 | 256 99 156 | 255 97 156 | 253 2 0 2
Oct/Nov 2015 | (2013/2014)
288
Year | Semester | |Sep/Oct 2015 (2013/2014) 130 | 135 | 265 | 129 | 133 | 262 61 104 | 165 68 29 97
294
. Year Il Semester | |Sep/Oct 2015 133 | 135 | 268 | 132 | 134 | 266 | 56 84 140 76 50 126
Applied b/ (2013/2014)
Sciences Year 111 Semester | 2015 |25
ear emester | |Sep/Oct 2015 (2013/2014) 74 92 166 | 69 91 160 | 32 62 94 37 29 66
188
Year IV Semester | |Sep/Oct 2015 (2013/2014) 112 85 197 | 109 42 151 | 103 38 141 6 4 10
50
Year | Semester | Sep/Oct 2015 (2013/2014) 34 14 48 33 14 47 24 13 37 10 1 11
53
Year Il Semester | 59 20 79 51 19 70 51 18 69 8 2 10
Feb/Mar 2015 | (2012/2013)*
Surveying 79
Sciences Year Il Semester | Sep/Oct 2015 (2013/2014) 48 3 51 46 2 48 43 2 45 5 1 6
61
Year IV Semester | 57 3 60 56 3 59 55 3 58 2 0 2
Feb/Mar 2015 | (2012/2013)*
53
Year IV Semester | 40 12 52 40 12 52 39 12 51 1 0 1
Sep/Oct 2015 (2013/2014)
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Examination Results Semester Il — 2015

Examination
No. Applied No. sat No. Passed No. Referred *
Course  of L
Examination Date of Exam
Study
2 2 2 )
@ g I @ g K= @ g K= @ S 5
< £ = = £ = T IS = = cl =
sl & & s g S = & = = I
Year | Semester Il Feb/Mar 2015 38 166 | 204 | 37 165 | 202 | 33 154 | 187 8 7 15
Year Il Semester 1l Feb/Mar 2016 34 224 | 258 | 34 219 | 253 | 24 186 | 210 10 33 43
Social
Sciences & | Year Il Semester Il Feb/Mar 2017 39 168 | 207 | 38 166 | 204 | 22 146 | 168 16 20 36
Languages
Year 11l Semester Il | Feb/Mar 2018 17 100 | 117 | 10 90 100 | 3 80 83 7 10 17
Year IV Semester Il | Feb/Mar 2019 25 83 108 | 25 83 108 | 25 83 108 0 0 0
Languages Year Il Semester Il | Feb/Mar 2015 2 54 56 2 43 45 2 32 34 0 11 11
Social
N Year Il Semester |1 Feb/Mar 2015 24 63 87 18 42 60 15 33 48 3 9 12
Sciences
Year | Semester |1 Feb/Mar 2015 17 53 70 16 53 69 7 42 49 9 11 20
. Year Il Semester |1 Oct/Dec 2015 34 59 93 33 59 92 29 55 84 4 4 8
Agricultural
Sciences
Year Il Semester Il | Feb/Mar 2015 19 48 67 19 48 67 19 48 67 0 0 0
Year IV Semester Il | Oct/Dec 2015 28 44 72 28 44 72 28 44 72 0 0 0
Year Il Semester 11 Oct/Nov 2015 112 | 201 | 313 | 110 | 196 | 306 | 46 155 | 201 64 41 105
Year | Semester Il Oct/Nov 2015 112 | 193 | 305 | 111 | 189 | 300 | 71 160 | 231 40 29 69
Managemen
StS d?gse ent Year Il Semester Il Oct/Nov 2015 111 | 191 | 302 | 110 | 191 | 301 | 63 149 | 212 47 42 89
Year 11l Semester Il | Oct/Nov 2015 150 | 181 | 331 | 150 | 181 | 331 | 113 | 173 | 286 37 8 45
Year IV Semester Il | Oct/Nov 2015 99 157 | 256 | 99 156 | 255 | 98 156 | 254 1 0 1
Year | Semester 11 Mar/Apr 2015 133 | 135 | 268 | 130 | 134 | 264 | 51 66 117 79 68 147
. Year Il Semester |1 Mar/Apr 2015 74 84 158 | 74 84 158 | 31 54 85 43 30 73
Applied
Sciences
Year Il Semester |1 Mar/Apr 2015 112 | 85 197 | 112 | 85 197 | 105 | 83 188 7 2 9
Year IV Semester Il | Sep/Oct 2015 89 79 168 | 89 79 168 | 88 78 166 1 1 2
Year | Semester Il Feb/Mar 2015 50 3 53 37 3 40 35 3 38 15 0 15
rveyin
Su' eying Year Il Semester 11 Sep/Oct 2015 59 20 79 50 19 69 50 19 69 9 1 10
Sciences
Year |1l Semester Il | Feb/Mar 2015 41 12 53 37 11 48 35 11 46 6 1 7

*Number of refered students has increased due to various reasons including medical, absent, fail and
not eligible students. As an example year 2 semester |1 number of refered students (105) includes 25
failed students 54 absent students and 26 not eligible students.
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Number of Students Graduated - 2015

No of Graduates

FACULTY Total
First Second Second Pass
Class Upper Lower
Faculty of Social Sciences 2 64 101 5 242
& Languages
Facu.lty of Management o 15 112 136 265
Studies
Fa.culty of Agricultural | 17 38 20 75
Sciences
Faculty of Applied Sciences | 2 16 97 69 184
Faculty of Geomatics - 5 16 41 62
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10. STUDENT WELFARE FACILITIES

When compared with the other national Universities, Sabaragamuwa University of
Sri Lanka has to pay more attention on the welfare of its undergraduates due to
scarcity of the resources in the vicinity of the University. Therefore, the University
is providing many services and facilities for the betterment of its students, through
many ways.

Just after the allocation was finished, the University Grants Commission sent the
allocated list to the respective Universities. So, it is the Academic & Students
Welfare Division where the allocated students for the respective degree programme
come first to get their registration done. With the beginning of the University life,
the undergraduates are entitle for below mention services and facilities which
provide by Academic & Students Welfare Division of the Sabaragamuwa University
of Sri Lanka.

Students Registration

Student’s registration is done annually whenever a new academic year has been
started. Academic & Students Welfare Division is maintaining a separate file for all
the registered undergraduates of the University which contains up to date personal
and academic life of them.

1st 1st 9 d 2nd 3 d 3rd 4th 4th
Faculty Sex Year Year YIelar Year Ylt;ar Year Year Year | Total
Total Total Total Total

Geomatics Male 36 33 39 41

Female 14 50 3 56 20 79 12 53 238
Applied Sciences | Male 45 32 30 25

Female 83 128 352 84 47 77 22 47 336
Physical
Education Male 27 26 6 14

Female 20 47 56 82 10 16 17 31 176

Sports Sc. &
Management Male 26 24 13 21

Female 25 51 20 44 15 28 12 33 156

Computing &

925

Infor. System Male 41 52 21 43

Female 21 62 32 84 13 34 34 77 257
Agricultural
Sciences Male 22 17 32 19

Female 57 79 52 69 59 91 48 67 306
Management
Studies Male 139 114 110 154

Female 214 | 353 205 | 319 190 | 300 181 335 1307

Social Sciences &
Languages Male 56 42 33 18

Female

201

257

167

209

216

249

102

120

835

Total

1027

947

874

763

3611
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Accommodation Facilities

As the University is in a low density area, considering the difficulties in finding the
residential facilities for undergraduates by themselves, all the students whose
permanent residencies are more than 20 km away from the University are provided
hostel facilities by the University. So, about 91.4% of the undergraduates are
received the University provided hostel facilities.

The University has provided accommodation in its own hostels only for about 750
male students and 1138 female students out of 3302 residing students. All the
other students have been provided with accommodation in rented houses in the
vicinity with bare minimum facilities.

The University spends more than 12 million per annum for rented houses to
accommodate the students.

Faculty Sex st 1st 2nd | 2nd 3rd 4th [ 4th Total
year | year year | year 3rd | year year | year
Total Total year | Total Total

Male 30 49 59 26
Geomatics Female | 14 44 3 52 20 79 12 38 213
Agricultural Male 1 6 17 26 17
Sciences Female | 48 64 48 65 59 85 42 59 273
Applied Male 128 129 70 99
Sciences Female | 124 252 130 | 259 82 152 67 166 829
Management Male 137 84 103 121
Studies Female | 207 344 205 | 289 190 | 293 178 299 1225
Social Male 52 42 33 18
Sciences &
Languages Female | 192 244 126 | 168 197 | 230 102 120 762
Total 948 833 839 682 3302

New Hostel Complexes

Under the programme of Ministry of Higher Education, developing hostel facilities
for undergraduate in the University system, two hostel complexes are under
construction. One of the complex is allocated for Girls and the other one is for
Boys. Each one complex has 100 rooms with reading room, common area and
other relevant facilities.

Medical Facility

Compare to other Universities maintaining of the Medical Center of the University
is very costly due to climate situation of the area. The closest Base Hospital is
Balangoda which is 20 Km away from the University, and the nearest Rural
Hospital is Pabahinna. But the University Medical Center has to cater not only for
the students but also the resident staff and their family members. The service of
Medical Centre is free of charge.

104



Financial Assistances

Mahapola Scholarships

Out of the total student population of 3611 in the year 2015 only 1514 students
are received Mahapola Scholarships. This is 42% of total students' population.
Amount of Mahapola installment was increased from the beginning of this
academic year (in May,2015).

Mahapola
2013/2014 | 2012/2013 2011/2012 | 2010/2011 | Total
5050. [S000. [5050. | 5000. [5S050. 5000.
00 00 00 00 0o 00 5000.00
Geomatics 25 37 44 34 140
Agricultural Sciences 7 21 25 26 79
Applied Sciences 16 20 25 15 76
Computing &
. 20 28 10 25 83
Information Systems
Physical Education 16 38 1 9 64
Sport  Sciences &
11 26 7 7 51
Management
Management Studies 186 258 S 121 | 184 754
Social Sciences &
1 55 1 106 64 40 267
Languages
Total 337 535 302 | 340 1514
Bursaries

The total numbers of bursary recipients are 1162. This is 32.17% of the total
student population. Among them 827 students receive Rs.4000 per installment and
the rest receive Rs.3900 per installment. Installment amount of bursary was

increased in the mid of this academic year (in October,2015)

Academic Year | 2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012 2010/2011 Total
Installment 4000.00 |3900.00/000.00 [3900.0044000.00 [3900.00000.00 [3900.00| Student
Rs.

Geomatics 01 02 1 2 - 6 1 1 14
Agricultural

Sciences 18 08 17 12 25 10 16 3 109
Applied

Sciences 30 23 23 9 14 11 15 S 130
Dept. of

Sport

Sciences 12 02 2 1 14 S 13 3 52
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Dept. of
Computing &
Information 12 04 9 11 1 - 16 7 60

Dept. of
Physical
Education 19 02 3 1 11 3 15 5 59

Management
Studies 68 23 7 6 97 31 87 26 345

Social
Sciences &
Languages 95 29 37 21 100 40 48 23 393

Total 255 93 99 63 262 (106 |211 |73 1162

Total number of students who received financial assistance in the form of
Mahapola and Bursary are 2676. This is 74.1% of the total student population.

Canteen Facilities

All the student canteens are functioning under the guidance and supervisions of
Academic and Students' Affairs Division. All the cooking equipments and furniture
are provided to the canteens by the University. Canteen keepers have been totally
released from the paying charges of water and electricity. In addition to these relief
subsidy is paid for the gas based on the student ratio.
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11.

STAFF DETAILS

DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF

Approved Cadre and Present Staff

Staff Category [Salary Scale Approved Number of Present Number of No. of
Cadre Permanent Staff |[Temporary Staff Vacancies
Male [Female |Total Male Female Total
(1) (2) (3)  [(1)-(2)
Academic Staff [U-AC 3 to U-AC 5 222 119 |79 198 24
U-AC 1 to U-AC 2 35 23 46 69 35
Library U-AC 3 to U-AC 5 7 4 1 ) 2
(Professional
Staff)
Academic U-AS 1 to U-AS 2 52 15 6 21 1 1 31
Supportive
Staff
Administrative [U-EX 1 to U-EX 3 25 8 14 29 3
Staff
Other U-EX 1 to U-EX 3, *1 6 4 4 5
Executive Staff [U-MO 1 to U-MO 2
Technical Staff [U-MT 1, U-MN 1 to *1 19 10 1 11 8
U-MN 4, U-EX 1 to U-EX 2
Clarical &U-MN 1, U-MN 4 149 49 75 124 25
Allied
Junior Staff U-PL 1 to U-PL 3 220 15 33 191 29
Total 735 367 [209 576 24 (46 70 159
Faculty of Agricultural Sciences
Promotion
No | Name Designation Date of | Department
Appointment
01 | Dr. C N Walpita Senior Lecturer Gr. I 13.10.2014 Livestock Production
02 | Dr. P K Dissanayake | Senior Lecturer Gr.1 | 02.04.2015 Export Agriculture
03 |Dr. (Mrs.) R K| Senior Lecturer Gr.1 | 30.12.2015 Livestock Production
Mutucumarana
04 | Dr. (Mrs.) P M A S| Professor 28.05.2015 Export Agriculture
Karunaratne
05 | Dr. (Mrs.) D A M De | Professor 26.02.2015 Agribusiness Management
Silva
06 | Dr. M Esham Professor 20.04.2015 Agribusiness Management
07 | Dr. PI Yapa Professor 07.12.2015 Export Agriculture
New Appointments
No | Name Designation Date of | Department Per/Tem
Appointment
01 | Ms. J Wijesinghe Temporary 02.02.2015 Export Agriculture | Tem
Demonstrator
02 | Ms. L H M G | Temporary 11.11.2015 Export Agriculture | Tem
Gunathilake Demonstrator
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03 | Mr. B E S Bandara Temporary 16.02.2015 Agribusiness Tem
Demonstrator Management

04 | Ms. T M Liyanagamage Temporary 09.12.2015 Agribusiness Tem
Demonstrator Management

05 | Ms. W N Nisansala Temporary 14.12.2015 Export Agriculture | Tem
Demonstrator

06 | Ms. D P Liyanage Temporary 14.12.2015 Export Agriculture | Tem
Demonstrator

Faculty of Applied Sciences

Promotion
No | Name Designation Department Date of
Promotion
01 | Prof. G.M.L.P. | Professor Physical  Sciences and | 03.06.2015
Aponsu Technology
01 | Dr. B.T.G.S. | Senior Lecturer Grade II Computing & Information | 12.11.2015
Kumara Systems
02 | Dr. M.D. Ranaweera | Senior Lecturer Grade I Sports Science and | 11.03.2015
Physical Education
03 | Mrs. L.D. Lekamge Lecturer Natural Resources 11.02.2015
04 | Dr. W.S.M. | Senior Lecturer Gr. II Food Science & Technology | 11.02.2015
Seneviratne
New Appointment
No | Name Designation Department Date of
Appointment
01 | Mr. S. Thuseethan Lecturer (Probationary) Computing & Info. | 03.03.2015
Systems
02 | Mr. C.U. | Lecturer (Probationary) Computing & Info. | 03.03.2015
Wimalasooriya Systems
03 | Ms. B.P.G.S. | Temporary Demonstrator Sports Sci. & Phy. | 23.11.2015
Gunarathne Education
04 | Mr. N.S. Muthukuda | Temporary Demonstrator - do - 30.11.2015
05 | Ms. K.B. Jayasekara | Temporary Demonstrator - do - 23.11.2015
06 | Mr. H.M.L.N. | Temporary Demonstrator Computing & Info. | 23.11.2015
Jayarathna Systems
06 | Ms. R.N.N. | Temporary Demonstrator Natural Resources 12.10.2015
Weerasinghe
07 | Ms. D.A. Jayakody Temporary Lecturer Sports Sci. & Phy. | 14.12.2015
Education
08 | Ms. Zohara Rafi Temporary Demonstrator Natural Resources 12.10.2015
09 | Mr. L.A.S.M. | Temporary Demonstrator Physical Science & |22.09.2015
Bandara Tech.
Faculty of Geomatics
Permanent appointment
Se. | Name Post Date of | Faculty Department
no. Appointment
01 | Mr. K.K.D.W.S. | Lecturer 20.08.2015 Geomatics Surveying &
Kannangara (probationary) Geodesy
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Promotion

Se. | Name Post Date of | Faculty Department
no. Promotion
01 | Dr. H.M.[.Prasanna Senior Lecturer | 01.11.2015 Geomatics Surveying & Geodesy
Gr. 1
Temporary appointment
Se. | Name Designation Date of | Faculty Department
no. Appointment
01 | Ms. H. M. T. M. H. Temporary 02.07.2015 Geomatics Surveying & Geodesy
Molagoda Demonstrator
02 | Ms. R.M. ILH Temporary 18.05.2015 Geomatics Surveying & Geodesy
Ranathunga Demonstrator
03 | Mr. V.M Indika Temporary 20.08.2015 Geomatics RS & GIS
Chathurange Demonstrator
04 | Ms. M. A Liyanage Temporary 20.08.2015 Geomatics RS & GIS
Demonstrator
05 | Mr. P.M.T.S. Temporary 20.08.2015 Geomatics RS & GIS
Sirisena Demonstrator
06 | Mr. H.M.B.I. | Temporary 26.08.2015 Geomatics RS & GIS
Gunathilaka Assistant
Lecturer
07 | Mr. A.A.C.N Atapattu | Temporary 01.09.2015 Geomatics RS & GIS
Lecturer
08 |Mr. G. HH R. T Temporary 02.11.2015 Geomatics Surveying & Geodesy
Gunarathna, Demonstrator
09 |Ms. D. T. P 02.11.2015 Geomatics Surveying & Geodesy
Nawagamuwa
Faculty of Management Studies
Promotions
No | Name Designation Department Date of
Appointment
Dr. R.M.W D t t f Touri
o1. | -* , Senior Lecturer Gr I cpartmen © OunSm 1 43.10.2015
Rathnayaje Management
. . D f A
02. MS. . uc Senior Lecturer Gr II 'epartment of Accountancy & 01.06.2015
Edirirsinghe Finance
. .P.G.S. t f Busi
03. Mrs NP.G.SI Senior Lecturer Gr II Departmen © ustess 01.06.2015
Naotunna Management
D f A t &
04. | Mr. H.R Sampath | Senior Lecturer Gr II 'ep artment of Accountancy 01.06.2015
Finance
Confirmation
No | Name Designation Department Date of
Appointment
01. | Mr. H.R Sampath Lecture.r D.epartment of Accountancy & 01.06.2010
(Probationary) Finance
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Faculty of Social Sciences & Languages
New Appointments - 2015

No | Name Designation Date of | Department
Appointment
1 Mr. N.C. | TL 02.10.2014 Languages
Weerarathne
S Ms. W.K.S. | TL 05.05.2015 Languages
Anuruddhika
7 Ms. W.D.R.V. | TL 02.11.2015 Geography and
Nandasena Environmental Management
8 Ms. B.SK. | TL 02.11.2015 Economics & Statistics
Balasooriya
10 | Ms. M.C. Danawala | TL 02.11.2015 Social Sciences
Vithana
12 | Ms. K.G.K.De Silva | TL 02.11.2015 Languages
13 | Ms. S.P.S.P. | TL 14.12.2015 Languages
Weerasinghe
CONFIRMATION & PROMOTION
No Name Designation Date of | Department
Promotion
01 Mr W M J Welgama | Senior Lecturer Gr II 07.04.2015 Social Sciences
02 Ms E M T K| Lecturer 28.02.2015 Geography and
Senevirathne Environmental
Management
03 Mrs R M L | Senior Lecturer Gr I 11.12.2015 Economics &
Rathnayake Statistics
04 Ms RW M P GIK | Senior Lecturer G r II 15.07.2015 English Language
Weerakoon Teaching
05 Ms B M L R K | Senior Lecturer Gr II 20.01.2015 English Language
Basnayake Teaching
RESIGNATION
No Name Designation Date of | Department
Promotion
01 Rev. A. Wijitha Senior Lecturer Gr II 05.04.2015 Languages
02 Dr. W.M. Hao Senior Lecturer Gr 1] 31.05.2015 Languages
(Contract)
Administrative Officers
Permanent appointment
Se.no. | Name Post Date of Appointment
01 Mr. K. Gunawardana Deputy Registrar 05.05.2015
02 Mrs. P. B. N. Fernando Assistant Registrar 05.05.2015
03 Mr. W.R.Y.S. | Instructor (Computer | 01.02.2015
Samaranayaka Technology) Gr II
Temporary appointment
Se.no. | Name Designation | Date of | Department
Appointment
01 Ms. N.M.T.S Dissanayaka Scientific 01.03.2015 CRKD
Assistant
02 Ms. Instructor in | 16.11.2015 CODL
G.K.M.Wickramarathna English
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Transfer

Se.no. | Name Designation | Date of | Faculty
Transfer
01 Mr. H.M.S.H. System 01.11.2015 Faculty of Applied Sciences
Bandara Engineer Gr
I
DETAILS OF NON ACADEMIC STAFF
Promotion
2015-01-01 up to 2015-12-31
No | Name Designation Department Date of
Appointment
01 | Mr.W.A.Jayasena | Full Time Sub Warden | Academic & Student | 01.01.2015
Gr. 1 Affairs
Promotion
2014-01-01 up to 2014-12-31
No | Name Designation Department Date of
Appointment
01 | Mr. K.D.S.P. | Senior Staff Asst./ | Academic & Student | 01.01.2014
Senevirathne Clerical Service Affairs
02 | Mr. K.D.N.P.S. | Staff  Asst./ Clerical | Faculty of Social | 02.11.2014
Kumara Service Sciences& Languages
03 | Mrs. H.L.AH. | Clerk Gr. I Main Library 01.02.2014
Gunasekara
04 | Ms. A.M.AJ.P. | Clerk Gr. I Faculty of Applied | 10.10.2014
Kumarihamy Sciences
05 | Mrs. S. | Typist (Sinhala) Gr. I Dept. of Languages 01.04.2014
Samaraweera Faculty of Social
Sciences& Languages
06 | Mr. S. | Staff Asst. Library Service | Main Library 04.11.2014
Hettiarachchi
07 | Mr. D.K.S. | Staff Asst. Library Service | Library /Faculty of | 01.02.2014
Gamini Management Studies
08 | Mr. A.K.N. Lewis | Staff Asst. Library Service | Main Library 02.11.2014
10 | Mr. R.A.S. | Driver Special Grade Administration Branch 01.06.2014
Wijepala
11 | Mr. H.D.N. Perera | Driver Special Grade Administration Branch 01.06.2014
12 | Mr. K.D.R. | Driver Special Grade Administration Branch 01.06.2014
Gunasiri
13 | Mr. W.M. | Driver Special Grade Administration Branch 01.06.2014
Amarasinghe
14 | Mr. A M.S.M.IL. | Plumber Gr. I Maintenance Branch 01.04.2014
Aththanayaka
15 | Mr. R.M.L. | Plumber Gr. I Maintenance Branch 01.04.2014
kumara
16 | Mr. G.R. | Electrician Gr. I Maintenance Branch 01.04.2014
Harischandra
17 | Mr. K.W.R.D. | Gardener Gr. I Landscape Division 01.07.2014
Kevitiyagala
18 | Mr. E.B.H.P. | Grounds men Gr. I Dept. of Physical | 01.04.2014
Hewage Education
19 Mrs. P.R. | Library Att. Special Gr. Library / Faculty of | 01.08.2014
Siriyalatha Agricultural Sciences
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Retirement
2015-01-01 up to 2015-12-31

No | Name Designation Department Resignation
Date
01 | Mr. Y.D. Perera Lorry/Bus Cleaner Gr.II Administration Branch 23.09.2015
Transfer
2015-01-01 up to 2015-12-31
No | Name Designation Department Date of
Transfer

01 | Mr. W.M.S. | Record Keeper Gr.II Non Academic | 03.08.2015
Wijesundara Establishments

02 | Mr. B.A.T.P. | Computer Applications | Non Academic | 03.08.2015
Dissanayaka Asst. Gr. III Establishments

03 | Mr. H.I.A. | Clerk Gr. III Academic Establishments 15.09.2015
Perera

04 | Ms. AAM.AJ.P. | Clerk Gr. I Faculty of Applied Science 15.09.2015
Kumarihamy

05 | Mrs. R.M.P.G. | Staff Asst./ Clerical Service | CODL 02.11.2015
Wijerathne

06 | Mrs. C.J.B. | Computer Application Asst. | Faculty of Applied Science | 02.11.2015
Pathirage Gr. III

07 | Mr. P.G.R.C. | Carpenter Gr. II Maintenance Branch 15.09.2015
Kumara

08 | Mr. D.P.G.A.J. | Labourer Gr.III Maintenance Branch 05.05.2015
Perera

09 | Mr. K.P.K.N. | Labourer Gr.III Maintenance Branch 15.06.2015
Kumara
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12. Accounts

& @@ R0®Y0 BeederEn

ov. 60. 02. cRABHERS - 70140 & @0

SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA
P.O. BOX 02, BELIHULOYA - 70140, SRI LANKA

6 GO : 263 G : Zoo :
My No.:My No. Act.B./FA/2015 Your No. : Date: 2016.02.28

Auditor General

Auditor General’s Department
No: 306/72, Polduwa Road
Battaramulla.

Dear Sir

CERTIFICATE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER
ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 2015

The financial statement of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka for the financial year ended 31
December 2015 has been prepared in the form and manner specified by the University Grants
Commission and in terms of section 106 and 107 of the University Act No. 16 of 1978 in terms of the
Finance Act No. 38 of 1971 and has been rendered to the Auditor General together with the notes and
schedules referred to in the Statement of Financial Performance and the Statement of Financial Position.
Financial rules and procedures prescribed by the University Grants Commission have been complied
with, and the systems of controls have been maintained as far as practicable to ensure propriety of
transactions and efficiency in expenditure. To the best of my knowledge, the statement in respect of the
year 2015 have been prepared satisfactorily and exhibits a true and fair view of the financial position of

the University.

Thank You

Chancellor
Prof. Chandana P. Udawatte

Cc:  Secretary Ministry of Higher Education
Secretary Ministry of Finance
Chairman University Grants Commission

General Phone  +94 045 2280014 Fax +94 045 2280015
+94 045 2280087 Fax +94 045 2280215
+94 045 2280178
Vice Chancellor  Phone  +94 045 2280012 Fax - +94 045 2280128 Email vc@sab.ac.lk
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SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2015
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Loans & Advances to Staff
Inventories / Stocks
Insurance Recievable
Disposal of old stocks
Other Advances

Non Current Assets

Loans & Advances to Staff
Deposits

Livestock

Knowledge Enhancement
Curriculam Revision

Property, Plant & Equipment (Net)
Work In Progress

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accrued Expenses

Sundry Creditors

Refundable Deposits and Funds
Provisions for Gratuity

BOC Leasor Liability

Non Current Liabilites
Provisions for Gratuity
-BOC Leasor Liability

Total Liabilities

TOTAL NET ASSETS

" Note

W oda N

REBexaas

13
14
15
16
17

16
17

2015
Rs.

76,295,157
2,646,312
16,626,260
15,164,133
471,590
4,523,300

115,726,751

47,312,606
48,558,134
1,507,065
2,330,454
1,769,948
2,135,725 391
9,089,606

2,246,293,204

2,362,019,956

86,292,739
74,338,071
50,429,388
2,481,693
6,976,250

220,518,141

107,081,580
17,440,625
124,522,205

345,040,346

2,016,979,610
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NET ASSETS /EQUITY

Capital Grant 18 2,176,883,641
Other Reserves 19 58,761,861
Accumulated surpluses/(deficits) 20 (285,866,170)
Restricted Funds 21 46,370,999
Donations % 20,829,279
TOTAL NET ASSETS/EQUITY 2,016,979,610

These financia! statements are in compliance with the requirements of the University Act No. 16 of 1978 and
oher statutory provisions. i :

The CouncilNgf the unversity is responsibe for the preparaion and presentation of these financial statements
signed for and oh behalf of the Council. ]

5 -
Prof. Charfdana P. Udawatte v ME ibathul Careem Dr. R. Ja ra

Vice Chancellor ~ Registrar Council Member

The Accounting Policies and Notes on pages 9 to 16 form an integral part of these Financial Statements,

28/02/2016
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SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2015

2015

REVENUE Note Rs.
Recurrent Grant 891,508,158
Bursary and Mahapola Grants 22 88,998,550
S.D.C. Grant =
Self Finance Programme Income 23 33,065,177
Other Income 24 20,888,501
Differed Income 25 219,171,888
Total Revenue 1,253,632,275

T EXPENSE
Personnel Emoluments ' » 26-A 710,150,292
Travelling & Subsistence 26-B 2,062,833
Supplies & Consumables 26-C 55,793,215
Maintenance Expenses 26-D 14,731,494
Contractual Services 26-E 138,155,983
Other Recurrent Expenses 26-F 38,506,849
Self Finance Programme Expenses 26-G 25,416,878
Mahapola & Bursaries 26-H 88,998,550
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 26-1 226,978,648
Total Expenses 1,300,794,742
Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period (47,162,467)
Loss on disposal of Buttala Buildings -
Loss on disposal of Water Bowser 316,251
Net Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period (47,478,718)
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SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2015

REVENUE

Recurrent Grant

Bursary and Mahapola Granls
S.D.C. Grant

Self Finance Programme Income -
Other Income

Differed Income

Total Revenue

OPE XPENSES

Personnel Emoluments

Travelling & Subsistence

Supplies & Consumables

Maintenance Expenses

Contractual Services

Other Recurrent Expenses

Self Finance Programme Expenses
Mahapola & Bursaries

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses

Total Expenses
Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period

Loss on disposal of Buttala Buildings
Loss on disposal of Water Bowser

Net Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period

2015
Note Rs.

891,508,158

22 88,998,550
23 33,065,177
24 20,888,501
25 219,171,888
1,253,632,275

» 26-A 710,150,292

26-B 2,062,833
26-C 55,793,215
26-D 14,731,494
26-E 138,155,983
26-F 38,506,849
26-G 25,416,878
26-H 88,998,550
26-1 226,978,648
1,300,794,742
(47,162,467)

316,251

(47,478,718)
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SABARAGAMUWA UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA

CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T DECEMBER 2015 -

‘ Rs)
2015 ' 2014 -
Cash Flow From Operating Activities i
Surplus / { Deficit) from operating activities (47,478,718) (59,919,196)
Non Cash Movemenis
Depreciation 226,539,484 208,622,951
Loss ‘on valuation of Live Stocks - 152,655 626,290
Disposal Loss on Buttala Land & Building . 43,446,162
Disposal Loss on Motor Vehicle 316,251 ‘ ‘
Aprovision & Adjustments Current Year , (501,716)
- {Provision & Adjustments prior Year -
- {,ease Interest 516,143
A Gratuity Provision 12,065,470 15,819,962
Defetred Income o ‘ o (219,171,888)] . (206,569,273)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes (27,060,604) 1,525,180
,It.ic'rease'/ Decre_ase‘ in Inventories 1,724,870 (3,010,229)
Inicrease / Decrease other current assets 1,630,228 |. (1,859,973) '
|ttcrease / Deotease cutrent liabilities (11,101,839) 13,451,834
{Payment for Gratuity : (1,742,182) (1,473,047
iPayment for Raknalanka payments - _
1Net cash flows from Operation Activities (36,549,527) 8,633,765
‘Cash Flow From Investing Activilies
¥purchase of Property palnt & Equipments (4302777 . (252,627,757)
Jincrease / Decréase other Non current assets (9,117,839 270,300;000
“ICapital grant for the year 167,300,000 (628,590}
' |Net cash flows from Investing Activities ‘ 75,789,384 17 -,043',653
_|cash Flow From Financing Activitie,é
- [Receipt of Cash Donation 12,548,743
‘Wease Payments (4,004,268) '
Loan Payments (18,408,337) (26,030,365}
Loan - Recoveries 20,354,997
Jnsurance Receipt . 5,904,050 :
Increase / Decrease Qf restricted funds 3,006,860 10,686,053
Net cash flows from Financing Activities - 19,'4!)2_,(-]4_5 (15,344;312)
Net Incresed / (Decresed) in cash and cash equivalents 56,64i,902 10,333,106
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the yeat 19,653,253 9,320,145
Cash & Cash Equivalént at the énd of the year 76,295,157 19,653,255
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2015

2015
Note Rs.
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2
Boc - Balangoda Recurrent - 0002246976 508,292
Boc - Balangoda Capital - 0003416128 62,634,019
Boc - Balangoda CODL - 0002246875 11,566,659
PB - Balangoda Recurrent - 017100150040960 1,586,186
76,295,157
Receivables 3
Consultancy Deposit General T e e -
University Grant Commission =
HETC Project 590,424
Cash Fraud - Rahangala (Recurrent) 189,303
Sundry Deblors 105,525
Sundry Deposits - Recievable 408,480
Recievable Rent From Properties’ %
Pre Payments 1,233,675
Pre-Payments Library Books -
Receivable from Staff 118,905
2,646,312
Loans & Advances to Staff 4
Recoverable Recoverable  Total
during 2016 after 2016
Distress Loan 13,867,782 43,328,335 57,196,116
Staff Loan 258,530 595,300 853,830
Computer Loan 991,500 1,298,500 2,290,000
Transport Loan 1,357,149 2,012,572 3,369,720
Festival Advance 145,450 - 145,450
‘Special Advance 5,850 - 5,850
Loan Adjustment Account - 77,900 77,900
Salary Advance - - -
16,626,260 47,312,606 63,938,867
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 General Policies
1.1.1 Reporting Entity

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka has been incorporated under the Universities Act
No. 16 of 1978 and located at P.0. Box 02, Belihuloya. This is a National university mainly

operates on government funds.

1.1.2 Principal activities and nature of operations

113
(a)

(b)

(©

(@)

The university primarily caters to local students in the fields of Agricultural Sciences, Social
Sciences, Applied Sciences and Management Studies. The university is promoting higher

studies and research.

Basis of reparation

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements comprise the statements of financial position, statement of
financial performance, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statements and notes to the
financial statements.

The Financial Statements of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka are prepared in
conformity with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards for the accrual basis of
accounts. All accounting policies adopted by the University are applied consistently with
those of the previous year, where necessary comparative figures have been adjusted to

conform to the changes, in presentation of current year figures.

Basis of measurement
The Financial Statements of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka are prepared under
the Historical Cost convention and do not take into account changes in money values, except

where it is stated.

Functional and presentation currency
The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the University's

functional and presentation currency.

Going concern

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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1.2 Assets and the bases of their valuation
1.2.1 Property, Plant & Equipment

a)

b)

)

d)

Lands, Buildings, Laboratory and Teaching Equipment, Fixtures & Fittings, Library Books
and Periodicals, Motor Vehicles, Cloaks and Other Assets include the items acquired out of

government grant, research grants, internally generated funds, and donations.

Basis of Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item
can be reliably measured. Properties, plant and equipments are recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation. The cost of property, plant and equipment is the cost of

purchase or construction together with any incidental expenses thereon.

Cost
The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase or construction cost and

any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure on existing Fixed Assets
Expenditure incurred on tangible fixed assets is charged to the Statement of Financial
Performance in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one of the following criteria, in
which case it is capitalized and depreciates on the relevant basis.

°  Market value of fixed assets has subsequently increased.

¢ Asset capacity increase.

°  Sustainable improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating cost.

° Significant extension of the asset life beyond that confirmed by repair and

main‘tenance‘

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on a Straight —Line
Method over the estimated useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment items from the
date that they were made available for use. Lands are not depreciated. The estimated

useful life periods are as follows.

Description Estimated useful life period
Buildings 20 years
Water Treatment plant 20 years
Office and Teaching Equipment 5 years
Computer & computer accessories 5 years
Library Books and Periodicals S years
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e)

1.2.2

Communication Equipments 5 years

Motor Vehicles 5 years
Cloaks S years
Other Equipments S years

Depreciation is provided in full in the year of purchase and no depreciation is charged in
the year of disposal. This method of depreciation is adopted in using the rates in the UGC
circular 649 from the financial year 2006 and hope to continue in future. Also this method
of calculation of depreciation was approved by our council at its 117% meeting held on
20.01.2007.

Water Bowser purchased in 2012 was fully damaged in 2013 and insurance claim received
from Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation during the year 2015. The deficit charged to the

statement of financial performance.

Capital Works in Progress

Capital expenses incurred during the year which are not completed as at the date of the
Statement of Financial Position are shown as Capital Work-in-Progress, whilst the capital
assets which have been completed during the year and put to use have been transferred to

Property, Plant and Equipment.

Curriculum Revision

The university revises the curriculum for all degree programs in every five years and
amendments are not making within that period. Hence, the expenditure incurred on capital
funds are amortize over the five years period. Since the faculty of Management Studies
and Faculty of Geomatics have implemented the revised curriculum w.e.f. 2015, the

expenditure incurred on that are amortizes w.e.f. 2015.

1.2.3  Knowledge Enhancement

The expenditure incurred to enhance the knowledge of the employees is treated as capital

expenditure and amortize over 5 year period.

1.2.4 Livestock

1.2.5

Livestock are revalued and revaluation surplus / deficit charged to the statement of

financial performance.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost based on FIFQ basis,
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1.2.6

1.2.7

Receivables

Receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize.

Cash & cash equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents comprise cash deposits at banks.

1.3 Liabilities & Provisions

13.1

13.2

All known liabilities as at the balance sheet date are included in the financial statements
and adequate provisions are made for liabilities which are known to exit but the amount of
which cannot be determined accurately.

Obligations payable on demand or within one year of the balance sheet date are treated as
current liabilities in the balance sheet. Liabilities payable after one year from the balance

sheet date are treated as noncurrent liabilities in the balance sheet.

Provision for retiring Gratuity

The university has adopted the benefit plan as required under the payment of Gratuity Act
No. 12 of 1983 for all eligible employees.

Defined benefit plans define an amount of benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognizes in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans for the
employees who have completed 5 years of service in the university system as at the

balance sheet date.

Accounting for Grants

Grants that compensate the University for Expenses incurred are recognized as revenue in
the income statement in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grants that
compensate the University for the Cost of an asset are recognized in the income statement
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related asset.

As per Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Slandered 20 the university adopted income
approach accounting principal when identifying capital grants and donations w.e.f,

2014.01.01 and hope to continue in future.

1.3.4 Contingent Liabilities

Below mentioned all court cases are ongoing and we have to incur legal fees. Some

compensation cannot be estimated at the moment. Therefore, no provision has been made
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in the accounts with regard to liabilities arising out of litigation. Ongoing court cases as at

the balance sheet date are stated below.

District Court
3917/M M.D.L.D.K Yatawara,
3918 /M M.D.LD.K.Yatawara,
3401 /M Polytech janitorial service (L.A.K.Dihani Silva)
4248 |M W.M.Deepika Priyadarshani
3947 /M A.Anuradha Rodrigo
3239/M T.K.RP.Pathegama
3121 /M D.B.G jayathissa,
2900 /M M. Wimaladasa de Silva
3299 /M A MP M Kurunarathna
3555 /M D.M.Rathnayake

USAB
USAB-857 Dr.M.D.Ranaweera
USAB-857 Mr.W.R.P.W.M.Dambawinna
USAB-865 Mr.Gunasinghe

Supreme Court
13/2015 D.T.Wickramarathne
45/15 T.D.Mataraarachchi
267/2014 B.M.D.GA.D.Bandara Aberathne
09/15 R.H.A.S.S.Karunarathne
Court of Appeal
CA/ PHC/48/2009 P.A Premawathi Menike
CA WRIT Appilication No.1047/2008 T.M.S.L.Priyadharshaka
Civil Appeal

CA 66/2015  M.Wimaladasa De Silva

High Court
37/2012-LTA G.Anura Bandara
38/2012 -LTA B.P.Gamini Anura
35/2012-LTA D.B.J. Wijerathne
36/2012- LTA K Kithsiri Dayananda
34/2012 - LTA Upali Amarasena Ranathunga
Case no HC/ARB 349/2011  Design consultant
HC/ARB/95/2014 Design consultant
HRC/12/12/15 W.P.S.T.Samaratsundara
HC/ARB 207/2013 Design consultant

Human Rights Commission
HRC/642/15 H.M.G.P.Gunathilaka
HRC/35/98/15 K.W.S.Thilakarathne
HRC/29/58/2015 W.P.Elvitigala
IR/COM/05/H/2015/30 P.B.Presad
PTD/227/G/2014 R.A.Udaya Kumara
11643/TP R.A.Udaya Kumara
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BC1489/2014/b-25 mrs.M.L.K.M.Dissanayaka
M.M.Wimalasiri & M.M.Indeera

Magistrate Court

51445/12 The case is filed by the Police to against a few Students.
54123 The case is filed by the police
Arbitration

ICLP Ref. No.238(i)- Design Consultant ICLP Arbitration Centre.

1.4 Income Statement

1.4.1 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized on accrual basis.
(a) Interest income is recognized on accrual basis.
(B) Revenue from grants are recognized in the period in which they were received
(¢) Sponsorship related activities are recognized on receipt.

(d) Other income is recognized on accrual basis.

(e) Government Grants
Grant received from General Treasury of Government of Sri Lanka will comprises Capital and
recurrent. Government grants utilized to acquire assets that will be expensed in subsequent
period are recognized as differed income.

Total capital grants received for the year was Rs. 1,147,806,708 which has been used as follows.

2015 2014

Rs. © Rs.
Government Grant for Recurrent Expenditure 891,508,158 733,000,000
Government Grant for Mahapola Scholarships 59,044,750 17,813,300
Government Grant for Bursaries 29,953,800 41,439,300
Capital Grants for Rehabilitation 25,000,000 55,200,000
Capital grants for Equipment, Book & Periodicals 82,000,000 60,000,000
Capital grants for Constructions 50,000,000 122,050,000
Knowledge Enhance & Institute Develop 10,300,000 33,050,000
Total 1,147,806,708 1,062,552,600

1.4.2  Expenditure

All expenditure incurred in maintaining the university has been recognized on accrual basis

and charged to the revenue in ascertaining the income over expenditure.
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1.5 Comparative Information

The comparative figures have been reorganized where necessary to conform to the current

year’s presentation.

1.6 3Cash flow Statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared using indirect method.

1.7 Following adjustments have been made to the General Reserves account based on the SLIPSAS 6.

Following amounts are debited

a) Rs.238,867.00
b) Rs. 18,750.00
¢) Rs.72,059.17
d) Rs.4,939,136.40
e) Rs.353,640.00
£) Rs.28,507,840.32
g) Rs.9,648.00

h) Rs.93,336.13
i) Rs.147,899.00
i) Rs.93,651.20
k) Rs.87.80

1) Rs.16,150.00
m) Rs. 1,176,669.08
n) Rs.39,100.00
0) Rs.1,996,800.00
p) Rs. 9,467,300.00
q) Rs.442,113.86

Gratuity over provision

Salary payment

salary payment

Depreciation of Other Equipments
Correction of Sundry Deposits
Depreciation of Social Science & Languages Building
Travelling

Ayurvedic Therapy

Indigenous Studies

Msc Hospital Management
Sundry Deposit Receivables
Under Provision of Audit fee
Restricted Funds Deposit

Over amortization of Grants
Settlement of Mahapola
Settlement of Bursary

Refund of Undergraduates registration fees

Following amounts are credited

1) Rs.568,302.50
s) Rs.235,719.38

t) Rs.103,377.38

u) Rs.250,000.00

v) Rs.377,126.66
w) Rs.28,507,840.32
x) Rs.2,115,536.40
y) Rs.5,380,688.52

Gratuity under provision

Convocation expenses

Salary payment

Bid Bond

Depreciation of office & Teaching Equipments
Differed Income Social Science Building
Performance Bond

Correction of performance bond
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18

z) Rs.37,012.85 Salaries

aa) Rs. 618,492.00 Cabana Income

bb) Rs. 873.02 Sundry Deposit payable
cc) Rs. 4,720,379.76  Accrued Expenses

Inter Company Accounts
When preparing the financial statements of the university the amounting to Rs.30,662,462.94
payable to Center for Open & Distance Learning and receivable from Center for Open &

Distance Learning are set off.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2015

2015
Note Rs.
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2
Boc - Balangoda Recurrent - 0002246976 508,292 §
Boc - Balangoda Capital - 0003416128 62,634,019 |
Boc - Balangoda CODL - 0002246875 11,566,659
PB - Balangoda Recurrent - 017100150040960 1,586,186
76,295,157
Receivables 3
Consultancy Deposit General C e -
University Grant Commission -
HETC Project 590,424
Cash Fraud - Rahangala (Recurrent) 189,303
Sundry Debtors 105,525
Sundry Deposits - Recievable 408,480
Recievable Rent From Properties -
Pre Payments 1,233,675
Pre-Payments Library Books -
Receivable from Staff ‘ 118,905
2,646,312
Loans & Advances to Staff 4
Recoverable Recoverable  Total
during 2016 after 2016
Distress Loan 13,867,782 43,328,335 57,196,116
Staff Loan 258,530 595,300 853,830
Computer Loan 991,500 1,298,500 2,290,000
Transport Loan 1,357,149 2,012,572 3,369,720
Festival Advance 145,450 - 145,450
“Special Advance 5,850 - 5,850
Loan Adjustment Account - 77,900 77,900 |
Salary Advance - - -
16,626,260 47,312,606 63,938,867
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Property Plants and Equipments

Description

Lands

Buildings

Water Treatment Plant

Office & Teaching Equipments
Computer & Accessories
Library Books & Periodicals
Motor Vehicles
Communication Equipments
Cloaks

Other Equipments

Provisions for Depreciations

Description

Provision For Depreciation Building

Pro. For Dep. Water Treatment
Pro. For Dep.Office & Teaching

-~

Pro. For Dep. Computers & Accessories

Pro. For Dep. Library Books
Pro. For Dep.Motor Vehicles
Pro. For Dep. Communication
Pro. For Depreciation of Cloaks
Pro. For Depreciation Others

= =

-
o

Written Down Value

Description

Lands

Buildings .

Water Treatment Plant

Office & Teaching Equipments
Computer & Accessories
Library Books & Periodicals
Motor Vehicles
Communication Equipments
Cloaks

Other Equipments

Note

11

%

5

5
20
20
20
20
20
20
20

Balance as at Additions Disposals / Balance as at

01.01.2015 Adjustments 31.12.2015

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
51,136,392 - 51,136,392
2,189,223,508 26,728,076 190,052,269 2,406,003,853
9,113,148 - - 9,113,148
404,935,069 41,849,505 - 446,784,574
208,466,511 6,597,070 - 215,063,581
116,703,752 8,985,974 - 125,689,726
81,956,792 38,305,000 - 120,261,792
23,799,360 5,161,774 - 28,961,134
2,832,212 - - 2,832,212
132,112.070 7,526,487 - 139,638,557
3,220,278,814 135,153,885 190,052,269 3,545,484,968

Balance as at

Charge for the Disposals/

Balance as at

01.01.2015 year Adjustments 31.12.2015
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
415,963,081 120.517,807 28,507.840 564,988,729
3,287,611 524,546 - 3,812,157
304,050,769 40,195.967 (309,069) 343,937,667
146,127,625 20,143,215 - 166,270,840
110,261,949 4,117,989 (68,057) 114,311,881
60,707,852 22,509,224 - 83,217,076
16,373,998 3,384,536 - 19,758,534
1,692,072 289,480 - 1,981,552
92,726,141 13,815,865 4,939,136 111,481,142
1,151,191,099 225,498,629 33,069,850 1,409,759,578
Balance as at Additions Disposals / Balance as at
01.01.2015 Adjustments 31.12.2015
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
51,136,392 - - 51,136,392
1,773,260,427 - - 1,841,015,124
5,825,537 - - 5,300,991
100,884,300 - - 102,846,907
62,338,886 - - 48,792,740
6,441,803 - - 11,377,845
21,248,940 - - 37,044,716
7,425,361 - - 9,202,600
1,140,141 - - 850,661
39,385,929 - - 28,157,415
2,069,087,715 - - 2,135,725,391
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Knowledge Enhancement

2013
T.C. Gamage
M.B.C.A. Wijeiunge
J.K.S.C. Perera
M.D.N.M.V. Mahawatta
H.K.S. Premadasa

Amortization 60%

2014
M.L.Warnasooriya
N.P.G.1.S. Naotunna
W.W.Anura
J.K.S.C. Perera
R.M.A.S.Bandara
H.J.M.Y.S. Menike
C.N.R.Wijesundara
K.D.U.D.Fernando
D.G.L.Rasika
A.A.M.D.Amarasinghe
A.C.Jayathilake

Amortization 40%

2015
C.N.K. Balasooriya
Deepal Wijesekera
R.Y.Sandamali
A.C.Jayathilaka
JK.S.C. Perera
R.G.U.Jayalal
H.N.M. Sarangika

Amortization 20%

Total

Curricnlum Revision

Faculty of Management Studies
Faculty of Geomatics

Faculty of Applied Science
Faculty of Agricultural Science

Amortisation 20%
Total

Note

10

1,192,648%20%

518,000
175,000
185,000

26,000

17.500
921,500

(552,900)

368,600

425,524
370,000
250,000
117,000
59,500
350,000
82,000
202,000
202,000
202,000
132,000
2,392,024

(956.810)

1,435,214

132,200
7,960
261,000
70,000
86,000
62,000
47,100
666,260
(139,620)
526,640
2,330,454

377,752
814,896
661,415
154,415
2,008,478

e
(238,530)
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Property Plants and Equipments

Description

Lands

Buildings

Water Treatment Plant

Office & Teaching Equipments
Computer & Accessories
Library Books & Periodicals
Motor Vehicles
Communication Equipments
Cloaks

Other Equipments

Provisions for Depreciations

Description

Provision For Depreciation Building
Pro. For Dep. Waler Treatment
Pro. For Dep.Office & Teaching

Pro. For Dep. Computers & Accessories

Pro. For Dep. Library Books
Pro. For Dep.Motor Vehicles
Pro. For Dep. Communication
Pro. For Depreciation of Cloaks
Pro. For Depreciation Others

W n Down Value

Description

Lands

Buildings :

Water Treatment Plant

Office & Teaching Equipments
Computer & Accessories
Library Books & Periodicals
Motor Vehicles
Communication Equipments
Cloaks

Other Equipments

Note

11

%

5

5
20
20
20
20
20
20
20

Balance as at Additions Disposals / Balance as at

01.01.2015 Adjustments 31.12.2015

Rs. - Rs. Rs. Rs.
51,136,392 - 51,136,392
2,189,223,508 26,728,076 190,052,269 2,406,003,853
9,113,148 - - 9,113,148
404,935,069 41,849,505 - 446,784,574
208,466,511 6,597,070 - 215,063,581
116,703,752 8,985,974 - 125,689,726
81,956,792 38,305,000 - 120,261,792
23,799,360 5,161,774 - 28,961,134
2,832,212 - - 2,832,212
132,112,070 7,526,487 - 139,638,557
3,220,278,814 135,153,885 190,052,269 3,545,484,968

Balance as at

Charge for the Disposals/

Balance as at

01.01.2015 year Adjustments 31.12.2015
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
415,963,081 120,517,807 28,507,840 564,988,729
3,287,611 524,546 - 3,812,157
304,050,769 40,195,967 (309,069) 343,937,667
146,127,625 20,143,215 - 166,270,840
110,261,949 4,117,989 (68,057) 114,311,881
60.707,852 22,509,224 - 83,217,076
16,373,998 3,384,536 - 19,758,534
1,692,072 289,480 - 1,981,552
92,726,141 13,815,865 4,939,136 111,481,142
1,151,191,099 225,498,629 33,069,850 1,409,759,578
Balance as at Additions Disposals / Balance as at
01.01.2015 Adjustments 31.12.2015
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
51,136,392 - - 51,136,392
1,773,260,427 - - 1,841,015,124
5,825,537 - - 5,300,991
100,884,300 - - 102,846,907
62,338,886 - - 48,792,740
6,441,803 - - 11,377,845
21,248,940 - - 37,044,716
7,425,361 - - 9,202,600
1,140,141 - - 850,661
39,385,929 - - 28,157,415
2,069,087,715 - - 2,135,725,391
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Capital Work In Progress

Work In Progress - Rehabilitation
Work In Progress - Administration
Work In Progress - Others

Work In Progress - Girls Hostel

Work In Progress - IT Building

Work In Progress - Social Sciences I1
Work In Progress - New Hostel Project

Accrued Expenses
Accrual Expenses-Recurrent
Accrual Expenses-Capital

Sundry Creditors
Sundry Creditors
Unpaid Salary
Unpaid Vouchers
Unpaid Mahapola
Unpaid Bursary

Refundable Deposits & Funds
Staff Security Deposits

10% Retention Of Contracts
Tender Deposits

Cloak Deposits

Medical Insurance Deposits
Sundry Deposits - Payable
Annual International Symposium
Bid Bond

University Grants Commission
National Symposium - Traditional
Performance Bond

_ Foreign Student Scholarship
Release Library & Laboratory Deposits

VA

Note 2015
12

2,618,848
1,517,543
853,464
319,600
1,819,966

1,060,185
9,089,606

13
77,971,545
8,315,194

86,292,739

14
74,135,231
93,381
109,460

74,338,071

15
191,725
26,680,522
315,378

1,076,027

1,789,673

17,414 381

1,352,033

25,950

1,583,700
50429388
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Note 2015
Rs.
Provi i i 16
Balance as at 1st January 99,239,985
Charge for the year 12,065,470
111,305,455
Payments made during the year (1,742,182)
Balance as at 1st December 109,563,273
BOC ILease Liability 17
Within 1 year More than 1 Year Total
BOC Lesor 8,569,272 21,423,180 8,569,272
(-) Interest in Suspense (1,593,022) (3,982,555) (1,593,022)
6,976,250 17,440,625 6,976,250
o
Capital Grants 18
Spent Capital Grant 1,675,437,484
MOHE Grant - Two Girls Hostels 396,000,304
JICA Grant - Language Lab - FSSL 15,000,000
QEF Grant - IRQUE Project 7,834,661
IBG Grant - IRQUE Project 4,498,960
Unspent Capital Grant 61,896,369
Capital For Lands 7,500,000
Animal Breeding Unit Construction 467,901
SDC Capital Grant 6,647,462
Motor Vehicles - Grant 1,600,000
2,176;883:641
3
her_ 19
Assets Re-Valuation Account 58,761,861
Livestock Re-Valuation Account
58,761,861
Accumulated Surplus and Deficits 20
Balance as at 1st January (233,689,753)
Adjustments (Prior year) (4,697,699)
Net Surplus/(Deficit) For the Period (47,478,718)
Balance as at 31st December (285,866,170)
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Note 2015

Rs.
Restricted Funds 21
Vice Chancellors Fund (VC Fund) 4,664,411
Gold Medle Fund 899,500
University Development Fund g 2,109,992
Bonds & Agreement Violation 23,060,158
Agriculture Development Fund 827,516
Post Gratuate Courses(indeg) 147,899
Consulties Research Grant M 360,000
Durham University Fund for 282,302
University Industry Community 735,980
Sports Development Fund 192,500
Consaltant Projei:l(sabaragamuwa) -
Postgraduate Diploma in Enterpreneutship 692,905
Collaborative Project 2,391,088
GIS Training Programme 203,700
Financial Assistants for Start Up Project 185,950
Water Quality Sample Testing Project X 52,668
Annual Survey Camp Project i 105,152
PhD - UGC Research Grants 10,914
Cattle Breeding Unit - Agri 3
Consulant Projects Sabaragamuwa 200,000
Sandee Research Grant 1,846,021
Teaching Development Programme 511,267
Graat From Japan Foundation 2,357,718
Master Plan Toursm Developm 75,000
Grants from Economic Development Ministry 709,857
Farm Stay Fund ¢ ¥
Cattle Breeding Unit (Recurrent) -
Staff Development Programme Controll-Recurrent -
SDC Program  Controll (Capital) -
Consultancy Service ForTmpr 901,803
Financial Assistance for innovative research 2,146,025
Samurdhi Training Programme -
Consultant Project Sabaragamuwa AN 401,622
Ayurvedic Health Tourism Programme .
Consultation Project of Dev -
Msc Ayurvedic Hospital Management 280,151
Post Graduate Course Applied Sciences 18,900
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Bursary and Mahapola
Bursary
Mahapola

Finance Programme Incom
CODL Programme Income
Msc Ayurvedic Hospital Manag
Indigenous Community Programme
Diploma in Ayurveda Therapy
Post Graduate Courses Applied Science

Other Income
Registration Fecs (Undergraduate)

Registration Fees (Postgraduate)
Examination Fees (Undergraduate)
Interest From Loans & Advance
Interest From Investments

Sale of Publications

Sale Of Old Stocks

Sale Of Produce

Rent From Propertics

Medical Fees

Library Fines

Reimbursements

Ancillary Activities
Miscellaneous Receipts

Differed Income

Differed Income Capital Grants
Differed Income IRQUE QEF Grants
Differed Income SDC Grants
Differed Income Motor Vehicle
Ditfered Income Cattle Breeding
Differed Income IRQUE IBG
Ditfered Income MOHE

Differed Income JICA

Differed Income Donation

Note

22

24

25

2015
Rs.

29,953,800
59,044,750
88,998,550

29,885,177
2,520,000
660,000

33,065,177
B

1,728,020
75,600
76,558

2,775,822

1,624,144
23,320

201,685
2,516,908
1,551,617

783,263

170,479

2,813
1,595,455
7,762,816
20,888,501

183,265,322
735,836
1,552,361
3,050,000
467,901
482,345
22,000,000
5,000,000
2,618,123
219,171,888




Total Expenditure

Personal Emoluments

Academic

Salaries & Wages

U.P.F

Pension

E.T'F.

Interim Allowance
M.C.A.

Academic Allowance
Equalization Allowance
Other Allowance
Visiting Lecturer Fee(Include
Gratuity

Research Allowances
Cost of Living Allowance
Property Loan Interest

Non Academic

Salaries & Wages

URE

Pension

E.T.E.

Acting Pay

Interim Allowance (10%)
M.C.A.

Over Time

Holiday Payments

Other Allowances

Language Proficiency Allowance
Graluity

Employee Provident Fund 12%
Cost of Living Allowance
Property Loan Interest

Total

Travelling & Subsistence

Domestic
Foreign

Note

26-A

26-B

2015

117,102,990
23,329,392
13,686,528

7,403,185
2,822,222
274,055
111,553,489
20,520
70,937,213
16,181,695
5,917,935
33,295,387
22,836,006
4,310,439

429,671,056

100,526,491
11,933,415
7,374,153
3,900,492
59,934
1,180,486
17,730,556
14,093,300
95,440
77,593,954
6,476,970
1,544,842
35,110,160
2,859,041

280,479,236

710,150,292
—_—

1,101,008
961,825
2,062,833
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Supplies

Stationery & Office R
Fuel & Lubricants
Uniform & Tailoring C
Mechanical & Electric
Chemical & Glassware
Medical Supplies
Other Supplies

Maintenance
Vehicles

Plant, Machinery & Equ

Building & Structure
Furniture
Others

Contractual Services
Transport
Telecommunication
Postal Charges
Electricity

Security Service
Water

Cleaning Service
Rents & Hire Charges
Rates & Tax to Local
Printing Advertising
Others

Other Recurrent Expenses

Travel Grants To Uni
Special Service-Counc
Special Service-Profe
Workshop, Seminars
Academic Research
Staff Development
Grants To Other Organ
Holiday Warrants & Se
Entertainment Expense
Contribution & Member
Convocation

26-C

26-D

26-E

26-F

10,354,524
17,228,480
278,004
3,236,541
13,060,052
2,181,837
9,453,776

55193215

6,986,338
2,213,630
4,838,618
358,961
333,948

14,731,494

289,013
19,917,004
1,056,802
26,938,636
53,315,708
23,038
18,986,264
10,451,610
1,409,187
3,807,360
1,961,362

138,155,983

861,494
3,298,368
514,570
2,296,622
1,142,540
16,000
71,020
2,496,579
398,215
3,649,907
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¢

Examination Expenses 18,624,169

Others-News Papers.Ma 2,950,521
Course Materials For s
Student Development Initiative 67,453
University Development Activities 855,439
Student Welfare, Employee Welfare 1,263,952
: 38,506,849
Self Finance Programme Expenses 26-G
External Programme Expenses 22,627,922
Msc Ayurvedic Hospital Management 2,211,476
Indigenous Community Programme 577,480

Diploma in Ayurveda Therapy A O R
___ 25416878

Financial Assistants to Students  2H
Mahapola Scholarship o 59,044,750
Bursaries 29,953,800
88,998,550
Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 26-1
Dep.for clocks 289,480
Dep.for building 120,517,807
Dep.for office & teaching equip 40,195,967
Dep.for communication equipment 3,384,536
Dep.for water treatment plant 524,546
Dep.for library book 4,117,989
Dep.for moter vehicle 22,509,224
Dep.for other equipment 13,815,865
Dep. for computer assessors 20,143,215
Dep for knowledge enhancement A 802,325
Curiculum Revision Expenses 238,530
International Symposium Expenses 439,165

226,978,648
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13. Audit Report - 2015
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My No. SGP/RP/D/SUSL/01/15/68  Your No. Date 25 January 2017

The Vice Chancellor,

Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka
Belihuloya.

Report of the Auditor General om the Finmamcial Statements of the Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri Lanka for the year ended 31 December 2015 in terms of Section 108(1) of
the Universities Act, No 16 of 1978.

- The audit of the financial statements of the Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka for the year
ended 31 December 2015 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015
and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in equity and the cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting poﬁcies and other
explanatory information, was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in
Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in
conjunction with Sub-section 107(5) of the Universities Act, No.16 of 1978. My comments and
observations which I consider should be published with the Annual Report of the Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri Lanka in terms of Sub-section 108(1) appear in this report. A detailed Report in

terms of Sub-section 108 (2) of the Universities Act, was furnished to the Vice Chancellor of the '

University on 15 July 2016.

1.2  Management’s Respousibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statemeﬁts in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards and for
such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or

CIror.

140



1.3

1.4
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Auditor General's Departrieni

Auditer’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my
audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards consistent
with International Auditing Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAI 1000 -
1810). Those Standards require that, I comply with the ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatements,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatements of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers the internal control relevant to the University’s preparation and fair -

presentation of financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the University’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating tﬁe
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. Section 111 of the Universities Act, No 16 of 1978 gives
discretionary powers to the Auditor General to determine the scope and extent of the

audit.

I believe that the audit evidences I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for my audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

My opinion is qualified based on the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this report.

wDEhTRMENT hatsne NFIS S ol
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2. Financial Statements

21 Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this
report, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Sabaragamuwa University of Sri Lanka as at 31 December 2015 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Public

Sector Accounting Standards.

2.2 Comments on Financial Statements

2.2.1 ' SriLanka Public Sector Accounﬁﬁg Standards

The following observations are made.

{a) Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 02

The cash flow statement had not been prepared in accordance with the financial

statements and following the correct classifications.

(b)  Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 03

In terms of the Standard, the University should correct material prior period errors
in the first set of financial statements authorized for issue after their discovery by
restating the comparative amounts for the period in which the errors occurred.
Nevertheless, action in terms of the provisions had not been taken in respect of
correction of errors amounting, to Rs.85,151,639 made during the year under

review.
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(c) Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 09

In terms of the Standard, only the goods available in the form of goods or supplies
for the use or distribution should be taken into consideration in the measurement
of inventories. Nevertheless, Without accounting 1,394 cloaks valued at
Rs.167,300 as the fixed assets, it had beet included in the value of the closing

stock.

2.2.2  Accounting Pelicies

In the absence of a Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard that specifically applies
to a transaction, other event or condition, management shall develop and apply an
accounting policy, whereas such action had not been taken accordingly in respect of the

motor vehicles purchased on leasing basis.

2.2.3  Accounting Deficiencies

The following observations are made.

(2) Plant and equipment valued at Rs.54,768,373 granted to the University by the
“Higher Education for the Twenty-first Century (HETC) Project” relating to the
period from the year 2012 to 2015 had not been brought to account.

(b) Exercise machines valued at Rs.812,270 purchased during the year under review had

been understated in the accounts.
(c) The stock of drugs, the book value of which according to the inventory of the Medical

Centre of the University as at 31 December 2015 was Rs.521,574 had been brought to

account as an expenditure of the year without being accounted for as an asset.
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AGDSt.

(d) Although the unspent capital grants according to the cash book as at 31 December of
the year under review was Rs.62,634,019, it had been brought to account as

R3.61,896,869 in the Unspent Capital Grants Account.

Unexplained Differences

Although the unsettled advances according to the Register of Advances as at 31
December 2015 totalled Rs.1,296,585, it had been stated as Rs.2,543,008 in the statement

of financial position. Accordingly, a difference of Rs.1,246,423 was observed.

Accounts Receivable and Payable

The following observations are made.

(a) Necessary steps had not been taken to recover 46 staff loan balances totalling
Rs.1,743,500 in monthly installments over periods ranging from 03 months to 12

years.

(b) Necessary action had not been taken to recover a balance of sundry debtors .

armounting to Rs.105,525 shown over a period of 13 years.

(¢) Necessary action had not been taken to settle the payable employees’ wages totalling
Rs.71,483 brought forward since year 2014, ’

{d) Necessary action had not been taken to recover the sundry deposits amounting to

Rs.358,897 that remained recoverable since year 2012.

(e) Necessary steps had not been taken to dispose of 30 balances of retention money of

the contracts and bid securities of Rs.8,182,519 aggregated since 05 years to 10 years.

Wb BN pematanr RS St haang
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(f) Required steps had not been taken to settle the advance of Rs.4,488,000 obtained

from the University Grants Commission for the payment of bursaries in the year

2014.

Lack of Evidence for Audit

The evidence indicated against the following items of accounts had not been made

Item of Account

Lands

Buildings
Water Purification Unit
Office and Teaching equipment

Library books and periodicals

Motor Vehicles
Communication Equipment
Cloaks

Other Equipment

Total

" available to audit in order to establish them.

Value

Evidence not made available

Rs.

51,136,392

2,406,003,853\

9,113,148
446,784,574

125,689,726

120,261,792

28,961,134

2,832,212
J

139,638,552

3,330,421,383

Title certificates/ Transfer .

orders

>(i) Board of Survey Reports

(i) Registers of Fixed Assets
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2.3 Non - compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations and Management Decisions

The following non — compliances were observed.

Reference  to Laws, Rules,
Regulations and  Management

Decisions

(a) Universities Act, No.16 of 1978

(i) Section 108 (3) (2)

(iiy Section 109

(b) Section 20 (1) of the Value
Added Tax No.14 of 2002.

Non - compliance

Although action taken or proposed to be taken on the
matters pointed out by the Auditor General’s report
should be reported fo the Auditor General within
three months, action had not be so taken in respect of
the detailed report of the Auditor General for the year
2014.

The audited accounts reports relating to the preceding
year had not been published in the Goverrment

Gazette.

In the payment of Value Added Tax (VAT), the
relevant payment should be made only for a valid
invoice of the suppliers. Nevertheless, in the payment
of money to the supplies in the year 2015, the
payments had been made without obtaining a valid
invoice from the suppliers for the Value Added Tax
amounting to Rs.105,179.

Dan i YRR Saalams ISR Sananed b
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(¢) Section 6(1) (a) of the Public
Contract Act No.03 of 1987

TANSHARISH SCTIIOSITIHY

Auditor General*s Deperment

AGDSL,

When the cost specified in the confract agreement
exceeds Rs.5 million, the Procurement Agreement
should be registered with the Registrar of the Public
Contract within 60 days from the date of awarding
the relevant contract. Nevertheless, it had not been
examined whether the action had been so taken in
connection  with 09  contracts  totalling
Rs.118,538,421 relating to the year under review and

the preceding years.

(d) Financial Regulations of the

Democratic Socialist Republic
of Sri Lanka.

®

(ii)

(i)

Financial Regulation 103
(1) (@

Financial Regulation 104
o

Financial Regulation 104
“

Two motor vehicle accidents caused during the year
under review had not been reported to the Sri Lanka

Police.

As soon as a loss or damage occurs, an inquiry

should be instituted, whereas action in terms of that
provision had not been taken in connection with a

damage of Rs.498,062 caused to the motor vehicle.

Although a full report should be submitted within
three months from the date of loss, action in texms of
that provision had not been taken in connection with
04 motor vehicle accidents caused during the year

under review.

BOhHEIENY e e SURE Bt b haer
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(e)

®

(iv) Financial Regulation
571(1),(2) and (3)

(v) Paragraph 1646 of
Chapter XVIII of the Part
II  of the Financial

Regulation.

Establishments Code of the
University Grants Commission
and ‘the Higher Education
Institutions.

(1)  Section 7.6 of Chapter V

Government Procurement
Guidelines 2006.

()  Guideline 5.4.12

TOFHR LD SN Tt

Auditor General's Department

AGDSL.

Necessary action had not been taken to prepare an
age analysis refating to the deposits of Rs.30,053,325
as at 31 December 2015 and dispose of the lapsed
deposits.

Although the monthly summary of the Daily Running
Chart should be prepared, action had not been so
taken in connection with 40 motor vehicles run by

the University.

Necessary action had not been taken to recover a sum
of Rs.48,152,247 due from 08 officers who had
signed the agreements before the year 2010 and
Rs.13,025,762 due from 03 officers who had signed
the agreement after the year 2010 in connection with

breach of agreements and bonds.

Afier the payment of money for covering Value
Added Tax,‘ the' details of the relevant payment
should be furnished to the Commissioner General of
Inland Revenue with a copy to the Auditor General
on or before the 15™ day of the following month.

Nevertheless, action in accordance with that

BB WHDIRY pamaanie HGHE Asunthban
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(®)

(h)

(id)

Guideline 9.8

Treasury Circulars

Circular No.IAI/2002/02 dated
28 November 2002. .

Public Enterprises Circulars

Paragraphs 7.1 and 7.2 of
Chapter 07 of the Guidelines on

the Good Governance in the
Circular No.PED/12 dated 02
June 2003,

Public Finance Circulars

(i) Circular No.02/2015 dated

(i)

10 July 2013,

Circular No.05/2016 dated
31 March 2016.

e v e

iz | Auditor General's Department
AGDSL

provision had not been taken in connection with the
payment of Value Added Tax of Rs.915,736 in 38

instances.

Action had not been taken to- publish notices
regarding the calling of bids in the University

website.

A Register of Fixed Assets had not been maintained
on computers and accessories valued at

Rs.215,063,581.

An Operating Manual had not been prepared so as to

cover the main operation areas of the University.

Although action should be taken, as soon as possible,
to dispose of the assets that remain unusable and idle
in the Public Institutions, measures had not been
taken according to the provision in connection with
the tractor and 03 trailers that remained condemned

position.

Board of Survey should be completed before 15

. January of each financial year and the report of the

BB NG SaDA T NFE Fane b g
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Board of Survey of the preceding year should be
furnished fo the Audifor General with a copy to the
Chief Accounting Officer before 17 March.

Nevertheless, action had not been taken accordingly.

Financial Review

According to the financial statéments presented, the operations of University for the year
ended 31 December 2015 had resulted in deficit of Rs.47,162,467 as compared with the -

- corresponding deficit of Rs.16,473,034 for the preceding year, thus indicating an increase

of Rs.30,689,433 of the deficit of the year under review as compared with the preceding
year. Although the income of the year under review had increased by Rs.205,644,870, the
above deterioration was mainly attributed to the increase in the personal emoluments,
exbenditm‘c on Mahapola and bursary and the expenditure on depreciation and
amortization by Rs.163,756,738, Rs.41,211,950 and Rs.18,355,697 respectively.

Analysis of the financial results of the year under review and four preceding years
revealed that, the deficit of Rs.131,450,782 of the year 2011 had decreased to
Rs.47,162,467 by the vear 2015. When taking into consideration the employees
remuneration and the depreciation for the non-current assets, the contribution of the
University of Rs.273,042,356. in the year 2011 had continuously increased up to
Rs.889,966,473 by the year 2015.

Analytical Financial Review

According to the statement of financial position presented for the year under review, the
current ratio of the University was 0.52 and 0.38 during the years 2015 and 2014

respectively. Sixty six per cent of the currents assets of the year under review represented

BOND AT hanaane RIS Sensnl b haur
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the cash and cash equivalents and the considerable amount of assets of the University

had been retained in the liquidated assets.

Operating Review

Performance

(a)  Registration of Internal Students to the University

Although plans had been drawn to erroll 1215 students for the academic year
2014/2015, only 1101 students had registered.

(b)  Registration of students for the Bachelor of Arts (General) External Degree

Course

The following observations are made.

Q] In terms of the Circular No.932 dated 15 October 2010 of the University
Grants Commission, courses should have been revised and commenced
after the year 2011. Although more than a period of four years had elapsed
from the issue of the relevant circular, necessary steps had not been taken

to intake new students batches up to 10 June 2016, the date of audit.

(ii)  Even though a peried of over four years had elapsed from the last
enrolmeént of the students for the above course in the year 2011, an
inordinate delay had occurred for the conduct of the first year and second

year examinations of that batch and the third year examination had not

been held even by 10 June 2016, the dated of audit. As a result, out of 180

students registered in that year, 99 students or 55 per cent had left the

COUrse.

(c) Although the place expected to be reached in the ranking of the World
Universities was 7000 according to the Corporate Plan, 2014-2018 of the
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University, due to non-completion of the required criteria the place 12277 had
been received and it was a decline by 1478 places as compared with the preceding

year.

Management Activities

The following observations are made.

(a

(b)

Out of the income earned from the External Degree Courses in each month from
January to December 2015 there was a balance of about Rs. 6 million in the
current accounts. Nevertheless, necessary steps had not been taken to invest that

money.

Although there was a sum of Rs.4,664,411 in the Vice Chancellor’s Fund as at 31
December of the year under review, the objectives that lead to the establishment
of the Fund had not been furnished to audit.

Operating Activities

Supply of Drinking Water

The following observations are made.

(@)

The water purification plant constructed for the Samanala Water Reservoir

Scheme in the year 1986 is being used for the water requirement of the University

. even at present. Although that plant has the capacity to purify and distribute water

to 1,500 people per day, it supplies water to 4,800 students and the staff of the
University daily and to 2,500 students of the External Academic Division during
the weckends. It was observed that as the water purification plant had not been
expanded in keeping with the consumption requirement, supply of safety drinking

water had turned out to be an issue,
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As the equipment used for the apply of Alum mixture, sand straining system,
chlorination compartment and 06 taps connected to that water purification plant
had been inoperative since August 2015, water had been directly obtained to the
storage tank from the Hirlkatu Oya through a separate pipeline bypassing the
water purification system and having mixed the chlorine into that tank, water had
been supplied to the University system. Accordingly, supply of safety drinking
water had been an issue, but necessary action had not been taken to répair this

defects of the water purification plant even by 10 June 2016, the date of audit,

Action had not been taken to purify and distribute water of the Hirukatu Oya by
the water purification plant and according to the monthly testing report carried out
on the bacteria of the water supplied to the University, the existence of coliform
bacteria exceeding the standard amount and E.coli bacteria which should not be

contained in the drinking water had been established in 06 instances.

Underutilization of Funds

1t was observed that 11 Funds valued at Rs.8,362,184 maintained by the University had

remained inoperative from 02 to 05 years without utilizing them for the relevant

objectives.

Idle and Underutilized Assets

The following observations are made.

cY

One hundred lecture hall chairs valued at Rs.490,560 purchased in July 2015 and
the podium valued at Rs.38,000 purchased in September 2015 for the lecture hall
located in the farm premises of the Faculty of Agriculture had remained unused
up to 10 June 2016, the date of audit.
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The greenhouse erected near the new cafeteria at the Mungasthenna premises of
the Faculty of Agriculture had not been used for any effective purpose since year
2014.

Stocks of items valued at Rs.324,607 had remained idle in the main store and the

sub-stores of the University from 02 years to 15 years.

Although the gully bowser, the market value of which was Rs.1,000,000 had been
repaired in the year 2005, it had remained idle in the garage from that year
without being utilized for any purpose.

The lecture hall and the Mungasthenna cafeteria of the Faculty of Agriculture
constructed in the year 2014 at a cost of Rs.8,834,437 outside the Master Plan of
the University without conducting a feasibility study with the expectation of

enrolling additional students had remained idle without being utilized.

Procurement and Contract Process

The following observations are made.

(@

The Cabinet of Ministers had given approval to construct an Information
Technology Building and Administration building in the year 2005.Although a
sum of Rs.3,337,508 had been spent for the consultation fees and the
commemorative plaque in the year 2005, necessary steps had not been taken to
commence the construction activities of the buildings. Even though the approval
of the Cabinet of Ministers had been granted again for the relevant construction in
the year 2007, any activity had not been commenced up to May 2016, the month
of audit. -

’
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(B) Although an expenditure amouating to Rs.123,(352,693 had been incurred for the
construction of the playground and the pavilion of the University in the year 2014,
there was no proper drainage of rain water whilst a hard surface had emerged due
to the development of the surface with gravel mixed earth. Necessary action had

not been taken to repair the cracks of the parapet near the pavilion.

4,7 Staff Admeimistration

The following observations are made.

{a)  There were 07 vacancies of the post of Professor and 10 vacancies of the post of
Lecturer of the academic staff as at 31 December of the year under review. As a
result, a sum of Rs.16,181,695 had been paid to the Visiting Lecturers during the
year. There was an excess of 14 Temporary Lecturers and 24 Demonstrators in

the academic staff posts.

(b)  Since there were 112 vacancies consisting of 07 administrative posts, 31 posts of
academic supporting staff and 74 posts of non-academic staff, a sum of
Rs.14,188,740 had been paid as holiday pay and allowances during the year under

review.

5. Accountability and Good Governance

5.1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Although the financial statements should be furnished to the Auditor General within 60
days from the close of year of accounts as required by Section 6.5.1 of the Public
Enterprise Circular No PEDY/12 of 02 June 2003, the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 had been furnished to the Auditor General on 11 April 2016.
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Corporate Plan

The following observations are made.
(a) Fourteen activities included in the Corporate Plan pertaining to the period 2014-2018
approved under Council decision No.14.199.61 dated 30.August 2014 had not been

implemented.

(b) The aforesaid Corporate Plan had not incorporated a review on the operating results
. of the three preceding years in terms of Section 5.1.2 of the Public Enterprise Circular
No.PED/12 of 02 June 2003 and as the financial value of the targets to be achieved
had not been specified, a Corporate Plan had not been presented in a manner to enable

the evaluation of the annual progress.

(c) Even though a Strategic Management Committee had been established to evaluate the
physical progress of the Corporate Plan and take relevant decisions, that Committee
had not reviewed 97 out of 150 activities included in the Corporate Plan up to 10 June

2016, the date of audit.

Action Plan

An Action Plan in terms of Paragraph 04 of the Public Finance Circular No.01/2014
dated 17 February 2014 had not been prepared for-the year 2015 and the Performance
Reports as well had not been prepared to evaluate the physical progress of the year 2015.

Imternal Audit
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It was observed that only Senior Assistant Internal Auditor and a clerk had been deployed
in the service of the Internal Audit Division and the Internal Audit Unit had not done an

adequate coverage by taking into consideration the scope.

Procurement Plan

Action had not been taken to obtain the approval of the Council for the Procurement Plan
prepared for the year 2015, list the expected procurement activities in the Master
Procurement Plan and to prepare procurement time schedule relating to 16 procurement

activities of the year under review.

Budgetary Control

When comparing the estimated expenditure with the actual expenditure, variances
ranging from 13 per cent to 131 per cent out of the provisions allocated for 6 Recurrent
Objects and considerable variances ranging from 35 per cent to 91 per cent out of the
provisions allocated for the Capital Objects were observed. Thus it was observed that the

budget had not been made use of as an effective instrument of management control.

Tabling of Annual Reports

The Annual Repert for the year ended 31 December 2014 had not been furnished to the
Chief Accounting Officer for tabling in Parliament in terms of Section 110 of the

Universities Act, No.16 of 1978,.

Systems and Controls

Deficiencies in systems and controls observed during the course of audit were brought to
the notice of the Vice Chancellor of the University. Special attention is needed in respect

of the following areas of systerns and controls.
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Areas of System and Control Observations

(a) Fixed Assets Control Fair value had not been brought to account

by revaluating of the assets.

(b) Stores Confrol Stock verification had not been carried out

and stocks had not been ordered by
identifying the requirement.

H.M.Gamini Wijesinghe

Auditor General
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14. Reply to the Audit Report
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